
PC agenda 03/02/2022 
 

Whitewater Zoom is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

Topic: Planning Commission 

Time: March 2, 2022 07:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84000095528?pwd=aXlIdkJ2UW9Tck82VFVXN0o4WFFpUT09 

Meeting ID: 840 0009 5528 

Passcode: 432821 

Dial by your location: 

312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

646 558 8656 US (New York) 

Kim Mangus, Chairperson – pc4@whitewatertownship.org 

Mickey Dean, Vice Chairperson – pc1@whitewatertownship.org 

Mike Jacobson, Secretary – PO Box 159, Williamsburg MI  49690 

Carlyle Wroubel – pc5@whitewatertownship.org 

Alex Darrow – pc2@whitewatertownship.org 

Al Keaton – PO Box 159, Williamsburg MI 49690 

Vacancy – Township Board Representative 

 
WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING March 2, 2022 
7:00 p.m., Whitewater Township Hall 

Via ZOOM and in person 
5777 Vinton Road, Williamsburg, MI  49690 

Phone 231-267-5141/Fax 231-267-9020 

 
1. Call to Order/Pledge Allegiance  
2. Roll Call of Commission Members 
3. Set/Adjust Meeting Agenda  
4. Declaration of Conflict of Interest  
 
5. Public Comment:   Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Planning Commission.  

Public comments shall be carried out in accordance with the following rules and procedures: 
a. Comments shall be directed to the Commission, with questions directed to the Chair.  
b. Any person wishing to address the Commission shall speak from the lectern and state his/her 

name and address.  
c. Persons may address the commission on matters that are relevant to township planning and 

zoning issues. 
d. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding the time 

needed to answer Commission members’ questions.   
e. Public comment shall be limited to 3 minutes.   
 

6. Public Hearing:  SUP, New Veterinary Clinic on M72 
    

7.  Approval of minutes of February 4, 2022    

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84000095528?pwd=aXlIdkJ2UW9Tck82VFVXN0o4WFFpUT09
mailto:pc4@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:pc1@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:pc5@whitewatertownship.org
mailto:pc2@whitewatertownship.org


PC agenda 03/02/2022 
 

8. Correspondence:  Marihuana reverence information 
  

9. Reports/Presentations/Announcements/Comments 
a. Zoning Administrator, Hall: 
b.    Chair, Mangus:    
c.     Township Board Representative:  No representative assigned 
d.    ZBA Representative, Wroubel:  

 
10. Unfinished Business:  

a.  Master Plan Review:  Mr. Grobbel Update  
b.  Bi-laws Yearly Review   
c.  Election of Officers 
d.  Article 25, Special Use Permits guidelines  
e.  Article 12, Setbacks – and corresponding recommendations 
f.  Marihuana proposed Zoning Ordinance amendments - Medical 
   

 
11. New Business:    
        a.  SUP, M72 Vet Clinic  
        b.  Preliminary Review – Vet clinic 

       c.  Preliminary Review – Site Condo  
          

12. Next Regular Meeting April 6, 2022 
13. Public Comment 
14. Commission Discussion/Comments  
15. Continuing Education:  Year in Review 

16. Adjournment 
 
Whitewater Township will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services to individuals with 
disabilities who are planning to attend.  Contact the Township Clerk at 231-267-5141.   



Whitewater Township 

PLANNING and ZONING 
1273 S. Seaman Road 
P.O. Box 143 
Wellston, Michigan 49689 

2/22/2022 

Telephone (231) 848-4564 
Fax (231) 848-7081 

email: norzoning@kaltelnet.net 

Whitewater Township Planning and Zoning - SITE PLAN and SPECIAL USE - STAFF REPORT 
Case #2022-01-SLUP 

Parcel #28-1 3-004-001-20 
Property Address: 8976 E. M-72 Highway, Williamsburg, Michigan 49690 
Zoning District: COMMERCIAL 

Applicant / Agent: 

Owner: 

[Fowler, Paige I Crain Engineering, LLC] 
[ 11490 Rickerd Ct] 
[Williamsburg, Michigan 49690] 

Phone: [248]-[342]-[6259] 

[Send Brothers Prope1ties, LLC] 
[8976 E. M-72 Highway] 
[Williamsburg, Michigan 49690] 

Phone: [231 ]-[267]-[90 I OJ 

Email: schwa289@gmail.com 

Email: 

Tax Description: 28-13-004-001-20 PRT OF E 1/2 OF SE 1/4 OF SEC 4 T27N R9WCOM NW 
COR OF SE 1/4 OF SE 1/4 TH E 495TH S 152' TH E 289' TH N 363' TH W 289' TH 
S 171' TH W 495' TH S 40' TO POB. 

Requested 'USE' of property: [Change of Use to Veterinary Clinics, veterinmy hospitals, and related 
ke1111elfacilities as listed in Article VJ/I, Section 8.11.L as a use permitted by special use 
permit! 

The Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance divides the Township into districts in which specific uses are permitted 
which are mutually compatible. In addition, there may be certain other uses which may be appropriate to 
include in a district due to the specific circumstances surrounding the use, the impact on neighboring uses 
and public facilities. Such uses, because of their particular location or the particular nature of the service 
offered, may be established in a district through a Special Use Permit. 

Introduction 
The 'current' Send Brothers feed store facility is the subject property associated with this request. The 

applicant initiated conversation with staff via email in late August of 2021 by generally inquiring 
about the possibility of opening a vetcrinaiy clinic, and aski ng where that type of use would be 
permitted in Whitewater Township. The applicant and staff met for what was an infom1al process 
discussion sho1tly afterwards. 

Page 1 of 3 
Norman Township 



Whitewater Township 

Send Brothers Feed Mart authorized the applicant Paige Fowler, and her selected (agent) B ill Crain of 
Crain Engineering, LLC to act as their agents in submitting this application for a change of use -
specia l use. 

The public notice for this hearing was published in the Traverse City Record-Eagle on February 131
\ 

2022. Notices were sent out to a ll property owners within 300' (three-hundred) feet on February 
I 0 th

, 2022 - both, at least 15 days in advance as required . 

Specific Staff Co111111e11ts will be in italics (like thi.\) and shaded in yellow 

I SPECIFIC ZONING DISTRICT COMMENTARY 

ARTICLE VIll: COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 
8.11 USES PERMITTED BY SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
8. 11.L Veterinary clinics, veterinary hospita ls, and related kennel facilities 

FACT: The subject parcel I roper(v is located in the C I-Commercial ::oning district of Whitewater 
Township. 

FACT: Veterinwy clinics. veteri11mJ1 hospitals, and related kennel facilit ies are listed as special uses in 
the C l -Co111111ercial ::011i11g district. 

FACT: Article XXV. Section 25.18 q/the Whitewater Toll'11shi J Zo11 i11g Ordinance does NOT a//011 
Zoning Ad111i11istrator review for a ·special · use. 

DECISION: Based upon the facts recited i111111ediately above. the application is placed upon the agenda 
of the planning co111111issio11: f.!_roper notice and 11blicatio11 was made stating the time. lace and 
object of the hearing. 

8.12 BUILDING SIZES, LOT SCZES AND YARD REQUIREM ENTS 
Artic le XII: 

• FACT: There is 110 ·111i11i111u111 ' lot si::e listed or a Jot I 'Jarcel located in the Co111111ercial 
zoning district. 

• M inimum lot width required is 100 ' (one-hundred) feet - FACT: the actual lot 1ridth is 
approxi111ate~v ./00 · (four hundred)feet. 

• FACT: The 111axi11111111 lot iridth to depth ratio of./: 1 is 1101 exceeded. 

Page 2 of 3 
Norman Township 



Whitewater Township 

25.1 LE Final Site Plan Review 
Staff advised applicant (through their agent) that addressing all the required elements of a site plan was 

imperative to being placed on the agenda before the planning commiss ion. The applicant 
provided packet addresses the requirements. Any areas that the applicant deemed as not 
applicable are to be justi fied by the applicant. 

This is (more or less) a change of use 

25.12 Standards for Decisions (site plan) 
The Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance contains no less than 18 (eighteen) independent standards 

that require findings during the review process. Several of these are inapplicable (in the opinion 
of staff) . The applicant has been advised to justify any items that they believe are not applicable. 

Staff Recomme11datio11 - Site Plan: Staff recommends that the planning commission (in addition to this 
report as an exhibit) make independent findings based upon this stqffreport and their own 
understanding of the proposed project: apply the siteJJlan review standard\· as applicable and 
approve with any conditio11s ifdeemed necessary 

Special Use Permit (review) Standards 

The Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance, although lacking 'specific' special use standards. can be 
used to substantiate an affirmative decision that protects the general safety, health, and we(fare 
of the co,nmunity. You are, however, restricted to the actual language in Section 25.21 which is 
limited in its scope to the legal not[ficatio11 requirements. 

Staff hereby affirms that Section 25.2/requirements have bee11 com'Jleted aj_ier the 11blic hearin is 
closed by the lanning commissio11. 

Staff Recommendation - Special Land Use: Staff recommends that the upon close of the rec. uiredyublic 
hearing. that the requested special use be approved. 

Respectfully submitted for Planning Commission review and action, 

Robert Hall 
Zoning Administrator 

Page 3 of 3 
Norman Township 



I 

- - , \.:'-l- • rr_, '- ~ J 0 rl H I . ... 7 .., r-4-!")1 ' , l.. C \.· 11-l_ 
/ I · ' L I "~-- I ,, , ... 

, I__/ 

WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP 
5777 Vinton Road. PO Box 159 

W1ll1amsburg Ml 49690 
PH (231) 267-5141 Fax (231) 267-9020 

Property Information 

Parcel Number '~ C(')Ll - Ci_~ I - 2 0 
Address ___ ~7 ' 1/\f., i: f'nl L ', ..,L , ,11.,, . r., __ r , 1\\.J 

Zo:iing District C l Acres le --1 '-I Curren\ Use ~.:. 2 r ,-., :::, 

Property Owner Information 

Name ; c iv .~ 

Address ·i?111.o 
Phone 

(" 

p .t.o rl-l."'':>1 
C N"\lL 

bf) /_j_L 
\ ~ 1..1.. r...M'y/.,'-f: ' 1 

Fax '--- - - --------
Applicant Information 

Name I \_\,';: '\ ~\>''"~ \;_e r.,,,._,~,\<" t:/ C:;> ·, 1--L 
Address · -{ t"\--- '11v:,. 12 r:, --c.. ,,.J, ,._.__·,AfV',r,.r• , 0:T 
Phone :,-4q - ":>~I 2..- Cs: b ..._, Fax ~Ir.. ,.,r:-\ ~ 5( 1 L~ 

r',t •~ --- ~J\~'2_ 

(." a ~C ~ ll . __ _ 

D,lll' Rel' 
I ce _ _ _ _ 

Description of Proposed Use (Use reverf": side or attach pages as needed) . 

'?r...ccc...:. ."), ?,z,.__\V L'-. '-'..:,' ' '- C".,.o b.l d \, <...\ ~~,,.._,~,1 Hv.:D ¾1.... 
, ::,,1L 1, :, ·~ - .-, .:ri: -l""LI -> '> r... I...,,_,-.., .-.i:'", .C,, w e o,· I C h \J- :,J , L -:,,\ u'- ,,.'.):, 

...-- J. 

I hereby attest that the information on this application form 1s, to the best of my 
knowledge, true and accurate. 

uV{,li ,JV :.)r·) Ll?/11 _J_o,,1/ I' / l / 2 
s,3nature ol 1ophcan1 " 

I hereby grant permission for members of the Whitewater Township Planning 
Commission and the Zoning Administrator to enter the above described property for the 
purposes of gathering information related the this application 

S1gna1ure of Propeny Onner Date 

. , I 0l ? 77 C':!/ _1,S .IL. i) I ~. 'r7 I ) ) , I ✓ ,..,,. ' 

) .-, I ( ( 
J ·--,;-' / 

-, ) - ,-



1/20'22, 6:39 AM image0.jpeg 

January 17. :wn 

rtu: o " 111:r. S,:nd I \roth~1 :- h:cd M111\ auth1m11.::.. Wi\\,,1m,b\1t \'., 
Vt.'t1.·ri11a~ I lo:..pital. Paige Fm, kr. ;,pp\il:lln\ ~n<l W,\\hun t· ,.1·m. 
Crain Fng i111:crin •. 1.1.C t~) ~uhmit for a Sp\:.citi\ Use \>\:m,,, un 
their behalf .11' the applkant. 

Si rn:crcly. 

hltps://mail.google.com/mail/u/Ofllinbox/FMfcgzGmtXGvKSSVTtrhtNrwJMfHTpOw?projector=1 1/2 



Crain Engineering, LLC 
I ~nginccting, Consulting & Design 

February 16, 2022 

Mr. Robert Hall, ZA 
Whitewater Township 
5777 Vinton Road 
Williamsburg , Ml 49690 

RE: Williamsburg Veterinary Hospital 

Dear Rob: 

7622 Bott Road 
Buckley, Ml 49620 
Ph: (231) 947-7255 
Cell: 231-632-4207 

crainengineeringllc@gmail.com 

The submittal proposal is for a change of use from the Send Brothers Feed to the 
Williamsburg Veterinary Hospital. The proposal wil l be utilizing the existing site 
with minimal exterior modification, which include; sealing of existing asphalt, 
striping parking spaces, adding a short section of concrete sidewalk, replacing 
siding and windows on building. The site will need some additional landscaping 
along M-72 per current landscaping ordinance. Interior modifications to add more 
rooms for examinations/patient/waiting/bathroom, etc. 

The existing site is serviced by an existing MOOT approved access from E M-72 
for access by emergency services and utility vehicles. 

Williamsburg Veterinary Hospital Operations 
• Business Days - M-F 8-5:30 
• Employees: initially 4 with a max of 8 
• Veterinary services provided consist of: 

o Wellness appointments and vaccines 
o Sick pet appointments 
o Surgeries 
o Dental surgery and cleanings 
o Nail trims 
o Tech appointments 
o Ultrasounds 

• Surgeries will be performed each morning 
• Any inpatients will be going home by 4pm each day 
• No boarding or medical boarding 
• Deceased animals will be held in a freezer and will be picked up twice 

weekly by the crematory service. 

Our Mission: To provide our cli.::nts the product they want with the professional services they need. 



The attached siteplan shows the existing facility and proposed landscaping for 
the new use. 

25-11. F .2.b: Existing topographic survey information: the topographic survey is 
not applicable because the proposed new operation will only be requiring 
updates to the existing building with exterior siding upgrades, windows, doors 
and major interior renovation to change from existing feed store to veterinary 
hospital. The topographic survey is not needed as no changes to the existing 
parking areas, site storm water control, and onsite facilities. Existing septic field 
is being used for new operations. 

Sincerely, 

Crain Engineering, LLC. 

,Ud/tam~ 
William Crain, P .E. 
Project Manager 

Our Mission: To provide our clients the product they want with the professional services they need. 



25.11 F 1 
a) Provided 
b) Proof of ownership supplied(purchase agreement) 
c) Signed statement attached 
d) Owner/applicant names shown on plans 
e) Wetland area shown 
f) Existing buildings shown. No proposed building as part of this application 
g) All features are existing on site. No proposed site changes. 
h) Existing approved access to M-72. 
i) No new streets/access points 
j) Existing parking areas in place and no changes proposed 
k) Existing parking area will accommodate vehicle access for deliveries. 
I) Existing sidewalk, covered porch shown 
m) Existing septic field and well in place and to be reused. 
n) Existing power, telephone and water in place and be reused. 
o) No common open space proposed 
p) Existing sign in pace and will be reused. 
q) Exterior lighting will be building mounted and shown on pla. 
r) No existing or proposed fencing. 
s) Combination of existing and proposed landscaping shown on attached 

plans. 
t) Future screened dumpster pad location shown on plans. 
u) No known site contaminated areas on subject property 
v) Existing features onsite shown 
w) No significant views onto and from adjacent site. 
x) Building plans attached 
y) Date of plan submittal on plans 
z) Plans sealed by engineer. 

25.12 
A. All existing site features to remain as currently in place other than 

cosmetic changes to building exterior and interior remodeling to convert 
from feed store to animal hospital. 

B. All existing landscaping to remain with additional trees proposed along M-
72. 

C. The current site has existing storm water control measures in place and 
will be retained as not sitework is required for new use. 

D. Non applicable 
E. Non applicable 
F. Site has existing access to M-72 
G. Existing sidewalk provides access to existing building 
H. Proposed/Future dumpster area shown and proposed to be screened. 
I. Proposed exterior lighting will meet article 29.00 and shown on attached 

plans. 

Our Mission: To provide our clients the product they want with the professional services they need. 



J. Existing sign structure is in place and will be renovated for new business. 
New sign to meet current article 30.00 regulation. 

K. Non applicable 
L. Non applicable 
M. Siteplan has been submitted to GTco Health Department and MDOt with 

approvals. 
N. Non applicable 
0. Proposed use is an allowed use with the current zoning district by way of 

SUP 
P. Existing site has current storm water control measures in place and with 

no site improvements other than building modifications, no site changes 
proposed. 

a. Non applicable 
R. Non applicable. 

Our Mission: To provide our clients the product they want with the professional services they need. 



PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
Page 1 of 5 •• 

Date: December #, 2021 tl· I J: I;· • a.m. ~.p.m., eastern standard time 

SEWNG OFFICE: Real. Bstate One 
Selftng Brokerage 

Cm:l Stellin stelliD@charter.net 
----...,,,,,..--,,-------- (231)676-0600 
Agent Name/Emall Phone # 
Carl. Stallin atelUn@cbarter.net 

LISTING OFFICE: Rea1 Estate one 
Listing Brokerage ------------- (231)676-0§00 Agent Name/Email Phone# 

BUVER(S):~,oiqa '9YAA16----------------------sName(s) 

1. BUYER(S) OFFER TO BUY FROM SELLER(S), pursuant to the tenns of this Purchase Contract (this "Agreement"). the 
following Property: 

Situated in the Citytrwp. of ____ ..:.::Whi=· te=•=a1:=ei:=----- County of Grand ~,:averse . Michigan . 

Located at 89"16 E M-72 Williamsburg .Ml.. 49690 
siiee1 AaCJaff 

.. --· ___ ; Tax Parcel ID# u-00 ___ 4-__ o __ o-=1 ..... -2 ... 0 _____ _ 

Legal desaiptfon: Legal Descxipt.i.on on file 

Forthesum °'-----••••••••••• -•L ____ Dollars 
2. THE TERMS OF PAYMENT shall be indicated by '?C" below. Payment of such money shall be made in U.S. funds, through cash or 

cash equivalent payable to the appropriate title company or dosing agent. 

• Cash Payment of the full purchase price upon execution and deUvery of warranty Deed. 

Ill Lender Financing 

• Seifer Financing 

Payment of the full purchase price upon execution and defivery of Warranty Deed, contingent upon 
Buyer's abiflty to obtain, at Buyer's expense, a Conventional mortgage foan fn the 
of$ ,:o ba det:ec:D:l.nad • Buyer agrees to fumlsh evidence of lendel's pre-approval and/or 
condltionaJ loan commitment acceptable to Buyer, within five (5) business days of the effective 
date of this Agreement. 

$ ______ payment upon execution and delivery of D Land Contract or • Purchase 
Money Note and Mortgage, wherein the balance of$ ________ shall be payable to 
SeUer In monthly lnstanments of s ______ or more includlng interest at ___ % 
per annum, interest to start on date of dosing and first Installment payment to become due 30 days 
after dosing. BaUoon payment. If any, fn ___ years. The obligation of SeDer to consummate 
the sale is subject to Seller's approval of Buyer's credit worthiness, and Seller shall be entitled 
(without obligation therefor) to obtain a credit report In such regards from a credit reporting agency, 
if requested by Seller within five (5) business days from the effective date hereof. This credit 
evaluation contingency shall be deemed to have been waived lf Seller fails to require a credit 
report in a timely manner or falls to submit written objection to any such a-edit report within five (5) 
business days of Seller's receipt of the same. 

Ill other See attached Addendum and/or Special Conditions at Paragraph 17 below. 

3. INSPECTION: Buyer II Does • Does not elect to have a property inspection. If Buyer has elected the same, the Inspection fees 
shall be paid by Buyer and Buyer's obligations shall be contingent upon satisfactory results (the •inspection Contlngencyi. Buyer 
shall have 45 business days from the effective date of this Agreement to complete the inspection (the 11lnspection Period"). 
If Buyer has objections to the results of the inspection, Buyer shall have three (3) business days from the final day of said 
Inspection Period to deliver to Seller written notice Which specifies such objections and may Include a request for the rendition of 
specffled repairs at Seller's expense and/or a specified price reduction In the sale/purchase price (the "Repair Notice"). The Repair 
Notice shafl not tenninate this Purchase Contract. Buyer and Seller may thereafter (without obffgatlon therefor) exearte an 
Addendum to address and resolve the Issues posed within the Repair Notice, and If the parties should fall to do so within three (3) 
business days after the delivery to SeDer of the Repair Notfce, Buyer shall thereafter have three (3) business days to deliver 
further notice to Seller that Buyer elects to either (i) waive the Inspection Contingency and thereby accepts the property "as Is, with 
aD faults", or to (0) declare this Agreement null and votd and receive a refund of the earnest money deposlL Failure of the Buyer to 
respond fn writing within any of the time periods established above shall constitute Buyer's waiver of the Inspection Contingency. 

4. CLOSING: The parties agree to close on To be det:aau.ned • or before such date, ff agreed upon by both parties. 

A. ATTENTION CLOSING/ESCROW AGENTS: 
f. SeDer and Buyer instruct Buyer's fender, closing and/or escrow agents that wire Instructions and other nonpublfc 

personal infonnation must be conveyed by encrypted emaD, overnight courter, U.S. Mail or hand delivery only. 

~ (' 0 JI"".. tWf1 It~•• 
INITIALS: Buyer: _......_.~ ___ l.1.lfl-'-'-'._, Seller: ~.l 1 __ _ 

127 rev 1/20 @ Real EsfaTe One. Inc. 2020 
67°Rm 0 Bdlliff.SISE Cayup8dlliraMl4961S . Ptloll::2JISJ .. ,11.i la: 2JISlJ619J~ f,1 ScadScicd-M-72 
Amrhn BdJdre PftXSuccd wi\h Zi)Fonn& by zqilogl& 18070 Flftaen Mila Road,, Fraser, Midiigan 4802G 'al&"" •,g :\ 91:, f "2' 



PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
Page 2 of 5 

ii. Please take notice that pursuant to the terms of Buyer's agency agreement with Broker, Buyer agreed lo pay Selling 
Broker a Broker Commission In the amount of $95 in addition lo the percentage amounts provided in the buyer 
agency agreement. MLS offer of cooperation and listing contract. 

5. LAND DIVISION AND MINERAL RIGHTS: If properly is not platted or condominiumized, Seller shall convey lo Buyer the right to 
make: 00 All available O Zero /or ____ divisions under the Michigan Land Division Act. 
To the extent that Seller possesses oil, gas and mineral rights, they: 0 shall O shall not be conveyed to Buyer. 

6. SURVEY REPORT: 00 Certified 801111dary Survey O lvlongage Inspection Survey O Stake Survey/Marked Corners (by licensed 
surveyor) to be obtained and/or provided within ':(£ business days of the effective date hereof and paid for by O Buyer 
00 Seller D Not Requested. The results of such survey must be reasonably satisfactory to Buyer, which contingency shall be 
deemed to have been waived if Buyer fails to submit written objection thereto within five (5) business days after rendition of the 
same. 

7. SELLERS DISCLOSURE AND LEAD BASED PAINT DISCLOSURE: Buyer acknowledges receipt of same: 
0 Yes O No !XI Not Applicable 

8. OCCUPANCY: 

A. Seller will provide to Buyer occupancy (i) 00 Immediately after closing, or (Ii) 0 ___ days after closing by 12:00 
noon, eastern standard time (the "Holdover Term"), or (iii) Q ___ In accordance with Paragraph 8(0) below. 

8 . In the event that Seller is to maintain occupancy for the Holdover Term, Seller shall be obligated to pay lh$! sum of 
$ ________ per day as a "Holdover Charge". At closing, Seller shall pay$ _________ as the full 
Holdover Charge for the Holdover Term, and a "Damage Deposit" of S ________ , all of which shall be retain 
in escrow by 
D Listing Broker, or D Title/Escrow Agent, or 
0 Other (specify arrangements) ------------------------------

C. All sums placed into escrow pursuant to Paragraph 8(8) above are hereinafter colleciively referred lo as the "Holdover 
Escrow". Regardless of whether such funds have been designated above as a "Holdover Charge" or the "Damage 
Deposit", the entirely of all such funds within the Holdover Escrow shall be utilized for payment to Buyer of the Holdover 
Charge for any and all periods of Seller's post closing occupancy, and to secure and fund the obligations of Seller to 
deliver possession of the property in the condition required in Paragraph 8(E) below. If a balance of funds should remain in 
the Holdover Escrow subsequent to their application in the foregoing manner, the same shall be paid/reimbursed to Seller. 

D. If the property is occupied by tenants of Seller, (i) D Seller will remove and vacate the tenants on or before closing, or 
(II) 0 Buyer will take the property subject to the rights of the tenants, with all rent to be prorated to the date of closing 
and all security deposits to be transferred to Buyer, through corresponding debits/credits within the closing documents. 

E. It is acknowledged and agreed between Buyer and Seller that in the event Seller is to maintain occupancy of the property 
subsequent to closing pursuant to Paragraph 8(A) above, such continued occupancy by the Seller (the "Holdover 
Occupancy") constitutes a contractually agreed period of holdover and a limited retention and reservation of Seller's rights 
of possession during and limited to the post closing period encompassed within the Holdover Term. Buyer and Seller 
further acknowledge and agree that the Holdover Occupancy and the terms of this Paragraph 8 do not constitute or 
otherwise create a landlord/tenant relationship between Buyer and Seller. Buyer and Seller agree, relative to the Holdover 
Occupancy, as follows: 

i. Seller shall be liable to Buyer for damage to the property caused by any act or omission of Seller during the 
Holdover Occupancy. Seller shall deliver possession of the property to the Buyer, upon expiration of the Holdover 
Term, in the same condition as that which existed at the time of closing. The obligations of the Seller in the 
present regards shall be secured and funded by the Holdover Escrow. 

ii. Seller shall be obligated for payment of all utility expense incurred throughout the Holdover Occupancy, which 
obligations shall be secured and funded by the Holdover Escrow. The Seller shall bear the obligation throughout 
the Holdover Occupancy to maintain for its benefit, liability and contents insurance coverage. Buyer shall bear the 
obligation throughout the Holdover Occupancy to maintain for its benefit, liability, contents and hazard insurance 
coverage. 

iii. Seller may only use the property, during the Holdover Occupancy, in a manner consistent with its past use and 
Seller may not allow additional occupants or assign or lease out any portion of the property. 

F. In the event the Seller should fail or refuse lo vacate the property in a timely manner upon conclusion of the Holdover 
Term, the rights and obligations of Buyer and Seller shall be governed as follows: 

127 rev 1/20 

i. Paragraph 8(A) above and terms thereof shall be deemed lo serve as the requisite demand for possession 
required by the Michigan Summary Proceedings Act (the "Act"). including but not limited to specification of the 
lime within which Seller must take remedial action (delivery of possession to Buyer), which shall be deemed to be 
the date which concludes the Holdover Term. 

ii. Buyer shall be entitled to immediately file legal proceedings pursuant to the Act, to obtain a judgement for 
possession authorizing immediate issuance of a writ of restitution for immediate removal and eviction of Seller 
from the property. Any such judgement shall also award payment of all costs and expenses, including attorney 
fees, incurred by Buyer. ...z1'J. 

INITIALS: Buyer: J?rV I ;lll!/: Seller: 9'1fi' I _ _ _ 

© Real Estate One, Inc. 2020 

Produced with zipFonnt> by zlploglx 18070 Flnecn Mlle Road. Fraser, Michigan 48026 .,.,,w, zinl oalx com 'L $' Send Seed -~-72 



9. 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
Page 3 of 5 

iii. Buyer shall be additionally entitled to receive a money judgement against Seller which may include an award 
which is double in amount to the daily Holdover Chargt::, ro, t::ach day of the Selle,·s Holdover Occupancy. tr 110 

such daily Holdover Charge is specified above. Buyer shall be entitled lo a judgement award for each day of 
Seller's Holdover Occupancy, which is double in amount to the daily fair market rental rate. The parties agree that 
due to the inconvenience and wide array of expenses which would be sustained hy the Buyer as a resull of any 
unauthorized Holdover Occupancy by Seller, as well as the difficulty in determining monetary damage lo the 
Buyer, issuance of a judgement award double in amount to the Holdover Charge or fair market rental rate, is 
reasonable and is not a penalty 

FIXTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS: All improvements and appur1enances noVJ in or 011 the property, which are a11ached or give 
the appearance of permanent attachment, are included in the purchase price, including but not limited to the following: carpet. 
lighting fixtures and their shades; all window treatments and coverings. screens, storm Vlindows and doors: plumbing fi xtures, 
water treatment systems (unless rented); water heater; mechanical systems; built-in appliances; mail box; all plantings and 
shrubbery; fence(s); garage door openers and transmitters. 
ADDITIONS: Refrigerator O Yes O No 

Washer D Yes D No 
Television Mount(s) D Yes D No 

Oven/Range O Yes O No 
Dryer D Yes D No 

• Other: To be determined and agreed upon by both buyers and sellers 

Microwave O Yes O No 
Dishwasher n Yes O Nn 

10. DEPOSIT: Buyer shall deposit $ 4@1!• ••!1!_ ___ (the "Deposit"), D included herewith 00 upon acceptance, evidencing 
Buyer"s good faith. said Deposit to he held by the Selling Brokerage (unless otherwise agreed), in accordance with the terms 
hereof and state regulations. which Deposit shall apply as part of the purchase price. If this offer is not accepted, if title is not 
marketable and Buyer elects 10 obtain a refund of the Deposit in accordance with Paragraph 16 below. or if any contingency 
specified herein cannot be met within the lime limits specified. lhe Deposit shall be refunded lo the buyer rorthw1lh, provided Buyer 
shall have the nghl lo waive any Buyer contingency and proceed to closing. If lhe sale 1s not consummated because of the Seller's 
unauthorized failure or refusal to perform. then the commission shall be due and payable upon such refusal. ff the sale is not 
closed, the Selling Brokerage or any other party holding the Deposit may (but shall have no obligation to) notify the Buyer and 
Seller of its intended disposition of the Deposit and unless it is thereafter notified in writing of a pending court action concerning 
the sale of the property or disposition of the Deposit, within 30 calendar days, all parties shall be deemed to have agreed to said 
intended disposition of the Deposit and to have waived any claims against the holder of the Deposit in such regard. 

11. REMEDIES: In the event or default by Buyer, all deposits made hereunder may be forfeited as liquidated damages at Seller's 
election or aflematively, Seller may retain such deposits as partial payment of the purchase prrce and pursue all applicable legal 
or equitable remedres against Buyer In the event or default by Seller the Buyer may pursue all applicable legal or equitable 
remedies agarnst the Seller. In the event any legal or equrtabte action or proceeding between Buyer and Seller should transpire 
relative to the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing pany shall be entitled to collect all out-of-pocket expenses and fees incurred 
in the proseculI011 and/or defense of the action or proceeding. rncluding attorney fees. 

12. TAXES/PRORATIONS: Rents, homeowner's/condominium dues, road maintenance fees, heating fuels and materials (other than 
UP. gas, wood pellets. cord wood and lht:: lrkel and s1m1lar expenses shall be adjusted and prorated as of the date ol closing L.P 
gas, if any, shall be prorated to the date of the Buyer's possession. based upon the expense incurred therefor by Seller. Wood 
pellets, cord wood and the like shall be included within the sale price, unless the parties agree otherwise in writing. "Current 
Taxes" (defined as those property taxes billed or to be billed in the year the closing takes place), shall be prorated so that Seller 
sh;:ill be r.hargecl with such taxes from lhe first of the year to the closing date and Buyer shall be charged with such taxes for the 
haf;mr.e or the year If ofiicial bill~ for ta'l(es prorated hereunder are not yet issued, proration shall be on the basis of lax bills for 
the previous year or latest millage rate multiplied by the latest taxable assessed value, whichever is more accurate. Property taxes 
shall be deemed to be paid in arrears and to cover the calendar year within which the tax bills are issued. Unless otherwise 
provided herein, the full outstanding balance of all governmental assessments, homeowner's association special assessments 
and all outstanding property taxes (other than "Current Taxes") shall be paid at closing by the Seller. 

13. BUYER AND SELLER ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE: 

A. They have received an Agency Disclosure Form. Listing Broker/Agent is acting as the agent of Seller. 
The Selling Broker/Agent is acting as (check one): 
D AgenVSubagent of the Seller D Dual Agent 
D Designated AgenVin-house transaction D Transaction Coordinator 

00 Buyer's Agent 
0 Other 

B. It is recommended that Buyer obtain a survey. 
C. It is recommended that Buyer obtain an inspection of the property to include, without limitation, all electrical, plumbing, 

structural and mechanical matters and any other pertinent aspects. If the Buyer desires and has so provided herein, 
he/she may obtain and pay costs of soil boring, use permits, and health department approvals for onsite septic and/or 
water systems. Because of potential conditions involving such matters as drainage, wetlands, critical dunes or other 
regulated matters, federa l, state or local governmental approval may be required before excavation or construction 
commences. 

D. Neither Seller nor Realtors have made any warranties relative to the land, structures, improvements, fixtures, equipment, 
personal property or any other matters pertaining to the present transaction, which are not otherwise set forth within this 
Agreement. 

E. Buyer has person;:illy exanuncd the sub1ec1 prope,1y antl agrees to accept the same 111 its present condihon, 1.e., "as is, 
with all faults". except as may otherwise be specified herein and Buyer agrees that lllerc are no other agreements or 
understandings 111 tnis regard. unless the same have been set fortll within a wntten document s,gn~d lly ~olh Seller and 
Buyer /J. . , ·r: 

127 rev 1/20 

INITl/,LS 6uyo:1 '/._:1_ , ; /.//,~{ 01:ll•:I - • , 

Produced with ziµForm8> by zlpLoglx 16070 Filleen Mite Road. Fraser. Michigan 48026 www zlpl oaix com 
© R eal Est:ire One, Inc. 2020 

•1.: {) Send Seed -M-72 



PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
Page 4 of 5 

F. Seller shall bear the risk of loss and is responsible for fire and extended coverage of insurance until the sale is closed. 
G. The parties have been hereby advised to retain an attorney to review all documents including but not limited to this 

Purchase Contract, before signing the same, and to review all other pertinent aspects of the present transaction. 
H. Seller shall promptly provide to the Buyer a commitment for an owner's title insurance policy with standard coverage, in 

the amount of the purchase price, reflecting marketable title. 
I. I f the terms of purchase is a new 111ortgc1ne and the le11de1 has issued timely written commitments but is delayed in 

consummating the secu111y tra11sactio11. an extension of 110 more than 10 business days shall be allowed fo, closing. 
J. Neither the Listing Broker nor the S€:lling Broker l1c1ve 111adc any representation or warranty as to the future value of the 

subject property. 
K. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between Buyer and Seller and supersedes all prior understandings 

and/or agreements, if any. This Agreement shall insure to the benefit or and bind the parties hereto and their respective 
heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns. If two or more persons execute this Agreement as Buyer or Seller, 
their obligations hereunder shall be joint and several. 

L. nme is of the essence. 
M. Discrimination because or race, creed, color, national origin, age, sex, handicap or marital status, with 1esµecl to the sale 

or lease of property, is prohibited by law. 

14. SELLER PAYS COSTS OF: Applicable real estate commission; transfer tax; all documentation costs required to effect marketable 
title; Seller's attorney fees; owners ' title insurance premium and Seller's attendant title company closing fee; preparation expense 
of Deed, Land Contract, Bill of Sale and/or other documents necessary to convey marketable title. 

15. BUYER PAYS COSTS OF: Preparation of mortgage note and any olher security instruments for Seller financing, except Land 
Contract; recording of Deed and/or security instruments, Buyer's attorney fees; Buyer's mortgage fees and costs (if any) and 
Buyer's attendant title company closing fee. 

16. OBJECTIONS TO TITLE: If title to the property is not marketable and written notice thereof is provided to Seller by Buyer or 
Buyer's attorney, specifying Buyer's objections to the status of the title reflected within the commitment for title insurance, Seller 
shall have lhe right (but no obligation) to remedy the title defects within 30 calendar days and proceed to closing. Upon issuance 
and delivery of the litle Insurance commitment to the Buyer. Seller may (without obligation therefor), deliver to Buyer a written 
notice (the "Inquiry Notice") inquiring whether the Buyer has objections to the status of liUe reflected within the title insurance 
commitment. Buyer shall be deemed to have waived the right to object to the status of title in the event that Buyer fails to respond 
,n writing to the Inquiry Notice. specifying a l1lle objection. \'/ithin ten (10) business days after delivery of the Inquiry Notice to the 
Buyer. provided the Inquiry Notice must specifically state that· "Pursuant to Paragraph 16 of the Purchase Contract, failure of the 
Buyer 10 respond to this h1qui1y Notic;e v1itl1111 ten ( 10) business days shall waive the Buyer's right to object to the status of title." If 
Seller ,s unable to unwilling lo remedy Ille title defects within the time provided above, Buyer shall then have the option (I) to 
accept title in its present condition. subject to such title defects. and proceed to closing, (ii) to pay any encumbrances constituting 
a sum certain and to deduct the same from the sale pnce al closing, or (Iii) to obtain a full refund of the earnest money deposit, 
w1lh full termination of Buyer's obligations under th is Agreement. 

17. SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF SALE (If any):Sale and closing i s contingent on the following. 
Approval of county and township zoning to convert to veterinary clinic . 
A physical and environm.enta l inspection of the building and accompanying property in accordance 
with this purchase agreement p aid for by buyer. 
A satisfactory title search and commitment i n the full purchase price of the building and l and 
as described paid by the seller. 
Conti ngent on a bank appra i sal equal to the purchase price of the building and the l and. 
Seller to have the propane station r emoved by the closing date . 

18. ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS/COUNTERPART EXECUTION: As an alternative to physical delivery, the parties agree that 
this Agreement, any amendment or modification of this Agreement and/or any written notice or communication in connection with 
this Agreement may be delivered to the Seller, in care of the Listing Reallnr, and the Buyer, in care of the Selling Realtor, via 
electronic mail or by facsimile. Any such communication shall be deemed delivered at the time it is sent or transmitted. This 
Agreement and any addendum, amendment or modification hereto may be executed in identical counterparts, each of which taken 
together shall constitute one and Ille same agreement. The photostatic copy of the signature or initials of a party hereto, reflected 
through electronic mail. facsimile 1rans111i1tal, nhotocopy duplication or otherwise, shall have the same and binding legal force and 
effect as an original signature 01 i111lials. 

19. ASSIGNMENT: Buyer may assign his/her rights under this Agreement without restriction, in instances where Seller is to receive 
full payment in cash at closing without mortgage loan contingency. No such assignment shall, however, relieve or absolve the 
undersigned Buyer irom performance of any obligations of "Buyer'' set forth within this Agreement. 

20. BUYER'S OFFER: The foregoing Purchase Contract is hereby submitted to Seller as Buyer's offer to purchase the subject 
property and this offer will expire if not accepted in writing by Seller by Dao 2«1-Z021 at 5" :0 00 D A M 
00 PM, eastern standard time. l) 

,;• l~ 
.:a-:. %:::t-,- (. , i 

INITIALS: Buyer: -'A,(T'-"-"'--- t -'-'1//,.c.,..,.,<' J_ Seller: 1 , 

127 rev 1 /20 ~ Real Estate One. Inc. 2020 

Produced with z,pForm:;> by ziplogix 18070 Flltecn Mile Road, Fraser, Mlch,gon ,18026 ,wlW z,pl ooix.ccm ~ ~ Send Seed ·M-72 



PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
P;:ioe s ,-,f " 

Buytr's Sig Dale \1-\t.- \ j 2.. \ 

:. ! .. .c.: 

h :yPl'5 /l.ddrc-;;,. \ \ L\ ~ v_ Q.)(_\t,f,c\ (J· \\h \\ \(j\V\(\':) \')_lhlJ \ .. -M-L4'1-l.o'1 D . . 
21 . SELLER'S ACCEPTANCE: l 11E: foregoing Purchase Agreement 1s hereby: 

O Accepted as wrilten and brndi11g on all parties (Or) D Accepted subject to the terms of the Counteroffer set forth in Paragraph 
22 below. 

22. SELLERS COUNTEROFFER: This is Seller's Counteroffer to the Buyer's offer to purchase. Seller accepts the foregoing terms 
and conditions set forth within this Purchase Contract, provided Buyer agrees (pursuant to Parai1raph 23 below) that such terms 
shall be modified and/or supplemented, in pertinent part, lo hereafter provide as follows: 

Seller's Signature: ?1'. ,& _~!s;J+_ 't,...,_' ___;I"'- ~}-

Print Name f/'lc.. e// ~-:..,~,u l / bAf ( .<) Erl 0 

Date: _/,?..)....J .. :::,_.LJ.L_ Em<1il : .!"" ,:I'/,· -,,·.,/-1.JG.! '..£1~ ... I 
I I ~ 

" I\ +1 () II '1• \4~ ~·•, •/ '\; I ~~/.:;I Seller's Signature: _____ ~_·, _ _ _ _________ Date: l:lr "' ~ . Email: _________ _ 

t~°'r+i'0 Se~(} Print Name 

Sellers Address: g(!)? 0 8A T'z.!.) Q.c) 

Seller reserves the right to continue to offer the subJE:Cl propef1)' for sale and may accept another/third party offer at any time prior to 
receipt by Seller's Agent/Listing Broker, of a copy of lhrs Counte,ofier duly accepted and signed by Buyer. Unless this Counteroffer is 
accepted and delivered to Seller's AgenUListing Broker prior to Seller's acceptance of another/third party offer, Seller's Counteroffer 
shall be deemed immediately and automatically revoked concurrent with Seller's acceptance of such other/third party offer, in which 
event Seller's Counteroffer shall be of no legal force or effect and held for naught, and the Deposit shall be returned to Buyer forthwith. 

All terms and conditions of Seller's Counteroffer will otherwise expire, if not duly accepted and delivered by Buyer, on or prior lo: 

Date: _________ ____ at _____ D AM D PM if not fully executed 

23. BUYERS RECEIPT AND ACCEPTANCE OF CHANGES: In the event Seller has submitted to Buyer a Counteroffer, as reflected 
in Paragraph 22 above, Buyer does hereby accept the terms thereof. 

Buyer's Signature: __________________ Date: _ __________________ _ 

Buyer 's Signature: _________________ Date: ________ _ 

I 

127 rev 1/20 

Produced with z1pForm~) 1,y z1plou1x 18070 Filtcen rA,le Roa:J. Fraser, Michigan 48025 w.,w zip! oo•t corn 

CO Real Estate One. Inc. 2020 

Send Seed -,'111-72 

( l ',Jt 



1/18/22, 8:41 AM 

Gmail 

8976 E M-72, Williamsburg (Paige Fowler) 
2 messages 

Wiest, Jeremy (MDOT) <WiestJ@michigan.gov> 
To: Bill Crain <crainengineeringllc@gmail.com> 

Bill, 

Gmail - 8976 E M-72, Williamsburg (Paige Fowler) 

Bill Crain <crainenglneeringllc@gmail.com> 

Tue, Jan 18. 2022 at 8:36 AM 

The Michigan Department of Transportation's (MOOT) Traverse City office is in receipt of the proposed site plan 
(attached) for the property at 8976 E M-72, Williamsburg for Paige Fowler. It is our assumption that the new property 
owner is planning to reuse the exiting commercial driveway as is as well as they do not have any plans to expand the 
building nor the parking lot. If this is true then this e-mail serves as MDOT's consent to reuse the existing driveway. 

Thank you for providing MOOT the opportunity to comment early in the review process. Please let our office know If 
you need anything further. 

Jeremy 

'}ereJJJ_!J 1Z Wies{, 'P. 'E. 

Permit Engineer 

Michigan Department of Transportation 

Traverse City Transportation Service Center 

2084 US-31 South, Suite B 

Traverse City, Ml 49685 

Cell Phone: 231-649-9907 

From: Bill Crain <crainengineenngllc@gma1l.com> 
Sent: Monday, January 17. 2022 4:00 PM 
To: Wiest, Jeremy (MDOT) <W1eslJ@m1ch1gan.gov> 
Subject: M-72 East - Williamsburg 

CAl'TIO;\': Thb ban Etterual email. Please ,e111I s11spid1111s emails to abuSe(@m1ch1gan.gov 

Jeremy, working on a project that will be a change of use from Send Brothers Feed to a small animal clinic. Property is located at 8975 E M72 
W lhamsburg WMe,\ ater Twp. as part of the siteplan review and submittal process, a response from MDot is being requested. I have attached a 
site plan for your reference. 

Thanks 

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=62e 7 4 3ac2b&vie~Fpt&search=all&pennthid=lhread-f%3A 1722299697554081891 &simpl=msg-f%3A 1722299697 5... 1 /2 



?HOtlE: 231.995.6051 FAX: 231.995.C,033 EMAIL: ch@glCOUntymi.gov 

r-~ v~,, \.1 
~ r.ind \ ), f ,'\ Tr.ivcrsc 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
WELL & SEPTIC STATUS FORM - $25 

J'\.~ 'County/ 
-~~] 

N~•:J . 
t ~~~-
\·'7 . .. V': ' ~ • DEMOLITION 0 REMODEL/ ADDITION 0 HOME REPLACEMENT 

... ~,,~ ... ! • 

..'..=..- .:..=..::....- ~ CHANGE OF USE 0 FILE REVIEW/OTHER. ______ _ 

Property Address: 'i<>c\l \, ~ ~~-7 L 
ProoertvTax lD: i~- oDL\- Q t; 1 - z_C., Townshio: \.AJ h 1 \-c 1...:J o...-t€.J<. 

Owner's Name: :2i==:'N D b:1;J-'rhe~ . .'S _~.....:L?=n ::::D:___.....!6...::..::-o:...._ _________________ _ 

Owner's Mailing Address: ~C\l \..£1 f 'f\ -7 2.... 

Owner'sPhone: 2:SI - 2.\o7 - <1'u \0 Owner'semail: 

Applicant (if other t han owner): \.,Uiu ... \ ~'\-('(\.<; n..~q •] \\ ~ \:'?,,V .0 :\...LI 

A olicant Address: \ \l{C(' \') ¼1c.iLG'U~ ~~ Citv. Stare7i: 

Apolicant Phone: z_L\..i .. ":)'-\ ?...-- l~Z.5 '1 Aoplicant Email: So-\ 1 )Jc\ Z.~I {2 Ci'm;\IL . CC! fV" 

"""' 

Brief summarv of the orooosed changes to t he propertv: 

0 RESIDENTIAL 

Current # of Bedrooms: _____ _ Current # of Bathrooms: ____ _ 

Proposed# of Bedrooms: ____ _ Proposed :: of Bathrooms: ____ _ 

Garbage Disposal: D YES O NO 

Other changes: --------------------------------

£t COMMERCIAL (please attach a brief b.usiness plan) 

TypeofFaci lity: e,- C,\\,..J ·,·L- i 0.$PrT-A L 

Current Max # of Employees:. __ ;_\-'------ Current# of Bathrooms:. _ __,_ __ _ 

Proposed Max:-: of Employees: :8. {j)_ sSc~r-\s) Proposed:: of Bathrooms:_..c.2=---

Max Customers Per Day: h ··\\) \D~ \0 °s:Cfo:/l/J .. 
Drinking Fountai;~ES • NO ~ --. :::rr; ·;1 fi. i 

L./ \ I _{) Il l. tJ. b I u 
*,...Please note t hat additional information may J required depending on proposed change or use * "' 

J 
\_;.j ' LL \ ,~..... G cA, \j-.J 

·+-\}_;.}C. -)a -f_\-:r.;>\I t.\-',;-l 

Signature of Owner/Contractor Date 

C.\Us-,r.;\lrnlher\Do\\11lo~ds1S!:!lu> Fann ducx 



PHONE: 231.995.6051 FAX: 231.995.6033 EMAIL: eh@stcountymf.gov 

(TO BE COMPLETED BY SANITARIAN} 

Grand Traverse County Environmental Health 
WELL & SEPTIC STATUS FORM 

• EXISTING PERMIT AVAILABLE PERMIT# 4?\o4D DATE OF ISSUE:..,;0....,_.....,_..._ 
• EXISTING PERMIT NOT AVAILABLE ~v:h,'-'. S c,..f.S" ~ au.~ U 

• Well shall be properly plugged according to Part 127 of Act 368, P.A. 1978, as amended. Abandoned 
well plugging record shall be submitted to the Health Department. A new well may be required. 

• Septic tank(s) and any other tank(s) associated with the wastewater system shall be pumped by a 
licensed septage hauler, crushed, and filled or removed. A new wastewater system may be required. 

r{" Existing well meets current well construction code requirements and is approved for use as an: 

rl 

• Private Residential Well 
• Irrigation Well 
~ Public Well circle type: TYPE II 

Existing septic system meets current design requirem 
requirements. Tank(s) Size(s): lk<x½ 03£, , I~ 
Existing septic system will serve: 

~ g',-.-kl. 5fr.,,.. f-. 
ts for proposed use and meeJ'an isolation 

Final Disposal: :Z I )'.. S"L 

~ Residential home with __ bedrooms Garbage Disposal: YES NO 
'9' Commercial facility with design daily flow of~ gal/day ~ "',.. ,e ~ ~ 
• Other use with design daily flow of __ gal/day · 

• Existing septic system does not meet current design requirements, but is considered ngrand-fatheredn 
for proposed use. 

Comments+ b.\A,e ~~ ('.bffju,hA,{- .£.l:lgr !M ou.::ld&k bu E BL ff\,.._ 

~c_, -i:V\\_ 1 (eVNl\'H {A~ S'i>:E-hu,r ~ 

ature of Health Department Representative 

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Receipt Date: I\ \i\n Receipt#: 54453 Initials:~ 

C:\Uscrs\lm:ahcr\DownJO:lds~latus fonn.docx 



Specifications 

EPA: 0.86ft' 

Height: 17" 

Diame ter: 17" 

Weight: YJ lbs 

EML17 
Munich Pendant 
Eurotique Family 

' (1~ @· 
~~· C US 

--- Ii" 
(•1318cml 

17" 
{lJ 18cm) 

Introduction 

The Munich is a European-styled pendant luminaire 
suitable for use with a variety of Eurotique 
decorative arms and poles. 

Intended for use in pedestrian areas such as 
retail environments, public parks, city centers and 
commercial areas or other spaces with decorative 
requirements and a contemporary theme. 

EXAMPLE: EML 17 ST 63LED 350MA 4K GCF R3 120 DDBXD 

EML17 -- Performance P&<bge - lensOpUon Dlsbibutlo• 

EML17 ST Smooth 49LED 3S0MA S,000 lumens 3K 3000K 
RT Ringed 49LED S2SMA 6,700 lumcns 4K 4000K 
FLT Fluted 63LED 3S0MA 6,000 lumens SK S000K 

6JLED 52SMA 8,200 lumens 

GCF Glm dear nat 
GCSG Glass dearng 

R2 
Rl 
R4 
RS 

urHDNIA 
:_ I I 

Onu L1thcrua Way • Co,ycr ,. Gccrg,o 30012 • Pr,onc 1-800-7O5-SERV (7378) • 
¢ 20\3-202\ A1..u ty Ur,,nd:. Ligtiting. Inc NI 11ght; ,cit.'"-i.!d 

COl.\f.'ERCIAL OUTDOOR 

Type2 
Type 3 
Type4 
Type 5 

-MVOLT 
120 
208 
240 

277 
347 
480 

Rnlsb 

DDBXD 
DBLXD 
DIIAXD 
DWHXD 
Al/BK 
ANDS 
AIIDG 
Al/VG 

Super durable dark bronze 
Super durable black 
Super durable na1ural aluminum 
Super durable white 
Antique black 
Antique dark bronze 
Antique dark green 
Antique verde green 

El.'.17 
Rev 11/ llr.?" 

' .15c I of -~ 



" I ., 
,, ,u 

~ 
~- - · 1·1·1:.1'1..\ N . I 

\ In IIC)~l'IT.\ · l ~ .. I \ \ l-.,BL"R(; \ ' l ,Tl , RI N . . _ _ ~ ~ , \'\ II.I. , ·- · ____ "' ·~·· -""'·'E 
~ ~ > ,.~ ,.,.:.·:.=t -:.-=s~\: .. ; ~q~·.~Jq:.ecc-... -.-, ,.1::..-:.:.A.•, 

.,,~ .... . . . ~ .,_ . 
• _,,.,1 

:)il".','tlt .'J,,C 
. o~·,a~ l'.t.-:: 

:;.,.n ·,.,,.;::: 
•1. !iolfl 

"•-:,_o ? 

1• u ·1 tn, ,n 

'' !l"" - · · 
l(-.C ... .:·<• 1•11: .. -

~:~~.::.~,wuoir 

:;i~a~~ .. ~.::.:; 4 .~~ - ·~ .. 

:::::::: ~~r~-\:i;·;,:;~--, -~~· ·-- ,, .. ,,, 
=·~:;~:~~j~t~1(r~:.~:~. 



I 
I, •- II ., 

"( \l1 ' ,.,,111 

,.,._ -::c-:• 
il-C 1111(."'(» Nl""l.r.)- J.: 
•• J 1 i,- 1, 
.t.JJW: .. ;.. .. ooe 
, .... ,1 . ~- ... 

·~--

....... ........ .. 
It. l' • . . __ .__.,. ....... 

• ; 

-. . ..... 

I \ I ·., Ion· l'I ftl fl 

.. .. ., , --

EXISTING MIXED 
\\'ODDS AREA 

[DRAFT l 

, y •·.i ... • 

IS ~ SITEPI..\N 
~ ~, \\'II .LI \~ ISBL ' RC VETEIUN .\l{Y I It \S l' l 1 :\I. 
~ secno:•,;.ra:.• .. q~:::;e 

\",\-1iE\",.AfEQ 1 :I? GW,-:l rR.A'.El't~E co .. •,f'f "' Ct•.(>,\•, 

-- --:=::. 

·, 

::PM"iDf ,•,4,:. 
01;•, 1 1 i1'4C 
041l 1,111,.::;: 
•IVQ.lo"l 

EXISW,G 
StJILDl$ 
(48l<100'l 

·-·-····- · 

I -D "'1 I 

.- -~, 

0 

I • \(:_\ I tn~ )1.\1' 

C>,.,..__.,.,...""' ..... 

- ~ - l'U'"ll • ..... , 

l-).1,-;•:i,-
u,,, "''- ... 
,:•tt •••; 
-'-J,,.r~ "" •-...r. :·, .. -. l.?-~--:-.\.:..a •n 

............ ... , ...... 

flO t, .. VU.l• U 't l W'l(.ll'vU,-J~ 
t • •~Ul';JJ>,..,.,.,t 1:-__..-,.<tC.-1 
U • l.1 '""'" • •114"--,_:t . ....,., .... ., . 
,a_,,, ..... , 

- -··-· • ..,... ......... "1.,~•.•·...- ... ..._._._ 
,t'"'••~ .. ••••• •l••• .. •••...-J•••J..-r.i 

••.u- ...... _.;:,~7;:.·.·:.~:r~:: . ., 

,,, ,. .. , ... , ··"• ,i,..;.t,.,,.,w,.•...--•• • 
::·:..,~:~~!'::~.:-....... , .. -·· ---c• ..... u,,,:i, .,.,., -,,- •·-· • • ••· •• 



 

Page 1 of 2 Planning Commission 02/04/2022  DRAFT 

WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING 

w/ public participation available via Zoom 

February 4, 2022 

 

Call to Order at 6:00 p.m. 

Roll Call:  In person:   Dean, Jacobson, Wroubel, Darrow 

                  Absent:  Mangus, Keaton 

      Unfilled seats:  Board Representative  
 

Also in attendance:  Chris Grobbel (via Zoom) and Recording Secretary MacLean 
          

Set / Adjust Agenda:  Set 
 

Declaration of Conflict of Interest:  None.   
 

Public Comment:   

Don Glenn, 9792 Bluff Trail, Republican candidate for the May 3, election for the Trustee position.  Brief run-down of 

background.   

 

Public Hearing:  None 

 

Approval of Minutes:   

MOTION by Jacobson, second by Darrow to approve December 3, 2021, meeting minutes as amended (name corrections 

addressed).   

Roll call:  Dean-yes; Jacobson-yes; Keaton-n/a; Mangus-n/a; Wroubel-yes; Darrow-yes.  All in favor.  Motion carried. 

 

Correspondence:  (Included in packet) 

Reports:  

Zoning Administrator Report, Hall:  Not available. 

Chair’s Report, Mangus:  via Dean:  The marihuana application process is still up in the air.  No insight information on 

the litigation.  Need to keep moving on the ordinances.  

Township Board Rep,.  Not assigned. 

ZBA Representative,Wroubel:   No cases in December or January.  Annual organizational meeting held in January where 

it was reported what the PC is and has been working on. 

Committee Reports:   None.   

Additional Items:  None. 

 

Unfinished Business:   

1. Master Plan (MP) Review, Mr. Grobbel:  Two new sections coming your way, zoning ordinance and public input 

survey draft.  Need input from the PC membership.  Possible special meeting specifically for MP between the 

regular meetings.  Consensus to keep getting the sections from Grobbel and to go ahead and have special 

meetings.   

Complete streets is more about safety in our township, bike and pedestrian safety.  By state law the various forms 

of transportation that must be included, bike traffic, pedestrian, auto.   

Dean notes that we want to make sure the MP says what we mean and means what we say.  We need to be able to 

explain it to the public. 

2. Marihuana proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendments run through of the red line items. Consensus on the changes.   

3. Article 12, Setbacks  Wroubel notes the commercial campgrounds campsites are regulated by the state.  TC State 

Park has 25’x30’-50’size sites.  Current going size is more like 30”x50’ with a 15’ road.  There are specific state 

regulations.  Topography is going to self-regulate somewhat.   

Darrow:  Cabins per acre – 2 per acre seems like not very many.    

Discussion of density / density maximum. 

Needs to be looked at and addressed more in depth.  Keep in mind the state regulations. 

Table discussion to next month. 

 

New Business:   



 

Page 2 of 2 Planning Commission 02/04/2022  DRAFT 

1. Special Use Permit – Preliminary Site Plan Review, will bring next month for a Public Hearing/Site Plan Review.  

2. Meeting Dates through April, Wednesdays.  Propose February 16 at 7 for MP special meeting. 

3. Article 25, Special Use Permit guidelines.  Run through the red-line items.  Consensus to approve the changes.  

4. Election of Officers, - postpone to March meeting. 

5. Resolution PC22-01, Meeting Schedule for 2022-2023  

MOTION by Jacobson second by Darrow to adopt Resolution #PC22-01, meeting schedule.   

Darrow-yes; Dean-yes; Jacobson-yes; Mangus-N/A; Wroubel-yes; Keaton-N/A.  Motion carried.  

6. Bylaws annual review  Jacobson does want to include a Board member and notes the requirement in the Planning 

Commission ordinance.  Wroubel notes that there are pros and cons to having a Board member, personally in 

favor of having a Board member.  Consensus to have a Board representative to have connectivity. 

Keep the dates the same – Wednesday, consensus. 

Change “Training shall be . . .” to “training may be. . .”  Consensus yes to change. 

Defer vote next month. 

 

Next Regular Meeting is scheduled for March 2, 2022.   

Proposed special meeting February 16, 2022, 7 p.m. Master Plan review  

Next meeting agenda:  Article 12,Site Plan Review; Article 25, Setbacks (campsites / campgrounds) MP review; Election 

of Officers; Marihuana ordinances; Bylaws review/vote 

 

Public Comment:   

Lisa Bowerman, 8306 Crisp – regarding the proposal of the Moore Rd / Crisp Rd / M72 project:  Is there a difference 

between campground and RV park?  Park models are homes that can be moved but are rarely moved.  Concerns:  Crisp 

Road traffic, Crisp Road can’t just be fixed (according to the county) and traffic impact.  Dean notes:  RV park falls under 

the umbrella of Commercial Campground.   

Linda Slopsema – supplied detailed info in the packet regarding the marihuana ordinance.  Economic development in the 

information supplied by Grobbel recommends clustering like businesses and uses.     

 

Commission Discussion/Comments:   Wroubel:  RV Park is under the Commercial Campground umbrella.  Basic 

Campgrounds and RV Park and Park Model parks are all very different. 
 

Continuing Education:  Year in Review.  Postpone to March. 

 

Adjournment:  8:11  p.m.   
 

Respectfully Submitted 

Lois MacLean,  

Recording Secretary  

 



 

 

 

Password protected correspondence received.  You are able to open it, it is just not able to be included 

with the combined packet file.  The following links will take you to the document. 

 

Microsoft Word - Application Instruction Booklet - Combined (michigan.gov) 

OR 

https://www.michigan.gov/mra/-/media/Project/Websites/mra/MMFL-Paper-Applications-Forms-and-

Resources/Paper-Application-

Instructions/Application_Instruction_Booklet_660113_7.pdf?rev=e96e41f2c482453f85ac39a4e8f08c1d

&hash=2F0CD4965185B574B97FD7777B599DC3 

 

MICHIGAN MARIJUANA REGULATORY AGENCY 

Paper Application Instruction Booklet 
Medical Marijuana Facility Licensing 

https://www.michigan.gov/mra/-/media/Project/Websites/mra/MMFL-Paper-Applications-Forms-and-Resources/Paper-Application-Instructions/Application_Instruction_Booklet_660113_7.pdf?rev=e96e41f2c482453f85ac39a4e8f08c1d&hash=2F0CD4965185B574B97FD7777B599DC3
https://www.michigan.gov/mra/-/media/Project/Websites/mra/MMFL-Paper-Applications-Forms-and-Resources/Paper-Application-Instructions/Application_Instruction_Booklet_660113_7.pdf?rev=e96e41f2c482453f85ac39a4e8f08c1d&hash=2F0CD4965185B574B97FD7777B599DC3
https://www.michigan.gov/mra/-/media/Project/Websites/mra/MMFL-Paper-Applications-Forms-and-Resources/Paper-Application-Instructions/Application_Instruction_Booklet_660113_7.pdf?rev=e96e41f2c482453f85ac39a4e8f08c1d&hash=2F0CD4965185B574B97FD7777B599DC3
https://www.michigan.gov/mra/-/media/Project/Websites/mra/MMFL-Paper-Applications-Forms-and-Resources/Paper-Application-Instructions/Application_Instruction_Booklet_660113_7.pdf?rev=e96e41f2c482453f85ac39a4e8f08c1d&hash=2F0CD4965185B574B97FD7777B599DC3
https://www.michigan.gov/mra/-/media/Project/Websites/mra/MMFL-Paper-Applications-Forms-and-Resources/Paper-Application-Instructions/Application_Instruction_Booklet_660113_7.pdf?rev=e96e41f2c482453f85ac39a4e8f08c1d&hash=2F0CD4965185B574B97FD7777B599DC3


MRA (New Oct-2020) 

 

 

MUNICIPAL GUIDE 
  

MICHIGAN MARIJUANA REGULATORY AGENCY 



MRA (New Oct-2020) 
1 

MUNICIPAL GUIDE 
Table of Contents 
 

Medical Facility Licensing Questions ....................................................................................... 3 

What provisions in the Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act (MMFLA) are relevant to 
municipalities? ........................................................................................................................... 3 

Does a municipal ordinance have to opt in or opt out for medical facilities? ............................. 4 

Can the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) tell a municipality what should be included in 
the municipality’s ordinance and zoning regulations? ............................................................... 5 

Does the Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act (MMFLA) prohibit facilities from being 
within a certain distance to a school? ........................................................................................ 5 

Can a municipality charge an application fee? .......................................................................... 5 

How does the medical marijuana facility licensing process work? ............................................ 5 

What type of licenses are available under the Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act 
(MMFLA)? ................................................................................................................................. 7 

What are the touchpoints between the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) and 
municipalities during the medical marijuana facility licensing process? .................................... 7 

How do municipalities confirm to the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) that an applicant is 
authorized to operate a medical facility in the municipality? ..................................................... 9 

Does an applicant have to notify the municipality when the applicant submits a facility license 
(Step 2) application? ................................................................................................................. 9 

Is a municipality notified when a facility license (Step 2) application is approved or denied? . 10 

When an applicant renews a license, does the applicant have to confirm to the Marijuana 
Regulatory Agency (MRA) that he or she still has municipal authorization to operate a facility 
within the municipality? ........................................................................................................... 10 

Adult-Use Establishment Licensing Questions ..................................................................... 12 

What provisions in the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act (MRTMA) are 
relevant to municipalities? ....................................................................................................... 12 

Does a municipal ordinance have to opt in or opt out for adult-use establishments? ............. 13 

Can the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) tell a municipality what should be included in 
the municipality’s ordinance and zoning regulations? ............................................................. 14 

Does the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act (MRTMA) prohibit adult-use 
establishments from being within a certain distance to a school? ........................................... 14 

Can the municipality charge an application fee? ..................................................................... 14 

Does money collected from adult-use establishments taxes or fees go to municipalities? ..... 15 

How does the adult-use licensing process work? ................................................................... 15 

What types of licenses are available under the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of 
Marihuana Act (MRTMA)? ....................................................................................................... 17 



MRA (New Oct-2020) 
2 

What are the touchpoints between the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) and 
municipalities during the adult-use licensing process? ........................................................... 17 

How do municipalities confirm to the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) that an adult-use 
applicant is compliant with municipal ordinances and zoning regulations? ............................. 20 

What happens after the municipality signs Attestation 2-C – Confirmation of Section 6 
Compliance – Part 1: Municipality? ......................................................................................... 20 

Does an applicant have to notify the municipality when they submit an adult-use 
establishment license (Step 2) application? ............................................................................ 20 

Is a municipality notified when an adult-use establishment license (Step 2) application is 
approved or denied? ............................................................................................................... 21 

When an adult-use licensee renews a license, do they have to confirm to the Marijuana 
Regulatory Agency (MRA) that they are still compliant with municipal ordinances and zoning 
regulations? ............................................................................................................................. 21 

Enforcement Questions ........................................................................................................... 22 

When does the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) inspect a proposed marijuana business 
and what is included in the inspection? ................................................................................... 22 

What role does the Bureau of Fires Services (BFS) have in the Marijuana Regulatory 
Agency’s (MRA) inspection process? ...................................................................................... 23 

What role does a municipality play in the inspection process? ............................................... 23 

Does a municipality need to provide an applicant for licensure with a certificate of occupancy?
 ................................................................................................................................................ 23 

After an applicant is granted a license, does the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) conduct 
additional inspections? ............................................................................................................ 23 

If a municipality adopts an ordinance regarding medical facilities or adult-use establishments, 
should the municipality submit a copy of the ordinance to the Marijuana Regulatory Agency 
(MRA)? .................................................................................................................................... 24 

Does the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) monitor licensees and enforce compliance 
with municipal and zoning ordinances? ................................................................................... 24 

If a municipality determines that a licensee has violated a municipal ordinance, should the 
municipality report the violation to the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA)?........................ 24 

Is a municipality responsible for enforcing licensees’ compliance with the Medical Marijuana 
Facilities Licensing Act (MMFLA), Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act 
(MRTMA), and the administrative rules? ................................................................................. 24 

If a municipality becomes aware of unlicensed or illegal marijuana operations, should the 
municipality report it to the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) or law enforcement? ......... 24 

 

  



MRA (New Oct-2020) 
3 

Medical Facility Licensing Questions 
What provisions in the Medical Marihuana Facilities 
Licensing Act (MMFLA) are relevant to municipalities? 
Section 205 of the MMFLA is relevant for municipalities that are considering allowing or 
restricting medical marijuana facilities’ operations within the municipality.  
 
Below are the relevant provisions in the MMFLA related to municipalities. The Marijuana 
Regulatory Agency (MRA) is unable to provide legal interpretation of statutory provisions that 
fall under municipal authority. If clarification on any of the provisions below that fall under 
municipal authority is needed, the MRA recommends that you consider consulting an attorney: 
 
• Sec. 102.(q).: “’Municipality’ means a city, township, or village.” 

 
• Sec. 201.1: “Except as otherwise provided in this act, if a person has been granted a state 

operating license and is operating within the scope of the license, the licensee and its 
agents are not subject to any of the following for engaging in activities described in 
subsection (2): 
(a) Search or inspection, except for an inspection authorized under this act by law 

enforcement officers, the municipality, or the department.” 
 

• Sec. 201.3: “Except as otherwise provided in this act, a person who owns or leases real 
property upon which a marihuana facility is located and who has no knowledge that the 
licensee violated this act is not subject to any of the following for owning, leasing, or 
permitting the operation of a marihuana facility on the real property: 
d) Search or inspection, except for an inspection authorized under this act by law 
enforcement officers, the municipality, or the department.” 

 
• Sec. 205.1: “A municipality may adopt an ordinance to authorize 1 or more types of 

marihuana facilities within its boundaries and to limit the number of each type of marihuana 
facility. A municipality may adopt other ordinances relating to marihuana facilities within its 
jurisdiction, including zoning regulations, but shall not impose regulations regarding the 
purity or pricing of marihuana or interfering or conflicting with this act or rules for licensing 
marihuana facilities. A municipality that adopts an ordinance under this subsection that 
authorizes a marihuana facility shall provide the department with all of the following on a 
form prescribed and provided by the department: 
(a) An attestation that the municipality has adopted an ordinance under this subsection that 

authorizes the marihuana facility. 
(b) A description of any zoning regulations that apply to the proposed marihuana facility 

within the municipality 
(c) The signature of the clerk of the municipality or his or her designee. 
(d) Any other information required by the department.” 

 
• Sec. 205.2: “A municipal ordinance may establish an annual, nonrefundable fee of not more 

than $5,000.00 to help defray administrative and enforcement costs associated with the 
operation of a marihuana facility in the municipality.”  

 

http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(csax21fncniytywwetpynpbv))/mileg.aspx?page=GetObject&objectname=mcl-333-27205
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf


MRA (New Oct-2020) 
4 

• Sec. 205.3: “The department may require a municipality to provide the following information 
to the department on a form prescribed and provided by the department regarding a 
licensee who submits an application for license renewal: 
(a) Information that the board declares necessary to determine whether the licensee’s 

license should be renewed. 
(b) A description of a violation of an ordinance or a zoning regulation adopted under the 

subsection (1) committed by the licensee, but only if the violation relates to activities 
licensed under this act and rules or the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act.  

(c) Whether there has been a change to an ordinance or a zoning regulation adopted under 
subsection (1) since the license was issued to the licensee and a description of the 
change.” 

 
• Sec. 205.4: “Information a municipality obtains from an applicant under this section is 

exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act, 1976 PA 442, MCL 15.246. 
Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, information a municipality provides to the 
department under this section is subject to disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act, 
1976 PA 442, MCL 15.231 to 15.246.” 
 

• Sec. 401.1: “Beginning December 15, 2017, a person may apply to the board for state 
operating licenses in the categories of class A, B, C grower; processor; provisioning center; 
secure transporter; and safety compliance facility as provided in this act. The application 
shall be made under oath on a form provided by the board and shall contain information as 
prescribed by the board, including, but not limited to, all of the following: 
(j) A paper copy or electronic posting website reference for the ordinance or zoning 

restriction that the municipality adopted to authorize or restrict operating 1 or more 
marihuana facilities in the municipality. 

(k) A copy of the notice informing the municipality by registered mail that the applicant has 
applied for a license under this act. The applicant shall also certify that it has delivered 
the notice to the municipality or will do so by 10 days after the date the applicant submits 
the application for a license to the board.” 

 
• Sec. 401.6: “By 10 days after the date the applicant submits an application to the board, the 

applicant shall notify the municipality by registered mail that it has applied for a license 
under this act.”  
 

• Sec. 503.1: “A secure transporter license authorizes the license to store and transport 
marihuana and money associated with the purchase or sale of marihuana between 
marihuana facilities for a fee upon request of a person with legal custody of that marihuana 
or money. It does not authorize transport to a registered qualifying patient or registered 
primary caregiver. If a secure transporter has its primary place of business in a municipality 
that has adopted an ordinance under section 205 authorizing that marihuana facility, the 
secure transporter may travel through any municipality.” 

 
 

Does a municipal ordinance have to opt in or opt out for 
medical facilities?  
If a municipality intends to authorize the operation of medical marijuana facilities within the 
municipality, the municipality must adopt an ordinance that specifically authorizes the operation 



MRA (New Oct-2020) 
5 

of medical marijuana facilities within the municipality. If no ordinance is in place, the Marijuana 
Regulatory Agency will not issue a license to a facility in that municipality. 
 
 
Can the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) tell a 
municipality what should be included in the municipality’s 
ordinance and zoning regulations? 
The MRA does not provide legal advice or interpretation regarding issues that fall under 
municipal authority. Please review Section 205 of the Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing 
Act for information about municipal authority regarding ordinance and zoning regulations. 

If you still have questions after your review, you may wish to consider consulting with an 
attorney. 
 
 
Does the Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act prohibit facilities 
from being within a certain distance to a school? 
No, but the municipality may have ordinance or zoning requirements that require a facility be a 
certain distance from the school. For more information please review Section 205 of the Medical 
Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act or contact the municipality where your facility will operate. 
 
 
Can the municipality charge an application fee? 
Yes, pursuant to Section 205.2. of the Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act (MMFLA):  

“A municipal ordinance may establish an annual, nonrefundable fee of not more than $5,000.00 
to help defray administrative and enforcement costs associated with the operation of a 
marihuana facility in the municipality.”  
 
 
How does the medical marijuana facility licensing process 
work? 
The medical marijuana facility licensing process is a two process step: 
 
Prequalification (Step 1) Application 

The first step in the process is prequalification. During prequalification, the Marijuana Regulatory 
Agency (MRA) vets the entities and individuals who are applicants for the proposed medical 
marijuana facility by conducing criminal and financial background checks to verify their eligibility 
for licensure.  

If the applicant is denied for prequalification, the MRA sends the applicant a Notice of Denial 
letter advising the applicant the prequalification application is denied. Denied applicants have 21 
days to request a public investigative hearing. At the hearing, the applicant has an opportunity 
to demonstrate they are eligible for licensure. After the public investigative hearing, the 

http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(csax21fncniytywwetpynpbv))/mileg.aspx?page=GetObject&objectname=mcl-333-27205
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(csax21fncniytywwetpynpbv))/mileg.aspx?page=GetObject&objectname=mcl-333-27205
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(csax21fncniytywwetpynpbv))/mileg.aspx?page=GetObject&objectname=mcl-333-27205
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf
Linda
Highlight



MRA (New Oct-2020) 
6 

Executive Director of the MRA either affirms or reverses the Licensing Division’s decision to 
deny the application. If the Executive Director affirms the decision to deny the application, the 
applicant has the ability to pursue additional legal action in the courts to reverse the decision. 

If the applicant is approved for prequalification, the MRA sends the applicant a Notice of 
Determination letter advising the applicant that prequalification status has been granted and is 
approved for two years.  
 
Facility License (Step 2) Application 

The second step in the medical marijuana facilities licensing process is the facility license 
application. During the facility license application process, the MRA reviews the facility license 
application documents and requests that the MRA Enforcement Division (Field Operations) and 
the Bureau of Fire Services (BFS), if applicable, inspect the facility. 

Facility inspections are conducted after all facility license application deficiencies have been 
resolved. The MRA will not perform building inspections if Attestation I – Confirmation of Section 
205 Compliance - Part 1: Municipality has not been completed by the municipality.  

Please note that a facility license application may be denied. Some reasons for denial include, 
but are not limited to, the applicant’s failure to resolve application deficiencies or lack of 
municipal authorization to operate.  

If a facility license application is denied, the MRA sends the applicant a Notice of Denial letter 
advising the applicant the facility license application is denied. Denied applicants have 21 days 
to request a public investigative hearing. At the hearing, the applicant has an opportunity to 
demonstrate they are eligible for licensure. After the public investigative hearing, the Executive 
Director of the MRA either affirms or reverses the Licensing Division’s decision to deny the 
application. If the Executive Director affirms the decision to deny the application, the applicant 
has the ability to pursue additional legal action in the courts to reverse the decision. 

If the MRA approves the facility license application, a state license will be issued to the applicant 
after the regulatory assessment fee is paid. 
 
Renewal Application  

A medical marijuana facility license is issued for a one-year period from the date of the 
licensee’s original licensure approval. If a licensee decides to renew their license, they will need 
to submit a renewal application. 

During the renewal process, the licensee must submit the licensure fee payment and a renewal 
application prior to the licensee’s expiration date. The MRA reviews the renewal application to 
ensure the facility is compliant with tax obligations, municipal ordinances, and the MRA’s rules 
and regulations. 

If the MRA approves the renewal application, the expiration date of the state license is extended 
by one year. 
 
 

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Attestation_I_657491_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Attestation_I_657491_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/mra/0,9306,7-386-82631---,00.html
https://www.michigan.gov/mra/0,9306,7-386-82631---,00.html


MRA (New Oct-2020) 
7 

What type of licenses are available under the Medical 
Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act (MMFLA)? 
The following licenses types are available under the MMFLA and associated administrative 
rules: 

• Class A Grower (may grow up to 500 marijuana plants) 
• Class B Grower (may grow up to 1,000 marijuana plants) 
• Class C Grower (may grow up to 1,500 marijuana plants) 
• Processor 
• Provisioning Center 
• Safety Compliance Facility 
• Secure Transporter 
 
 

What are the touchpoints between the Marijuana Regulatory 
Agency (MRA) and municipalities during the medical 
marijuana facility licensing process? 
The following touchpoints exist between the MRA and municipalities during the medical 
marijuana facility licensing process: 
 
Attestation I – Confirmation of Section 205 Compliance - Part 1: Municipality   

The medical marijuana facility license application (Step 2) requires that Attestation I – 
Confirmation of Section 205 Compliance - Part 1: Municipality be completed by the municipal 
clerk or designee of the municipality in which the proposed facility will be located. 

After signing the attestation in the presence of a notary, the municipal clerk or designee should 
return the form to the applicant so the applicant can submit the attestation with their facility 
license application. 

By signing this attestation, the municipality is attesting the municipality has adopted an 
ordinance authorizing the operation of medical marijuana facilities within the municipality and 
the proposed facility is in compliance with all municipal regulations and ordinances. The 
municipality is also confirming that they will report any changes to municipal ordinances adopted 
under Section 205 of the Medical Marihuana Facilities Act (MMFLA) and will report any 
violations of municipal regulations or ordinances to MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov. 

If the municipality signs this attestation, the MRA will consider the applicant compliant with all 
municipal regulations and will approve the applicant for a medical marijuana facility license if all 
licensing requirements have been met. 

If the municipality does not sign this attestation, the MRA will not request or perform the 
required inspections to determine if the applicant has met all licensing requirements. 
 
Certified Mail Receipt with Letter Sent to Municipality 

Section 401.1 (k) of the MMFLA requires that an applicant send the MRA a copy of the notice 
informing the municipality by registered mail that the applicant has applied for a license under 

http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/mra/0,9306,7-386-82631---,00.html
https://www.michigan.gov/mra/0,9306,7-386-82631---,00.html
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Attestation_I_657491_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Attestation_I_657491_7.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(csax21fncniytywwetpynpbv))/mileg.aspx?page=GetObject&objectname=mcl-333-27205
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf
mailto:MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(csax21fncniytywwetpynpbv))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-333-27401
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf


MRA (New Oct-2020) 
8 

the MMFLA. The applicant shall also certify that it has delivered the notice to the municipality or 
will do so by 10 days after the date the applicant submits the application for a license…”  

The medical marijuana facility license application checklist states that the MRA requires a copy 
of the certified mail receipt along with the letter that was sent to the municipality notifying the 
municipality that the applicant’s facility application was submitted to the MRA. 

Page 9 of the facility license application, under Part 2, requires the facility’s municipality 
information. This section also asks for information on the certified mail receipt – if the notice was 
sent and the date the notice was sent  to the municipality.  
 
Notification of State Operating License Determination – Granted: 

This determination letter is sent to the municipality after the facility license application has been 
approved, the regulatory assessment fee has been paid, and the license has been issued. This 
letter is sent by email to the email address provided in the “Clerk (or designee) Email Address” 
field of Attestation I: Part 1. The subject line of this email will be “Notification of State Operating 
License Determination – Entity Name” (e.g., Notification of State Operating License 
Determination – Michigan Marijuana LLC). The municipality determination letter of approval will 
be provided as an attachment. 
 
Notification of State Operating License Determination – Denied: 

This determination letter is sent to the municipality after a facility license application has been 
denied. This letter is sent by email to the email address provided in the “Clerk (or designee) 
Email Address” field of Attestation I: Part 1. The subject line of this email will be “Notification of 
State Operating License Determination – Entity Name” (e.g., Notification of State Operating 
License Determination – Michigan Marijuana LLC). The municipality determination letter of 
denial will be provided as an attachment. 

Please note that an application is not officially denied unless an applicant fails to request a 
public investigative hearing or the applicant has exhausted all administrative remedies and legal 
appeals for the denial. Therefore, a municipality will not receive this letter until an applicant is 
officially denied. 
 
Attestation I – Renewal 

The medical marijuana facility license renewal application requires that Attestation I – Renewal  
be completed by the municipal clerk or designee of the municipality in which the licensee is 
operating. After signing the attestation in the presence of a notary, the municipal clerk or 
designee should return the form to the licensee so it may be submited with their license renewal 
application.  

Within the attestation, the municipal clerk or designee must indicate if the licensee has or has 
not violated a municipal ordinance or zoning regulation pursuant to Section 205 of the MMFLA. 
If a violation has occurred, the municipal clerk or designee should provide an attachment along 
with the attestation describing the violation.  

The municipali clerk or designee must also indiciate if there has been a change to a municipal 
ordinance or zoning regulation adopted under Section 205 of the MMFLA. If a change has 
occurred, the municipal clerk or designee should provide an attachment along with the 
attestation describing the change. 

http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Facility_License_Application_Checklist_657484_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Disclosure_-_Facility_License_Application_689520_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/training/Attestation_I_-_Renewal_661672_7.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(csax21fncniytywwetpynpbv))/mileg.aspx?page=GetObject&objectname=mcl-333-27205
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(csax21fncniytywwetpynpbv))/mileg.aspx?page=GetObject&objectname=mcl-333-27205
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf


MRA (New Oct-2020) 
9 

If the municipality signs the this attestation, the MRA will consider the licensee compliant with all 
municipal regulations and will renew the licensee’s medical marijuana facility license if all 
licensing requirements have been met. 
 
Violations of Municipal Ordinances or Zoning Regulations 

The municipality should report any violations of municipal ordinances or zoning regulations by 
licensees located in the municipality to MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov. 
 

Changes to Municipal Ordinances or Zoning Regulations 

The municipality should report any changes to municipal ordinances or zoning regulations 
related to medical marijuana facilities to MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov. 
 
 
How do municipalities confirm to the Marijuana Regulatory 
Agency (MRA) that an applicant is authorized to operate a 
medical facility in the municipality? 
Municipalities confirm to the MRA that an applicant is authorized to operate a medical marijuana 
facility in the municipality  by completing Attestation I – Confirmation of Section 205 Compliance 
- Part 1: Municipality. 

If confirmation of municipal compliance is received, the MRA will approve the applicant for a 
medical marijuana facility license if all licensing requirements have been met. 
 
 
Does an applicant have to notify the municipality when the 
applicant submits a facility license (Step 2) application? 
Yes. Section 401.1 (k) of the Medical Marihuana Facilities Act (MMFLA) requires that an 
applicant send the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) a copy of the notice informing the 
municipality by registered mail that the applicant has applied for a license under the MMFLA. 
The applicant shall also certify that it has delivered the notice to the municipality or will do so by 
10 days after the date the applicants submits the application for a license…”  

The medical marijuana facility license application checklist states that the MRA requires a copy 
of the certified mail receipt along with the letter that was sent to the municipality notifying the 
municipality that the applicant’s facility application was submitted to MRA. 

Page 9 of the facility license application, under Part 2, requires the facility’s municipality 
information. This section also asks for information on the certified mail receipt – if the notice was 
sent and the date the notice was sent  to the municipality.  
 
 

mailto:MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov
mailto:MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Attestation_I_657491_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Attestation_I_657491_7.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(csax21fncniytywwetpynpbv))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-333-27401
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Facility_License_Application_Checklist_657484_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Disclosure_-_Facility_License_Application_689520_7.pdf


MRA (New Oct-2020) 
10 

Is a municipality notified when a facility license (Step 2) 
application is approved or denied? 
Yes. The Marijuana Regulatory Agency will notify the municipality after a facility license 
application determination has been made. See below for a description of the two letters.  
 
Notification of State Operating License Determination – Granted: 

This determination letter is sent to the municipality after the facility license application has been 
approved, the regulatory assessment fee has been paid, and the license has been issued. This 
letter is sent by email to the email address provided in the “Clerk (or designee) Email Address” 
field of Attestation I – Confirmation of Section 205 Compliance - Part 1: Municipality. The 
subject line of this email will be “Notification of State Operating License Determination – Entity 
Name” (e.g., Notification of State Operating License Determination – Michigan Marijuana LLC). 
The municipality determination letter of approval will be provided as an attachment. 
 
Notification of State Operating License Determination – Denied: 

This determination letter is sent to the municipality after the facility license application has been 
denied. This letter is sent by email to the email address provided in the “Clerk (or designee) 
Email Address” field of Attestation I – Confirmation of Section 205 Compliance - Part 1: 
Municipality. The subject line of this email will be “Notification of State Operating License 
Determination – Entity Name” (e.g., Notification of State Operating License Determination – 
Michigan Marijuana LLC). The municipality determination letter of denial will be provided as an 
attachment. 
 
Please note that an application is not officially denied unless an applicant fails to request a 
public investigative hearing or the applicant has exhausted all administrative remedies and legal 
appeals for the denial. Therefore, a municipality will not receive this letter until an applicant is 
officially denied. 
 
 
When an applicant renews a license, does the applicant have 
to confirm to the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) that he 
or she still has municipal authorization to operate a facility 
within the municipality? 
Yes. The municipality is required to sign Attestation I – Renewal when an applicant renews their 
medical marijuana facility license. If the municipality signs this attestation, the MRA will consider 
the licensee compliant with all municipal regulations and will renew the licensee’s medical 
marijuana facility license. 

By signing this attestation, the municipality is attesting that they are in compliance with the 
municipal ordinance requirement of Section 205 of the MMFLA. The municipality is also 
confirming that they are reporting changes to municipal ordinances adopted under Section 205 
of the MMFLA and have reported any violations of municipal regulations or ordinances to MRA-
Enforcement@michigan.gov. 

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Attestation_I_657491_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Attestation_I_657491_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Attestation_I_657491_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/training/Attestation_I_-_Renewal_661672_7.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(csax21fncniytywwetpynpbv))/mileg.aspx?page=GetObject&objectname=mcl-333-27205
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(csax21fncniytywwetpynpbv))/mileg.aspx?page=GetObject&objectname=mcl-333-27205
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(r2d5rvs0fba4hq3pyswrnn1s))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-281-of-2016.pdf
mailto:MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov
mailto:MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov


MRA (New Oct-2020) 
11 

After signing the attestation in the presence of a notary, the municipal clerk or designee should 
return the form to the applicant so the applicant can submit the attestation with the renewal 
application. 
 
 
 
 
  



MRA (New Oct-2020) 
12 

Adult-Use Establishment Licensing Questions 
What provisions in the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of 
Marihuana Act (MRTMA) are relevant to municipalities? 
Section 6 of the MRTMA is relevant for municipalities that are considering allowing or restricting  
adult-use marijuana establishments’ operations within the municipality.  

Below are the relevant provisions in the MRTMA related to municipalities. The Marijuana 
Regulatory Agency (MRA) is unable to provide legal interpretation of statutory provisions that 
fall under municipal authority. If clarification on any of the provisions below that fall under 
municipal authority is needed, the MRA recommends that you consider consulting an attorney: 

• Sec. 3.(q).: “’Municipality’ means a city, village, or township.” 
 

• Sec. 6.1.: “Except as provided in section 4, a municipality may completely prohibit or limit 
the number of marihuana establishments within its boundaries.” 
 

• Sec. 6.2.: “A municipality may adopt other ordinances that are not unreasonably 
impracticable and do not conflict with this act or any rule promulgated pursuant to this act 
and that:  
(b) establish reasonable restrictions on public signs related to marihuana establishments; 
(c) regulate the time, place, and manner of operation of marihuana establishments and of 

the production, manufacture, sale, or display of marihuana accessories; 
(d) authorize the sale of marihuana for consumption in designated areas that are not 

accessible to persons under 21 years of age, or at special events in limited areas and for 
a limited time; and 

(e) designate a violation of the ordinance and provide for a penalty for that violation by a 
marihuana establishment, provided that such violation is a civil infraction and such 
penalty is a civil fine of not more than $500.” 

 
• Sec. 6.3.: “A municipality may adopt an ordinance requiring a marihuana establishment with 

a physical location within the municipality to obtain a municipal license, but may not impose 
qualifications for licensure that conflict with this act or rules promulgated by the department.” 
 

• Sec. 6.4.: “A municipality may charge an annual fee of not more than $5,000 to defray 
application, administrative, and enforcement costs associated with the operation of the 
marihuana establishment in the municipality.”  
 

• Sec. 6.5.: “A municipality may not adopt an ordinance that restricts the transportation of 
marihuana through the municipality or prohibits a marihuana grower, a marihuana 
processor, and a marihuana retailer from operating within a single facility or from operation 
at a location shared with a marihuana facility operating pursuant to the medical marihuana 
facilities licensing act, 2016 PA 281, MCL 333.27101 to 333.27801.” 

 
• Sec. 9.1.: “Each application for a state license must be submitted to the department. Upon 

receipt of a complete application and application fee, the department shall forward a copy of 
the application to the municipality in which the marihuana establishment is to be located, 
determine whether the applicant and the premises qualify for the state license and comply 
with this act, and issue the appropriate state license or send the applicant a notice of 

https://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(0ul4g15szr3e53h2utjzlptu))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-333-27956
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
Linda
Highlight



MRA (New Oct-2020) 
13 

rejection setting forth specific reasons why the department did not approve the state license 
application within 90 days. 
 

• Sec. 9.3.: “Except as otherwise provided in this section, the department shall approve a 
state license application and issue a state license if: 
(b) the municipality in which the proposed marihuana establishment will be located does not 

notify the department that the proposed marihuana establishment is not in compliance 
with an ordinance consistent with section 6 of this act and in effect at the time of 
application; 

(c) the property where the proposed marihuana establishment is to be located is not within 
an area zoned exclusively for residential use and is not within 1,000 feet of a pre-existing 
public or private school providing education in kindergarten or any of grades 1 through 
12, unless a municipality adopts an ordinance that reduces this distance requirement; 

 
• Sec. 9.4.: “If a municipality limits the number of marihuana establishments that may be 

licensed in the municipality pursuant to section 6 of this act and that limit prevents the 
department from issuing a state license to all applicants who meet the requirements of 
subsection 3 of this section, the municipality shall decide among competing applications by 
a competitive process intended to select applicants who are best suited to operate in 
compliance with this act within the municipality.” 
 

• Sec. 14.3.: “The department shall expend money in the [marihuana regulation] fund first for 
the implementation, administration, and enforcement of this act, and second, until 2022 or 
for at least two years, to provide $20 million annually to one or more clinical trials that are 
approved by the United States food and drug administration and sponsored by a non-profit 
organization or researcher within an academic institution researching the efficacy of 
marihuana in treating the medical conditions of United States armed services veterans and 
preventing veteran suicide. Upon appropriation, unexpended balances must be allocated as 
follows: 
(a) 15% to municipalities in which a marihuana retail store or a marihuana microbusiness is 

located, allocated in proportion to the number of marihuana retail stores and marihuana 
microbusinesses within the municipality; 

 
 
Does a municipal ordinance have to opt in or opt out for 
adult-use establishments? 
To avoid an adult-use establishment license from being issued within the municipality, a 
municipality must opt out of the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act (MRTMA) 
by passing a municipal ordinance that completely prohibits adult-use marijuana establishments. 

The municipality is also able to opt in to the MRTMA by passing a municipal ordinance that 
authorizes the operation of marijuana establishments within the municipality. An authorizing 
ordinance may also limit the number of marijuana establishments that operate within the 
municipality. 

For further information on municipal ordinances, refer to Section 6 of the MRTMA. 
 

 

http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
https://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(0ul4g15szr3e53h2utjzlptu))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-333-27956
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
Linda
Highlight



MRA (New Oct-2020) 
14 

Can the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) tell a 
municipality what should be included in the municipality’s 
ordinance and zoning regulations? 
The MRA does not provide legal advice or interpretation regarding issues that fall under 
municipal authority. Please review Section 6 of the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of 
Marijuana Act for information about municipal authority over adult-use marijuana 
establishments. 

If you still have questions after your review, you may wish to consider consulting with an 
attorney. 
 
 
Does the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act 
(MRTMA) prohibit adult-use establishments from being 
within a certain distance to a school? 
Yes. Pursuant to Section 9.3.(c) of the MRTMA, the property where the proposed marihuana 
establishment will be located cannot be within 1,000 feet of a pre-existing public or private 
school providing education in kindergarten or any of grades 1 through 12, unless a municipality 
adopts an ordinance that reduces this distance requirement.  
 
Please note that a municipality may exercise its authority to the reduce the distance via 
ordinance in two ways: 
 

1) Define the way in the which the distance is measured (e.g. door to door, along streets), 
OR 

2) Reduce the distance the requirement outright (e.g. 500 feet instead of 1,000).  
 
If a municipality has not adopted an ordinance reducing the distance requirement, the Marijuana 
Regulatory Agency (MRA) will not issue a license for an adult-use establishment that is within 
1,000 feet of the school. The MRA will measure the 1,000 feet perimeter as the direct distance 
from property line to property line when making this determination.  
 
 
Can the municipality charge an application fee? 
Yes. Pursuant to Section 6.4. of the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act:  

“A municipality may charge an annual fee of not more than $5,000 to defray application, 
administrative, and enforcement costs associated with the operation of the marihuana 
establishment in the municipality.”  
 
 

https://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(0ul4g15szr3e53h2utjzlptu))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-333-27956
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
https://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(0ul4g15szr3e53h2utjzlptu))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-333-27959
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
https://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(0ul4g15szr3e53h2utjzlptu))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-333-27956
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
Linda
Highlight

Linda
Highlight



MRA (New Oct-2020) 
15 

Does money collected from adult-use establishments taxes 
or fees go to municipalities? 
Yes, a portion does but not immediately. Money in the fund is first used to repay the initial 
appropriation from the general fund used to implement the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of 
Marihuana Act (MRTMA). Next, $20M per year for at least 2 years is used for Food and Drug 
Administration (FDA) approved clinical trials. After that money is distributed to municipalities, 
counties, the school aid fund, and the transportation fund. Please see the relevant MRTMA 
provision below. 

Pursuant to Section 14 of the MRTMA: 

  1. The marihuana regulation fund is created in the state treasury. The department of treasury 
shall deposit all money collected under section 13 of this act and the department shall deposit 
all fees collected in the fund. The state treasurer shall direct the investment of the fund and shall 
credit the fund interest and earnings from fund investments. The department shall administer 
the fund for auditing purposes. Money in the fund shall not lapse to the general fund. 
 
  2. Funds for the initial activities of the department to implement this act shall be appropriated 
from the general fund. The department shall repay any amount appropriated under this 
subsection from proceeds in the fund. 
 
  3. The department shall expend money in the fund first for the implementation, administration, 
and enforcement of this act, and second, until 2022 or for at least two years, to provide $20 
million annually to one or more clinical trials that are approved by the United States food and 
drug administration and sponsored by a non-profit organization or researcher within an 
academic institution researching the efficacy of marihuana in treating the medical conditions of 
United States armed services veterans and preventing veteran suicide. Upon appropriation, 
unexpended balances must be allocated as follows: 
 
  (a) 15% to municipalities in which a marihuana retail store or a marihuana 
microbusiness is located, allocated in proportion to the number of marihuana retail 
stores and marihuana microbusinesses within the municipality; 
 
  (b) 15% to counties in which a marihuana retail store or a marihuana microbusiness is located, 
allocated in proportion to the number of marihuana retail stores and marihuana microbusinesses 
within the county; 
 
  (c) 35% to the school aid fund to be used for K-12 education; and  
 
  (d) 35% to the Michigan transportation fund to be used for the repair and maintenance of roads 
and bridges. 
 
 
How does the adult-use licensing process work? 
The adult-use establishment licensing process is divided into two steps: the prequalification 
application and the establishment license application. 
 
 

http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
https://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(0ul4g15szr3e53h2utjzlptu))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-333-27964
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf


MRA (New Oct-2020) 
16 

Prequalification (Step 1) Application 

The first step in the process is prequalification. During prequalification, the Marijuana Regulatory 
Agency (MRA) vets the entities and individuals who are applicants for the proposed adult-use 
marijuana establishment by conducing criminal and financial background checks to verify their 
eligibility for licensure.  

If the applicant is denied prequalification, the MRA sends the applicant a Notice of Denial letter 
advising the applicant the prequalification application is denied. Denied applicants have 21 days 
to request a public investigative hearing. At the hearing, the applicant has an opportunity to 
demonstrate they are eligible for licensure. After the public investigative hearing, the Executive 
Director of the MRA either affirms or reverses the Licensing Division’s decision to deny the 
application. If the Executive Director affirms the decision to deny the application, the applicant 
has the ability to pursue additional legal action in the courts to reverse the decision. 

If the applicant is approved for prequalification, the MRA sends the applicant a Notice of 
Determination letter advising the applicant that prequalification status has been granted and is 
approved for two years.  
 
Establishment License (Step 2) Application 

The second step in the adult-use establishment licensing process is the establishment license 
application. During the establishment license application process, the MRA reviews the 
establishment license application documents and requests that the MRA Enforcement Division 
(Field Operations) and the Bureau of Fire Services (BFS), if applicable, inspect the 
establishment. 

Establishment inspections are conducted after all establishment license application deficiencies 
have been resolved. The MRA will not perform building inspections if Attestation 2-C -
Confirmation of Section 6 Compliance - Part 1: Municipality has not been completed by the 
municipality. 

Please note that an establishment license application may be denied. Some reasons for denial 
include, but are not limited to, the applicant’s failure to resolve application deficiencies or lack of 
municipal authorization to operate.  

If an establishment license application is denied, the MRA sends the applicant a Notice of 
Denial letter advising the applicant the establishment license application is denied. Denied 
applicants have 21 days to request a public investigative hearing. At the hearing, the applicant 
has an opportunity to demonstrate they are eligible for licensure. After the public investigative 
hearing, the Executive Director of the MRA either affirms or reverses the Licensing Division’s 
decision to deny the application. If the Executive Director affirms the decision to deny the 
application, the applicant has the ability to pursue additional legal action in the courts to reverse 
the decision. 

If the MRA approves the establishment license application, a state license will be issued to the 
applicant after the initial licensure fee is paid. 
 
Renewal 

An adult-use license is issued for a one-year period from the date of the licensee’s original 
licensure approval. If a licensee decides to renew their license, they must submit a renewal 
application. 
 

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Marihuana_Establishment_License_Application_-_Step_2_667011_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Marihuana_Establishment_License_Application_-_Step_2_667011_7.pdf


MRA (New Oct-2020) 
17 

During the renewal process, the licensee must submit the licensure fee payment and a renewal 
application prior to the licensee’s expiration date. The MRA reviews the renewal application to 
ensure the establishment is compliant with tax obligations, municipal ordinances, and the MRA 
rules and regulations.  
 
If the MRA approves the renewal application, the expiration date of the state license is extended 
by one year. 
 
 
What types of licenses are available under the Michigan 
Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act (MRTMA)? 
The following license types are available under the MRTMA and associated administrative rules: 
 

• Class A Marijuana Grower (may grow up to 100 plants) 
• Class B Marijuana Grower (may grow up to 500 plants) 
• Class C Marijuana Grower (may grow up to 2,000 plants) 
• Excess Marijuana Grower (may grow up to 2,000 plants, depending on the adult-use 

licensee’s medical marijuana plant allowance) 
• Marijuana Microbusiness (may grow up to 150 plants, process, and retail) 
• Marijuana Processor 
• Marijuana Retailer 
• Marijuana Safety Compliance Facility 
• Marijuana Secure Transporter 
• Designed Consumption Establishment 
• Marijuana Event Organizer 
• Temporary Marijuana Event 
 
 

What are the touchpoints between the Marijuana Regulatory 
Agency (MRA) and municipalities during the adult-use 
licensing process? 
The following touchpoints exist between the MRA and municipalities during the adult-use 
licensing process: 
 
Attestation 2-C – Confirmation of Section 6 Compliance - Part 1: Municipality   

The adult-use establishment license (Step 2) application requires that Attestation 2-C -
Confirmation of Section 6 Compliance - Part 1: Municipality be completed by the municipal clerk 
or designee of the municipality in which the proposed establishment will be located. 
 
After signing the attestation in the presence of a notary, the municipal clerk or designee should 
return the form to the applicant so the applicant can submit the attestation with their 
establishment license application. 
 
By signing this attestation, the municipality is attesting the municipality has not adopted an 
ordinance prohibiting adult-use marijuana establishments within the municipality and the 
proposed establishment is in compliance with all municipal ordinances and zoning regulations. 

https://www.michigan.gov/mra/0,9306,7-386-82631---,00.html
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/mra/0,9306,7-386-82631---,00.html
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Marihuana_Establishment_License_Application_-_Step_2_667011_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Marihuana_Establishment_License_Application_-_Step_2_667011_7.pdf


MRA (New Oct-2020) 
18 

The municipality is also confirming that they will report any changes to municipal ordinances 
adopted under Section 6 of the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act (MRTMA) 
and will report any violations of municipal regulations or ordinances to MRA-
Enforcement@michigan.gov. 
 
If the municipality signs this attestation, the MRA will consider the applicant compliant with all 
municipal regulations and will approve the applicant for an adult-use establishment license if all 
licensing requirements have been met. 
 
If the municipality does not sign this attestation, the MRA will not request or perform the 
required inspections to determine if the applicant has met all licensing requirements. 
 
Municipal Notification Letter 

After receiving an establishment license application with a completed Attestation 2-C -
Confirmation of Section 6 Compliance - Part 1: Municipality, the MRA sends a municipality 
notification letter by email to the email address provided in the “Clerk (or designee) Email 
Address” field of this attestation. This email will come from MRA-
AdultUseLicensing@michigan.gov. The subject line of this email will be “Municipality Notification 
– Applicant Name - Application Number” (e.g., Municipality Notification – Michigan Marijuana 
LLC AU-RA-000099). The municipality notification letter will be provided as an attachment and 
includes the applicant name, supplemental applicant names, address of the proposed 
establishment, and the type of marijuana establishment license the applicant applied for. Due to 
the FOIA provision in Section 9(7) of the the MRTMA [“7. Information obtained from an applicant 
related to licensure under this act is exempt from disclosure under the freedom of information 
act, 1976 PA 442, MCL 15.231 to 15.246.”], application records are not disclosed.  

After the municipality receives the municipality notification letter, no action is required by the 
municipality unless the applicant named in the letter is non-compliant with a municipal ordinance 
adopted under Section 6 of the MRTMA. If the applicant is in violation of a municipal ordinance 
adopted under Section 6 of the MRTMA, the municipality should notify the MRA pursuant to the 
instructions provided in the letter. 
 
Confirmation of Municipal Compliance 

After an establishment license application has passed the required inspections, the adult-use 
licensing analyst will request confirmation of municipal compliance to ensure no changes have 
occurred within the municipality or with the applicant since the Municipal Notification Letter was 
sent. The email will come from noreply@accela.com with the subject “ Confirmation of Municipal 
Compliance.” 
 
Pursuant to the instructions in the email, the municipality must send an email to MRA-
AdultUseLicensing@michigan.gov confirming that no ordinances have been adopted prohibiting 
adult-use marijuana establishments and that the proposed establishment is in compliance with 
all regulations and ordinances within the municipality. The MRA will not move forward with the 
application until confirmation of municipal compliance has been received.  
 
Due to the statutory requirement in MRTMA that adult-use marijuana establishment applications 
must be approved or denied within 90 days of receipt, the adult-use analyst will follow up on the 
confirmation of municipal compliance email via phone or email as necessary until a response is 
received. 

https://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(0ul4g15szr3e53h2utjzlptu))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-333-27956
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
mailto:MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov
mailto:MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Marihuana_Establishment_License_Application_-_Step_2_667011_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Marihuana_Establishment_License_Application_-_Step_2_667011_7.pdf
mailto:MRA-AdultUseLicensing@michigan.gov
mailto:MRA-AdultUseLicensing@michigan.gov
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-333-27959
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
https://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(0ul4g15szr3e53h2utjzlptu))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-333-27956
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
https://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(0ul4g15szr3e53h2utjzlptu))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-333-27956
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
mailto:noreply@accela.com
mailto:MRA-AdultUseLicensing@michigan.gov
mailto:MRA-AdultUseLicensing@michigan.gov
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf


MRA (New Oct-2020) 
19 

 
 

Municipality Determination Letter 

The municipality determination letter is sent to the municipality after the establishment license 
application determination has been made. 

The municipality determination letter is sent by email to the email address provided in the “Clerk 
(or designee) Email Address” field of Attestation 2-C -Confirmation of Section 6 Compliance - 
Part 1: Municipality. The subject line of this email will be “Municipality Determination Letter – 
Applicant Name – Application Number” (e.g., Municipality Determination Letter – Michigan 
Marijuana LLC – AU-RA-001234). The municipality determination letter will be provided as an 
attachment and will indicate the applicant name, application number, address of the 
establishment, and whether the license has been approved or the application has been denied.  

If the license has been approved, this letter is sent after the initial licensure fee has been paid 
and the license has been issued. This email will come from MRA-
AdultUseLicensing@michigan.gov.  

If the license has been denied, this letter is sent if the applicant did not request a public 
investigative hearing within 21 days the denial determination or if the result of a public 
investigative hearing remains a denial determination. This email will come from 
noreply@accela.com. 

Please note that an application is not officially denied unless an applicant fails to request a 
public investigative hearing or the applicant has exhausted all administrative remedies and legal 
appeals for the denial. Therefore, a municipality will not receive this letter until an applicant is 
officially denied. 
 
Attestation R-B – Confirmation of Section 6 Compliance 

The adult-use establishment license renewal application requires that Attestation R-B – 
Confirmation of Section 6 Compliance be completed by the municipal clerk or designee of the 
municipality in which the licensee is operating. After signing the attestation in the presence of a 
notary, the municipal clerk or designee should return the form to the licensee so it may be 
submitted with their license renewal application. 
 
Within the attestation, the municipal clerk of designee must indicate if the licensee has or has 
not violated a municipal ordinance or zoning regulation pursuant to Section 6 of the MRTMA. If 
a violation has occurred, the municipal clerk or designee should provide an attachment along 
with the attestation.  
 
The municipal clerk or designee must also indicate if there has been a change to a municipal 
ordinance or zoning regulation adopted pursuant to Section 6 of the MRTMA. If a change has 
occurred, the municipal clerk of designee should provide an attachment describing the violation 
along with the attestation. 
 
If the municipality signs this attestation, the MRA will consider the licensee compliant with all 
municipal regulations and will renew the licensee’s adult-use establishment license if all 
licensing requirements have been met. 
 
 

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Marihuana_Establishment_License_Application_-_Step_2_667011_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Marihuana_Establishment_License_Application_-_Step_2_667011_7.pdf
mailto:MRA-AdultUseLicensing@michigan.gov
mailto:MRA-AdultUseLicensing@michigan.gov
mailto:noreply@accela.com
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/mra/Attestation_R-B_-_Confirmation_of_Section_6_Compliance_696366_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/mra/Attestation_R-B_-_Confirmation_of_Section_6_Compliance_696366_7.pdf
https://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(0ul4g15szr3e53h2utjzlptu))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-333-27956
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf
https://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(0ul4g15szr3e53h2utjzlptu))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-333-27956
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(nixjmarbx0t0vo4544owhu4t))/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Initiated-Law-1-of-2018.pdf


MRA (New Oct-2020) 
20 

Violations of Municipal Ordinances or Zoning Regulations 

The municipality should report any violations of municipal ordinances or zoning regulations by 
licensees located in the municipality to MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov. 
 
Changes to Municipal Ordinances or Zoning Regulations 

The municipality should report any changes to municipal ordinances or zoning regulations 
related to adult-use establishments to MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov. 
 
 
How do municipalities confirm to the Marijuana Regulatory 
Agency (MRA) that an adult-use applicant is compliant with 
municipal ordinances and zoning regulations? 
Municipalities confirm to the MRA that an adult-use applicant is in compliance with municipal 
ordinances and zoning regulations by completing Attestation 2-C -Confirmation of Section 6 
Compliance - Part 1: Municipality. 
 
Before a license is issued, the MRA will also send a Confirmation of Municipal Compliance 
email to the email address provided for the municipal clerk or designee to confirm that the 
information on the attestation is accurate and that no changes have occurred within the 
municipality or with the applicant since the attestation was signed. 

If confirmation of municipal compliance is received, the MRA will approve the applicant for an 
adult-use establishment license if all licensing requirements have been met. 
 
 
What happens after the municipality signs Attestation 2-C – 
Confirmation of Section 6 Compliance – Part 1: Municipality? 
After signing Attestation 2-C -Confirmation of Section 6 Compliance - Part 1: Municipality in the 
presence of a notary, the municipal clerk or designee should return the form to the applicant so 
it may be submitted with their establishment license (Step 2) application. 

If the municipality signs this attestation, the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) will consider 
the applicant compliant with all municipal regulations and will approve the applicant for an adult-
use establishment license if all licensing requirements have been met. 

If the municipality does not sign this attestation, the MRA will not request or perform the 
required inspections to determine if the applicant has met all licensing requirements. 
 
 
Does an applicant have to notify the municipality when they 
submit an adult-use establishment license (Step 2) 
application? 
No, the applicant is not required to notify the municipality upon submitting an adult-use 
establishment license application. However, the Marijuana Regulatory Agency will send a 

mailto:MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov
mailto:MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Marihuana_Establishment_License_Application_-_Step_2_667011_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Marihuana_Establishment_License_Application_-_Step_2_667011_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Marihuana_Establishment_License_Application_-_Step_2_667011_7.pdf
Linda
Highlight



MRA (New Oct-2020) 
21 

municipal notification letter by email to the email address provided in the “Clerk (or designee) 
Email Address” field of the completed Attestation 2-C -Confirmation of Section 6 Compliance - 
Part 1: Municipality notifying the municipality that an adult-use license has been applied for 
within the municipality. 
 
 
Is a municipality notified when an adult-use establishment 
license (Step 2) application is approved or denied? 
Yes. The Marjiuana Regulatory Agency will notify the municipality after an establishment license 
application determination has been made.  

This letter will be sent by email to the email address provided in the “Clerk (or designee) Email 
Address” field of Attestation 2-C -Confirmation of Section 6 Compliance - Part 1: Municipality. 
The subject line of this email will be “Municipality Determination Letter – Applicant Name – 
Application Number” (e.g., Municipality Determination Letter – Michigan Marijuana LLC – AU-
RA-001234). The municipality determination letter will be provided as an attachment and will 
indicate the applicant name, application number, address of the establishment, and whether the 
license has been granted or the application has been denied.  
 
 
When an adult-use licensee renews a license, do they have to 
confirm to the Marijuana Regulatory Agency that they are still 
compliant with municipal ordinances and zoning 
regulations? 
Yes. To confirm that an adult-use licensee is still compliant with municipal ordinances and 
zoning regulations when renewing an adult-use establishment license, the renewal application 
requires that Attestation R-B – Confirmation of Section 6 Compliance be completed by the 
municipal clerk or designee of the municipality in which the licensee is operating.   

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Marihuana_Establishment_License_Application_-_Step_2_667011_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Marihuana_Establishment_License_Application_-_Step_2_667011_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/Marihuana_Establishment_License_Application_-_Step_2_667011_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/mra/Attestation_R-B_-_Confirmation_of_Section_6_Compliance_696366_7.pdf


MRA (New Oct-2020) 
22 

Enforcement Questions 
When does the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) inspect 
a proposed marijuana business (medical facility or adult-use 
establishment) and what is included in the inspection? 
The MRA conducts several types of inspections of marijuana businesses: 
  
Pre-Licensure 

This inspection occurs after a marijuana business has applied to the MRA for a marijuana 
license and is in the Step 2 application phase. During this time, the MRA inspectors will 
communicate with the applicant and conduct an inspection of basic building requirements that 
need to be met in order to pass the required Pre-Licensure inspection. Some of these 
requirements include security cameras, partitioning from other businesses in certain cases, and 
a valid Certificate of Occupancy (or its equivalent) from the local municipality.  

Should a business not pass the Pre-Licensure inspection, the MRA inspectors will work with the 
applicant to bring them into compliance and a passing inspection or advise the MRA Licensing 
Division that the applicant is unable to pass this requirement. An inspection report is always 
generated and provided to the applicant after each inspection. 
  
30-Day Post-Licensure 

This inspection occurs approximately 30-calendar days after a licensee receives their marijuana 
license from the MRA. The focus is to bring the licensee into compliance with several functions 
that can only occur when a business has the license. This includes, but is not limited to, tagging 
of marijuana products with the statewide monitoring system (Metrc), product labelling 
compliance, employee suitability for employment and employee training, product storage 
compliance, adherence to the Executive Orders related to COVID, plant count limits, and more.  

The intent of this inspection is to highlight the multitude of rule requirements a new licensee 
must adhere to in order to remain in compliance with state statutes and rules. Any deficiencies 
are noted, and a re-inspection will be scheduled until the licensee passes. An inspection report 
is always generated and provided to the licensee after each inspection. 
  
Semi-Annual 

This inspection occurs approximately every six months and is similar to the 30-Day Post-
Licensure inspection in detail. This inspection is focused on ensuring the licensee maintains 
compliance with state statutes and rules. Any deficiencies are noted, and a re-inspection will be 
scheduled until the licensee passes. An inspection report is always generated and provided to 
the licensee after each inspection. 
  
Other 

This inspection occurs whenever a business reports a need for any change or modification they 
want to make to the physical structure or equipment at the business. The MRA also uses this 
inspection type at our discretion to conduct an inspection at a time of our choosing. Any 
deficiencies are noted, and a re-inspection will be scheduled until the licensee passes. An 
inspection report is always generated and provided to the licensee after each inspection. 



MRA (New Oct-2020) 
23 

What role does the Bureau of Fires Services have in the 
Marijuana Regulatory Agency’s (MRA) inspection process? 
The Bureau of Fire Services (BFS) conducts Pre-Licensure, Semi-Annual, and Other 
inspections just like the MRA. The BFS utilizes the NFPA 1 of 2018 fire code as a foundation of 
their inspections. Prior to some inspections, the BFS perform plan reviews of grow, 
microbusiness, and processor license types due to the fire risks associated with growing and 
processing marijuana, along with the possible presence of a multitude of chemicals.  

Like the MRA, the BFS inspectors and plan reviewers communicate with marijuana business 
applicants and licensees and perform inspections of the marijuana businesses in an effort to 
bring them into compliance with the NFPA 1 of 2018. Any deficiencies are noted, and a re-
inspection will be scheduled until the licensee passes, or the BFS will advise the MRA that the 
business is out of compliance. 
 
 

What role does a municipality play in the inspection 
process? 
The local municipality’s main role in state inspections is to issue a Certificate of Occupancy (or 
its equivalent) for the proposed marijuana business. Municipality personnel are always welcome 
to join the Marijuana Regulatory Agency and the Bureau of Fire Services inspections and they 
are always welcome to share any issues, concerns, or business deficiencies to MRA-
Enforcement@michigan.gov. 
 
 

Does a municipality need to provide an applicant for 
licensure with a certificate of occupancy?  
Yes, or its equivalent. This document is required for a proposed marijuana business to pass 
Pre-Licensure inspections and receive a state license. 
 
 

After an applicant is granted a license, does the Marijuana 
Regulatory Agency conduct additional inspections? 
Yes. Please see the answer to the FAQ “When does the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) 
inspect a facility or establishment and what is included in the inspection?” 
 
 

mailto:MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov
mailto:MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov


MRA (New Oct-2020) 
24 

If a municipality adopts an ordinance regarding medical 
facilities or adult-use establishments, should the 
municipality submit a copy of the ordinance to the Marijuana 
Regulatory Agency (MRA)? 
Yes. The MRA frequently updates documents located at www.michigan.gov/MRA that inform 
the public what municipalities do, or do not, permit regarding marijuana businesses. 
 
 
Does the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) monitor 
licensees and enforce compliance with municipal and zoning 
ordinances? 
The MRA does not enforce local municipal zoning ordinances. The MRA will, however, receive 
any report of non-compliance or judgment from local municipalities/courts and that information 
may have state licensing implications. Feel free to send this information to MRA-
Enforcement@michigan.gov. 
 
 
If a municipality determines that a licensee has violated a 
municipal ordinance, should the municipality report the 
violation to the Marijuana Regulatory Agency?  
Yes. Please report the violations to MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov. 
 
 
Is a municipality responsible for enforcing licensee’s 
compliance with the Medical Marijuana Facilities Licensing 
Act, Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act, and 
the administrative rules? 
Municipalities can enforce state statutes, the jurisdiction of creating and enforcing the 
administrative rules is incumbent on the Marijuana Regulatory Agency. 
 
 
If a municipality becomes aware of unlicensed or illegal 
marijuana operations, should the municipality report it to the 
Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA) or law enforcement? 
The municipality is always free to inform state and local law enforcement. If they inform the 
MRA, we will forward this information to the Michigan State Police. 
 

http://www.michigan.gov/MRA
mailto:MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov
mailto:MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov
mailto:MRA-Enforcement@michigan.gov
https://www.michigan.gov/mra/0,9306,7-386-82631---,00.html


June 24, 2020 

DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS 

MARIJUANA REGULATORY AGENCY 

MARIHUANA LICENSES 

Filed with the secretary of state on June 22, 2020

These rules take effect immediately upon filing with the secretary of state unless adopted under 
section 33, 44, or 45a(6) of the administrative procedures act of 1969, 1969 PA 306, MCL 

24.233, 24.244, or 24.245a.  Rules adopted under these sections become effective 7 days after 
filing with the secretary of state. 

(By authority conferred on the executive director of the marijuana regulatory agency by section 
206 of the medical marihuana facilities licensing act, 2016 PA 281, MCL 333.27206, sections 7 
and 8 of the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act, 2018 IL 1, MCL 333.27957 
and 333.27958, and Executive Reorganization Order No. 2019-2, MCL 333.27001) 

R 420.1, R 420.2, R 420.3, R 420.4, R 420.5, R 420.6, R 420.7, R 420.8, R. 420.9, R 420.10, R 
420.11, R 420.12, R 420.13, R 420.14, R 420.15, R 420.16, R 420.17, R 420.18, R 420.19, R 
420.20, R 420.21, R 420.22, R 420.23, R 420.24, R 420.25, R 240.26, R 420.27, R 240.28, and R 
420.29 are added to the Michigan Administrative Code as follows: 

R 420.1 Definitions. 
 Rule 1. (1) As used in these rules: 

(a) “Acts” refers to the medical marihuana facilities licensing act, 2016 PA 281, MCL 
333.27101 to 333.27801, and the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act, 2018 IL 
1, MCL 333.27951 to 333.27967, when applicable. 

(b) “Agency” means the marijuana regulatory agency.
(c) "Applicant" means a person who applies for a marihuana license, subject to paragraphs (i)

and (ii):  
(i) For purposes of this definition, an applicant includes a managerial employee of the

applicant, a person holding a direct or indirect ownership interest of more than 10% in the 
applicant, and the following for each type of applicant: 

(A) For an individual or sole proprietorship: the proprietor and spouse.
(B) For a partnership and limited liability partnership: all partners and their spouses.
(C) For a limited partnership and limited liability limited partnership: all general and limited

partners, not including a limited partner holding a direct or indirect ownership interest of 10% or 
less who does not exercise control over or participate in the management of the partnership, and 
their spouses. 

(D) For a limited liability company: all members and managers, not including a member
holding a direct or indirect ownership interest of 10% or less who does not exercise control over 
or participate in the management of the company, and their spouses. 

(E) For a privately held corporation: all corporate officers or persons with equivalent titles
and their spouses, all directors and their spouses, all stockholders, not including those holding a 
direct or indirect ownership interest of 10% or less, and their spouses. 



2 
 

     (F) For a publicly held corporation: all corporate officers or persons with equivalent titles and 
their spouses, all directors and their spouses, all stockholders, not including those holding a 
direct or indirect ownership interest of 10% or less, and their spouses. 
     (G) For a multilevel ownership enterprise: any entity or person that receives or has the right to 
receive more than 10% of the gross or net profit from the enterprise during any full or partial 
calendar or fiscal year. 
     (H) For a nonprofit corporation: all individuals and entities with membership or shareholder 
rights in accordance with the articles of incorporation or the bylaws and their spouses. 
     (I) For a trust, any beneficiary who receives or has the right to receive more than 10% of the 
gross or net profit of the trust during any full or partial calendar or fiscal year and their spouses. 
    (ii) For purposes of this definition, an applicant does not include: 
     (A) A person who provides financing to an applicant or licensee under a bona fide financing 
agreement at a reasonable interest rate unless the person exercises control over or participates in 
the management of the marihuana business. 
     (B) A franchisor who grants a franchise to an applicant, if the franchisor does not have the 
right to receive royalties based upon the sale of marihuana or marihuana-infused products by the 
applicant who is a franchisee.  Nothing in this subrule shall be construed to preclude a franchisor 
from charging an applicant who is a franchisee a fixed fee.  As used in this definition, the terms 
“franchise,” “franchisor,” and “franchisee” have the meanings set forth in section 2 of the 
franchise investment law, 1974 PA 269, MCL 445.1502. 
     (C) A person receiving reasonable payment for rent on a fixed basis under a bona fide lease or 
rental obligation unless the person exercises control over or participates in the management of 
the marihuana business. 
     (D) A person receiving reasonable payment under a licensing agreement or contract approved 
by the agency concerning the licensing of intellectual property including, but not limited to, 
brands and recipes. 
     (E) A person who receives a percentage of profits as an employee if the employee does not 
meet the definition of “managerial employee” and the employee does not receive more than 10% 
of the gross or net profit from the licensee during any full or partial calendar or fiscal year. 
     (F) A person who receives a bonus as an employee if the employee is on a fixed wage or 
salary and the bonus is not more than 25% of the employee’s pre-bonus annual compensation or 
if the bonus is based upon a written incentive/bonus program that is not out of the ordinary for 
the services rendered. 
   (d) “Building” means a combination of materials forming a structure affording facility, 
establishment, or shelter for use or occupancy by individuals or property.  Building includes a 
part or parts of the building and all equipment in the building. A building does not include a 
building incidental to the use for agricultural purposes of the land on which the building is 
located. 
   (e) “Bureau of fire services” or “BFS” means the bureau of fire services in the department of 
licensing and regulatory affairs. 
   (f) “Common ownership” means 2 or more state licenses or 2 or more equivalent licenses held 
by one person under the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act. 
   (g) “Complete application” means an application that includes all of the information required 
in R 420.2 through R 420.11. 
   (h) “Department” means the department of licensing and regulatory affairs. 



3 
 

   (i) “Designated consumption establishment” means a commercial space that is licensed by the 
agency and authorized to permit adults 21 years of age and older to consume marihuana products 
at the location indicated on the state license issued under the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act. 
   (j) “Director” means the director of the department of licensing and regulatory affairs or his or 
her designee. 
   (k) “Employee” means a person performing work or service for compensation.  “Employee” 
does not include individuals providing trade or professional services who are not normally 
engaged in the operation of a marihuana business. 
   (l) “Equivalent licenses” means any of the following held by a person: 
    (i) A marihuana grower license of any class issued under the Michigan regulation and taxation 
of marihuana act and a grower license, of any class, issued under the medical marihuana 
facilities licensing act. 
    (ii) A marihuana processor license issued under the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act and a processor license issued under the medical marihuana facilities licensing act. 
    (iii) A marihuana retailer license issued under the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act and a provisioning center license issued under the medical marihuana facilities 
licensing act. 
    (iv) A marihuana secure transporter license issued under the Michigan regulation and taxation 
of marihuana act and a secure transporter license issued under the medical marihuana facilities 
licensing act. 
    (v) A marihuana safety compliance facility license issued under the Michigan regulation and 
taxation of marihuana act and a safety compliance facility license issued under the medical 
marihuana facilities licensing act. 
   (m) “Excess marihuana grower” means a license issued to a person holding 5 class C 
marihuana grower licenses and licensed to cultivate marihuana and sell or otherwise transfer 
marihuana to marihuana establishments. 
   (n) “Immature plant” means a nonflowering marihuana plant that is no taller than 8 inches from 
the growing or cultivating medium and no wider than 8 inches produced from a cutting, clipping, 
tissue culture, or seedling that is in a growing or cultivating medium or in a growing or 
cultivating container. 
   (o) “Managerial employee” means those employees who have the ability to control and direct 
the affairs of the marihuana business or have the ability to make policy concerning the 
marihuana business, or both.    
   (p) “Marihuana business” means a marihuana facility under the medical marihuana facilities 
licensing act, or a marihuana establishment under the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act, or both. 
   (q) “Marihuana business location plan” means a marihuana facility plan under the medical 
marihuana facilities licensing act, or a marihuana establishment plan under the Michigan 
regulation and taxation of marihuana act, or both. 
   (r) “Marihuana establishment” means a location at which a licensee is licensed to operate a 
marihuana grower, marihuana safety compliance facility, marihuana processor, marihuana 
microbusiness, marihuana retailer, marihuana secure transporter, or any other type of marihuana-
related business licensed to operate by the agency under the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act. 



4 
 

   (s) “Marihuana event organizer” means a person licensed to apply for a temporary marihuana 
event license under these rules. 
   (t) “Marihuana facility” means a location at which a licensee is licensed to operate under the 
medical marihuana facilities licensing act. 
   (u) “Marihuana license” means a state operating license issued under the medical marihuana 
facilities licensing act, or a state license issued under the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act, or both. 
   (v) “Marihuana product” means marihuana or a marihuana-infused product, or both, as those 
terms are defined in the acts unless otherwise provided for in these rules. 
   (w) “Marihuana tracking act” means the marihuana tracking act, 2016 PA 282, MCL 
333.27901 to 333.27904. 
   (x) “Marihuana transporter” means a secure transporter under the medical marihuana facilities 
licensing act or a marihuana secure transporter under the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act, or both. 
   (y) “Medical marihuana facilities licensing act” or “MMFLA” means the medical marihuana 
facilities licensing act, 2016 PA 281, MCL 333.27101 to 333.27801. 
   (z) “Michigan medical marihuana act” means the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act, 2008 IL 1, 
MCL 333.26421 to 333.26430. 
   (aa) “Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act” or “MRTMA” means the Michigan 
Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act, 2018 IL 1, MCL 333.27951 to 333.27967. 
   (bb) “Proposed marihuana business” means a proposed marihuana establishment under the 
Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act or a proposed marihuana facility under the 
medical marihuana facilities licensing act, or both. 
   (cc) “These rules” means the administrative rules promulgated by the agency under the 
authority of the medical marihuana facilities licensing act, the marihuana tracking act, the 
Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act, and Executive Reorganization Order No. 
2019-2, MCL 333.27001.  
   (dd) “Same location” means separate marihuana licenses that are issued to multiple marihuana 
businesses that are authorized to operate at a single property but with separate business suites, 
partitions, or addresses. 
   (ee) “Special license” means a state license as described under section 8 of the Michigan 
regulation and taxation of marihuana act, MCL 333.27958, and issued pursuant to section 9 of 
that act, MCL 333.27959. 
   (ff) “Stacked license” means more than 1 marihuana license issued to a single licensee to 
operate as a class C grower as specified in each license at a marihuana business under the 
medical marihuana facilities licensing act, or under the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act, or both. 
   (gg) “Tag” or “RFID tag” means the unique identification number or Radio Frequency 
Identification (RFID) issued to a licensee by the agency for tracking, identifying, and verifying 
marihuana plants, marihuana products, and packages of marihuana product in the statewide 
monitoring system. 
   (hh) “Temporary marihuana event license” means a state license held by a marihuana event 
organizer under the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act, for an event where the 
onsite sale or consumption of marihuana products, or both, are authorized at the location 
indicated on the state license. 



5 
 

  (2) Terms defined in the acts have the same meanings when used in these rules unless otherwise 
indicated.  
 
R 420.2 Licensure; application; background investigation; consent to inspections, investigations, 
and audits; disclosure of confidential records; interest in other state license; fee; additional costs. 
 Rule 2.  (1) A person may apply to the agency for marihuana licenses and special licenses as 
provided in the acts and these rules. 
  (2) The agency shall use information provided on the application as a basis to conduct a 
thorough background investigation on the applicant. The agency shall notify the applicant of a 
deficiency and provide instructions for submitting a complete application.  The applicant shall 
timely respond to the notice of the deficiency in accordance with R. 420.5. 
  (3) An applicant must provide written consent to investigations of compliance, regular 
inspections, examinations, searches, seizures, and auditing of books and records and to 
disclosure to the agency and its agents of otherwise confidential records, including tax records 
held by any federal, state, or local agency, or credit bureau or financial institution, while 
applying for or holding a marihuana license as authorized under the acts and these rules.  
  (4) An applicant must certify that the applicant does not have any interest in any other 
marihuana license that is prohibited under the acts. 
  (5) A nonrefundable application fee must be paid at the time of filing to defray the costs 
associated with the background investigation conducted by the agency. The agency shall set the 
amount of the application fee for each category and class of license by rule. If the costs of the 
investigation and processing the application exceed the application fee, the applicant shall pay 
the additional amount to the agency. All information, records, interviews, reports, statements, 
memoranda, or other data supplied to or used by the agency in the course of its review or 
investigation of an application for a marihuana license under the acts shall be disclosed only in 
accordance with the acts.  
 
R420.3 Application procedure; requirements. 
 Rule 3. (1) A person shall apply for a marihuana license on the form created by the agency 
accompanied by the nonrefundable application fee as prescribed in these rules. Each question on 
the application must be answered by the applicant, under oath, in its entirety and all attestations, 
disclosures, and information requested and required by the agency, the acts, and these rules must 
be submitted in the application.  Failure to comply with these rules and the application 
requirements in the acts is grounds for denial of the application. 
  (2) A person may submit a partial application under these rules on the condition that it is to 
prequalify to complete the remaining application requirements. This application has a pending 
status until all application requirements in these rules are completed, or the agency denies the 
partial or complete application.  The agency shall not issue a marihuana license at this stage of 
the application process.  The finding of prequalification status for a pending application is valid 
for 2 years after the agency issues a notice of prequalification status.  After 2 years has expired, 
the applicant may be required to submit a new application and pay a new nonrefundable 
application fee. 
  (3) The agency may request additional disclosures and documentation to be furnished to the 
agency.  The applicant shall submit the information requested by the agency within 5 days 
pursuant to R. 420.5 or the application may be denied. 
 



6 
 

R420.4 Application requirements; financial and criminal background. 
 Rule 4. (1) Each applicant shall disclose the identity of any other person who controls, either 
directly or indirectly, the applicant, including, but not limited to, date of birth, government issued 
identification, and any other documents required by the agency. 
  (2) Each applicant shall disclose the financial information required in the acts and these rules on 
a form created by the agency, including the following: 
   (a) For an applicant seeking licensure under the medical marihuana facilities licensing act, 
required information includes, but is not limited to, all of the following: 
    (i) Financial statements regarding all of the following: 
     (A) A pecuniary interest. 
     (B) Any deposit of value of the applicant or made directly or indirectly to the applicant, or 
both. 
     (C) Financial accounts including, but not limited to, all of the following: funds, savings, 
checking, or other accounts including all applicable account information, such as the name of the 
financial institution, names of the account holders, account type, account balances, and a list of 
all loans types specified by the agency, amounts, securities, or lender information. 
    (ii) Property ownership information, including, but not limited to, deeds, leases, rental 
agreements, real estate trusts, or purchase agreements. 
    (iii) Tax information, including, but not limited to, W-2 and 1099 forms, and any other 
information required by the agency. 
    (iv) Disclosure by the applicant of the identity of any other person who meets either of the 
following: 
     (A) Controls, directly or indirectly, the applicant. 
     (B) Is controlled, directly or indirectly, by the applicant or by a person who controls, directly 
or indirectly, the applicant. 
    (v) Each applicant shall disclose all shareholders holding a direct or indirect interest of greater 
than 5%, officers, and directors in the proposed marihuana facility. 
    (vi) The sources and total amount of the applicant’s capitalization to operate and maintain the 
proposed marihuana facility in compliance with R 420.11. 
    (vii) A financial statement attested by a certified public accountant (CPA), on a form created 
by the agency, including a foreign-attested CPA statement, or its equivalent if applicable on 
capitalization pursuant to R 420.11. 
    (viii) Information on the financial ability of the applicant to purchase and maintain adequate 
liability and casualty insurance in compliance with R 420.10. 
    (ix) Any other documents, disclosures, or attestations created or requested by the agency that 
are not inconsistent with the acts or these rules. 
   (b) For an applicant seeking licensure under the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana 
act required information includes, but is not limited to, all of the following: 
    (i) Tax information, including, but not limited to: 
     (A) W-2 forms for the most recent tax year. 
     (B) 1099 forms for the most recent tax year. 
    (ii) Any other information required by the agency. 
  (3) Each applicant shall disclose all shareholders holding a direct or indirect interest of greater 
than 5%, officers, and directors in the proposed marihuana establishment. 
  (4) Each applicant shall disclose the applicant’s business organizational documents filed with 
this state, any other state, local county, or foreign entity, if applicable, including proof of 



7 
 

registration to do business in this state and certificate of good standing from this state, any other 
state, or foreign entity, if applicable. 
  (5) Each applicant shall disclose to the agency criminal and financial background information 
and regulatory compliance as provided under the acts and these rules on a form created by the 
agency. 
  (6) Each applicant shall provide written consent to a criminal and financial background 
investigation as authorized under the acts and these rules.  
  (7) Each applicant shall provide an attestation acknowledging that sanctions may be imposed 
for violations on a licensee while licensed or after the marihuana license has expired, as provided 
in the acts and these rules. 
  (8) Each applicant shall provide an attestation affirming a continuing duty to provide 
information requested by the agency and to cooperate in any investigation, inspection, inquiry, or 
hearing. 
  (9) Each applicant shall disclose any noncompliance with any regulatory requirements, all legal 
judgments, lawsuits, legal proceedings, charges, or government investigations, whether initiated, 
pending, or concluded, against the applicant, that are related to business operations, including, 
but not limited to fraud, environmental, food safety, tobacco, alcohol, labor, employment, 
worker’s compensation, discrimination, and tax laws and regulations, in this state or any other 
jurisdiction. 
  (10) Each applicant shall disclose any application or issuance of any commercial license or 
certificate issued in this state or any other jurisdiction that meets the requirements under the acts 
and these rules. 
  (11) Each applicant shall provide any other documents or attestations created by, or make any 
disclosures requested by, the agency that are not inconsistent with the acts or these rules. 
  (12) An applicant shall submit in the application any information requested and required by the 
acts and these rules. 
  (13) Each applicant seeking licensure under the medical marihuana facilities licensing act must 
submit one set of fingerprints to the department of state police in accordance with section 402 of 
the MMFLA, MCL 333.27402. 
  (14) Each applicant seeking licensure under the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana 
act shall provide an attestation acknowledging that the applicant must have a physical structure 
for the marihuana establishment and pass the prelicensure inspection within 60 days of a 
complete application being submitted to the agency.  Failure to pass the prelicensure inspection 
within 60 days of the complete application being submitted to the agency may result in the 
application begin denied in accordance with R 420.12. 
  (15) An applicant shall provide an attestation signed by a representative of the department of 
treasury and the applicant, verifying that the applicant is not delinquent in the payment of sales, 
excise, or any other taxes. 
  (16) An applicant seeking licensure under the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana 
act shall provide a social equity plan detailing a plan to promote and encourage participation in 
the marihuana industry by people from communities that have been disproportionately impacted 
by marihuana prohibition and enforcement and to positively impact those communities. 
 
R. 420.5 Application requirements; complete application. 
 Rule 5. (1) A complete application for a marihuana license must include all the information 
specified in these rules and all of the following: 



8 
 

   (a) A description of the type of marihuana business that includes all of the following: 
    (i) An estimate or actual number of employees. 
    (ii) The projected or actual gross receipts. 
    (iii) A business plan. 
    (iv) The proposed location of the marihuana business. 
    (v) A security plan, as required under the acts and these rules. 
   (b) A copy of the proposed marihuana business location plan as required under R 420.8. 
   (c) An applicant shall pass the prelicensure inspection as determined by the agency and as 
required in R 420.9. 
   (d) Confirmation of compliance with any municipal ordinances the municipality may have 
adopted under the medical marihuana facilities licensing act, or the Michigan regulation and 
taxation of marihuana act, whichever act is applicable.  For purposes of these rules, confirmation 
of compliance must be on an attestation form prepared by the agency that contains all of the 
following: 
    (i) For an applicant seeking licensure under the medical marihuana facilities licensing act, 
written affirmation that the municipality has adopted an ordinance under section 205 of the 
MMFLA, MCL 333.27205, including if applicable, a description of any limitations on the 
number of each type of marihuana facility. 
    (ii) For an applicant seeking licensure under the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act, verification that the municipality has not adopted an ordinance prohibiting 
marihuana establishments. 
    (iii) For an applicant seeking licensure under the medical marihuana facilities licensing act, 
description of any regulations within the municipality that apply to the proposed marihuana 
business. 
    (iv) The date and signature of the clerk of the municipality or his or her designee on the 
attestation form attesting that the information stated in the document is correct. 
    (v) The date and signature of the applicant. 
    (vi) The marihuana business name and address. 
    (vii) Attestation that any changes that occur with municipal approvals, the municipal 
ordinance, or any violations of a municipal or zoning ordinance will be reported to the agency. 
   (e) The disclosure of the following persons: 
    (i) For an applicant seeking licensure under the medical marihuana facilities licensing act, 
persons that have a beneficial interest as required in section 303(1)(g) of the MMFLA, MCL 
333.27303. 
    (ii) For an applicant seeking licensure under the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act, persons who have a direct or indirect ownership interest in the marihuana 
establishment. 
  (2) Each applicant shall provide any additional information and documents requested by the 
agency not inconsistent with the acts and these rules. 
  (3) Each applicant shall provide any other documents, disclosures, or attestations created or 
requested by the agency that are not inconsistent with the acts and these rules. 
  (4) If the agency identifies a deficiency in an application, the agency shall notify the applicant 
and the applicant shall submit the missing information or proof that the deficiency has been 
corrected to the agency within 5 days of the date the applicant received the deficiency notice.  



9 
 

  (5) The failure of an applicant to correct a deficiency within 5 days of notification by the 
agency may result in the denial of the application.  An applicant denied under this subrule is not 
barred from reapplying by submitting a new application and application fee. 
 
R 420.6 State license under the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act; issuance; 
qualifications; ineligibility. 
 Rule 6. (1) The agency shall issue a state license under the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act to a qualified applicant whose application has been approved for issuance and 
who pays the required licensure or excess background investigation fees within 10 days of the 
state license being approved for issuance.  Failure to pay the fees required under R 420.7 may 
result in a denial of state license. 
  (2) An applicant is ineligible to receive a state license if any of the following circumstances 
exist: 
   (a) The applicant has a prior conviction that involved distribution of a controlled substance to 
a minor. 
   (b) The applicant has knowingly submitted an application for a state license under the 
Michigan regulation and taxation act that contains false information. 
   (c) The applicant is an employee, advisor, or consultant of the agency involved in the 
implementation, administration, or enforcement of the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act or these rules pursuant to section 7 of the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act, MCL 333.27957. 
   (d) The applicant holds an elective office of a governmental unit of this state, another state, or 
the federal government; is a member of or employed by a regulatory body of a governmental 
unit in this state, another state, or the federal government; or is employed by a governmental unit 
of this state. This subdivision does not apply to an elected officer of or employee of a federally 
recognized Indian tribe or to an elected precinct delegate. 
   (e) The applicant, if an individual, is not a resident of this state on the date of filing the 
application for a class A marihuana grower or for a marihuana microbusiness license. The 
requirements in this subdivision do not apply after December 6, 2021. 
   (f) The applicant does not hold a state operating license pursuant to the MMFLA and is 
applying for a marihuana retailer, marihuana processor, class B marihuana grower, class C 
marihuana grower, or a marihuana secure transporter license under the Michigan regulation and 
taxation of marihuana act and these rules. The requirements in this subdivision do not apply 
after December 6, 2021. 
   (g) The agency determines the municipality in which the applicant’s proposed marihuana 
establishment will operate has adopted an ordinance that prohibits marihuana establishments or 
that the proposed establishment is noncompliant with an ordinance adopted by the municipality 
under section 6 of the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act, MCL 333.27956. 
   (h) The applicant will hold an ownership interest in both a marihuana safety compliance 
facility or in a marihuana secure transporter and in a marihuana grower, a marihuana processor, 
a marihuana retailer, or a marihuana microbusiness, in violation of section 9 of the Michigan 
regulation and taxation of marihuana act, MCL 333.27959. 
   (i) The applicant will hold an ownership interest in both a marihuana microbusiness and in a 
marihuana grower, a marihuana processor, a marihuana retailer, a marihuana safety compliance 
facility, or a marihuana secure transporter, in violation of section 9 of the Michigan regulation 
and taxation of marihuana act, MCL 333.27959. 



10 
 

   (j) The applicant will hold an ownership interest in more than 5 marihuana growers or in more 
than 1 marihuana microbusiness, in violation of section 9 of the Michigan regulation and 
taxation of marihuana act, MCL 333.27959. 
   (k) The applicant fails to meet other criteria established in these rules. 
  (3) In determining whether to grant a state license to an applicant, the agency may also 
consider all of the following: 
   (a) Whether the applicant or anyone meeting the definition of applicant has a pattern of 
convictions involving dishonesty, theft, or fraud that indicate the proposed marihuana 
establishment is unlikely to be operated with honesty and integrity.  
   (b) Whether the applicant has been served with a complaint or other notice filed with any 
public body regarding payment of any tax required under federal, state, or local law that has 
been delinquent for 1 or more years. 
   (c) Whether the applicant has a history of noncompliance with any regulatory requirements, all 
legal judgments, lawsuits, legal proceedings, charges, or government investigations, whether 
initiated, pending, or concluded, against the applicant, that are related to business operations, 
including, but not limited to fraud, environmental, food safety, labor, employment, worker’s 
compensation, discrimination, and tax laws and regulations, in this state or any other 
jurisdiction. 
   (d) Whether the applicant meets other standards in rules applicable to the state license 
category. 
  (4) The agency shall review all applications for state licenses and shall inform each applicant of 
the agency’s decision. 
  (5) An applicant or licensee has a continuing duty to provide information requested by the 
agency and to cooperate in any investigation, inquiry, or hearing conducted by the agency. 
 
Rule 420.7 Application; fees; assessment. 
 Rule 7. (1) At the beginning of each state fiscal year, the agency may increase the fees collected 
under the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act by 10% in order to pay for 
implementation, administration, and enforcement of that act and these rules.   
  (2) An applicant for a marihuana license shall submit an application that is accompanied by the 
nonrefundable application fee of $6,000 upon initial application.   
  (3) If the costs of the investigation and processing the application exceed the application fee, 
the applicant shall pay the additional amount. 
  (4) Additional fees for state licenses under MRTMA are listed in table 1: 
 

TABLE 1 
 

State License Type Initial Licensure 
Fee 

Renewal Fee 

Class A Marihuana Grower  $4,000 Bottom 33% - $3,000 
Middle 33% - $4,000 
Top 33% - $5,000 

Class B Marihuana Grower  $8,000 Bottom 33% - $6,000 
Middle 33% - $8,000 
Top 33% - $10,000 

Class C Marihuana Grower  $40,000 Bottom 33% - $30,000 
Middle 33% - $40,000 
Top 33% - $50,000 



11 
 

Designated Consumption Establishment $1,000 $1,000 
Excess Marihuana Grower $40,000 Bottom 33% - $30,000 

Middle 33% - $40,000 
Top 33% - $50,000 

Marihuana Event Organizer $1,000 $1,000 
Marihuana Microbusiness $8,000 Bottom 33% - $6,000 

Middle 33% - $8,000 
Top 33% - $10,000 

Marihuana Processor $40,000 Bottom 33% - $30,000 
Middle 33% - $40,000 
Top 33% - $50,000 

Marihuana Retailer $25,000 Bottom 33% - $20,000 
Middle 33% - $25,000 
Top 33% - $30,000 

Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility $25,000 Bottom 33% - $20,000 
Middle 33% - $25,000 
Top 33% - $30,000 

Marihuana Secure Transporter $25,000 Bottom 33% - $20,000 
Middle 33% - $25,000 
Top 33% - $30,000 

Temporary Marihuana Event See R 420.26 N/A 
 
  (5) The agency shall establish and publish annually the regulatory assessment for licensees 
under the medical marihuana facilities licensing act pursuant to section 603 of the MMFLA, 
MCL 333.27603. 
  (6) The renewal fees for marihuana grower, excess marihuana grower, and marihuana 
processor licenses are determined by the gross weight transferred by the licensee.  The agency 
shall determine whether the gross weight transferred by the licensee is in the top third, middle 
third, or bottom third for gross weight transferred in that fiscal year compared against all other 
licensees for the license held. The licensee shall then pay the corresponding fee outlined in 
subrule (4) of this rule. 
  (7) The renewal fees for marihuana retailers and marihuana microbusiness licenses are 
determined by the gross retail sales by the licensee.  The agency shall determine whether the 
gross retail sales made by the licensee is in the top third, middle third, or bottom third for gross 
retail sales in that fiscal year compared against all other licensees for the license held.  The 
licensee shall then pay the corresponding fee outlined in subrule (4) of this rule. 
  (8) The renewal fee for a marihuana secure transporter license is determined by the net weight 
transported by the licensee.  The agency shall determine whether the net weight transported by 
the licensee is in the top third, middle third, or bottom third for net weight transported in that 
fiscal year compared against all other marihuana secure transporter licensees.  The licensee shall 
then pay the corresponding fee outlined in subrule (4) of this rule. 
  (9) The renewal fee for marihuana safety compliance facilities is determined by the number of 
tests completed by the licensee.  The agency shall determine whether the number of tests 
completed by the licensee is in the top third, middle third, or bottom third for number of tests 
completed in that fiscal year compared against all other marihuana safety compliance facilities.  
The licensee shall then pay the corresponding fee outlined in subrule (4) of this rule. 
  (10) An applicant shall pay the initial licensure fees or regulatory assessment, if applicable, on 
or before the date the licensee begins operating and the renewal fee annually thereafter, pursuant 
to these rules.   



12 
 

  (11) The agency shall not issue a marihuana license until a complete application is submitted, 
the fees required under these rules are paid, and the agency determines that the applicant is 
qualified to receive a marihuana license under the acts and these rules. An applicant under the 
MRTMA must pay initial licensure fees within 10 days of approval of the marihuana license or 
within 90 days of a complete application being submitted, whichever date is first.  An applicant 
under the MMFLA must pay initial licensure fees within 10 days of approval of the marihuana 
license. An applicant must pay renewal fees upon submission of the application for renewal.  
Failure to pay the required fee may be grounds for the denial of a marihuana license in 
accordance with Rule 420.12. 
 
R 420.8 Marihuana business location plan. 
 Rule 8. (1) An applicant shall submit a marihuana business location plan for the proposed 
marihuana business as required in these rules and upon request by the agency.  Upon the request 
of the agency, an applicant or licensee may be required to submit a revised marihuana business 
location plan.   
  (2) The marihuana business location plan must include, but is not limited to, all of the 
following:     
   (a) The type of proposed marihuana business, the location of the marihuana business, a 
description of the municipality where the marihuana business will be located, and any of the 
following, if applicable:  
    (i) A statement in the marihuana business location plan that a combination of marihuana 
licenses will operate as separate marihuana businesses at the same location, as provided under 
these rules.   
    (ii) A statement in the marihuana business location plan that the applicant has or intends to 
apply to stack a marihuana license at the proposed marihuana business as provided under these 
rules.   
    (iii) A marihuana business location plan submitted for an applicant seeking licensure under 
the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act and these rules must include a statement 
in the marihuana business location plan that equivalent licenses will operate at the same 
location.   
   (b) A diagram of the marihuana business including, but not limited to, all of the following:  
    (i) The proposed marihuana business’s size and dimensions.   
    (ii) Specifications of the marihuana business.  
    (iii) Physical address.   
    (iv) Location of common entryways, doorways, or passageways.  
    (v) Public entries and exits.   
    (vi) Limited access areas and restricted access areas within the marihuana business.  
    (vii) An indication of the distinct areas or structures for separate marihuana businesses at the 
same location as provided in these rules.   
   (c) A detailed floor plan and layout that includes all of the following:   
    (i) Dimensions of the marihuana business including interior and exterior rooms.   
    (ii) Maximum storage capabilities.   
    (iii) Number of rooms.   
    (iv) Dividing structures.  
    (v) Fire walls.  
    (vi) Entrances and exits.   



13 
 

    (vii) Locations of hazardous material storage.   
    (viii) Quantities of hazardous materials, such as chemical, flammable/combustible liquids and 
gases, and the expected daily consumption of the hazardous materials.   
   (d) Means of egress, including, but not limited to, delivery and transfer points.  
   (e) Construction details for structures and fire-rated construction for required walls.       
   (f) Building structure information, including but not limited to, new, pre-existing, freestanding, 
or fixed.  
   (g) Building type information, including, but not limited to, commercial, warehouse, 
industrial, retail, converted property, house, mercantile building, pole barn, greenhouse, 
laboratory, or center.  
   (h) Zoning classification and zoning information.  
   (i) If the proposed marihuana business is in a location that contains multiple tenants and any 
applicable occupancy restrictions.  
   (j) A proposed security plan that demonstrates the proposed marihuana business meets the 
security requirements specified in these rules.   
   (k) Any other information required by the agency if not inconsistent with the acts and these 
rules.  
  (3) Any changes or modifications to the marihuana business location plan under this rule must 
be reported to the agency and may require preapproval by the agency.  
  (4) The agency may provide a copy of the marihuana business location plan to the BFS, local 
fire department, Michigan state police, local law enforcement, and building officials for use in 
review and planning.   
  (5) The agency may reinspect the marihuana business to verify the plan at any time during the 
business’s hours of operation and may require that the plan be resubmitted upon renewal.  
 
R 420.9 Prelicensure investigation; proposed marihuana establishment inspection. 
 Rule 9. (1) An applicant for a marihuana license shall submit to a prelicensure physical 
inspection of a proposed marihuana business, as determined by the agency.  
  (2) The agency shall establish an inspection process to confirm that the applicants and 
proposed marihuana businesses meet the requirements of the acts and these rules.  
  (3) The agency shall investigate an applicant in accordance with the acts and these rules.  
  (4) The agency, through its investigators, agents, auditors, or the state police shall conduct 
inspections and examinations of an applicant and a proposed marihuana business in accordance 
with the acts and these rules.  
  (5) An applicant shall submit proof to the agency of both of the following:  
   (a) A certificate of use and occupancy as required pursuant to section 13 of the Stille-
DeRossett-Hale single state construction code act, 1972 PA 230, MCL 125.1513, and these 
rules. If this certificate is not available, the agency may accept alternative documentation from 
the building authority.   
   (b) If applicable, a fire safety inspection as specified in these rules.  
 
R 420.10 Proof of financial responsibility; insurance. 
 Rule 10. (1) Before a marihuana license is issued or renewed, the licensee or renewal applicant 
shall file a proof of financial responsibility for liability for bodily injury to lawful users resulting 
from the manufacture, distribution, transportation, or sale of adulterated marihuana or 
adulterated marihuana-infused products on the form prescribed by the agency, for an amount not 



14 
 

less than $100,000.00.  If the proof required in this subrule is a bond, the bond must be in a 
format acceptable to the agency. 
  (2) In addition to the requirements in subrule (1) of this rule, a marihuana transporter shall 
show proof of auto insurance, vehicle registration, and registration as a commercial motor 
vehicle, as applicable, for any vehicles used to transport marihuana product as required by the 
acts and these rules. 
  (3) For an applicant seeking licensure under the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana 
act, proof of financial responsibility for liability for bodily injury is not required for a marihuana 
event organizer license.  A marihuana event organizer licensee shall file a proof of financial 
responsibility for liability for bodily injury when applying for a temporary marihuana event 
license. 
  (4)  In addition to the proof of financial responsibility requirements contained in subrule (1) of 
this rule, a renewal applicant or licensee holding a license under the medical marihuana facilities 
licensing act shall also carry commercial general liability insurance covering premises liability 
for an amount not less than $100,000.00.  An applicant shall provide proof of commercial 
general liability insurance covering the premises liability to the agency no later than 60 days 
after a state operating license is issued or renewed. 
 
 
R 420.11 Capitalization requirements; medical marihuana facilities licensing act. 
 Rule 11. (1) An applicant for initial licensure under the medical marihuana facilities licensing act 
shall disclose the sources and total amount of capitalization to operate and maintain a proposed 
marihuana facility.   
  (2) The total amounts of capitalization based on the type of marihuana facility specified in the 
application for a state operating license are as follows: 
   (a) Grower - Class A: $150,000.00.  
   (b) Grower - Class B: $300,000.00. 
   (c) Grower - Class C: $500,000.00. 
   (d) Processor: $300,000.00. 
   (e) Provisioning Center: $300,000.00.  
   (f) Secure Transporter: $200,000.00. 
   (g) Safety Compliance Facility: $200,000.00.  
  (3) An applicant under the MMFLA shall provide proof to the agency of the capitalization 
amounts specified in subrule (2)(a) to (g) of this rule from both of the following sources:   
   (a) Not less than 25% is in liquid assets to cover the initial expenses of operating and maintaining 
the proposed marihuana facility, as specified in the application. As used in this subdivision, "liquid 
assets" include assets easily convertible to cash, including, but not limited to, cash, certificates of 
deposit, 401(k) plans, stocks, and bonds.  
   (b) Proof of the remaining capitalization to cover the initial expenses of operating and 
maintaining the proposed marihuana facility may include, but is not limited to, additional liquid 
assets as described in subdivision (a) of this subrule or equity in real property, supplies, equipment, 
fixtures, or any other nonliquid asset. 
  (4) The applicant shall provide proof that there is no lien or encumbrance, except for a mortgage 
encumbering the real property, on the asset provided as a source of capitalization.  For purposes 
of this subrule, if the encumbrance is a mortgage on the real property then the applicant shall 
disclose the value of the equity of the real property less any mortgage. 



15 
 

  (5) The capitalization amounts and sources must be validated by Certified Public Accountant 
(CPA) attested financial statements. The applicant shall disclose any of the capitalization sources 
that are foreign and a foreign CPA or its equivalent shall attest to the validation, and a domestic 
CPA shall attest to that foreign validation. 
 
R 420.12 Denial of a marihuana license; additional reasons. 
 Rule 12. (1) If an applicant fails to comply with the applicable act or these rules, a marihuana 
license may be denied by the agency as provided under the applicable act and these rules. 
  (2) In addition to the reasons for denial in the acts, a marihuana license may be denied by the 
agency for the following reasons: 
   (a) The applicant’s marihuana business location plan does not fully comply with the acts or 
these rules. 
   (b) The applicant’s proposed marihuana business or marihuana business is substantially 
different from the marihuana business location plan pursuant to R 420.8 and these rules. 
   (c) The agency is unable to access the proposed marihuana business for prelicensure agency 
inspection or the applicant denied the agency access to the proposed marihuana business. 
   (d) The applicant made a material misrepresentation on the application. 
   (e)  The applicant failed to correct a deficiency within 5 days of notification by the agency in 
accordance with the acts and these rules. 
   (f) The applicant failed to satisfy the confirmation of compliance by a municipality in 
accordance with the acts and these rules. 
   (g) The applicant is operating or was operating a proposed marihuana business without a 
marihuana license. 
   (h) The applicant has knowingly submitted an application containing false information. 
   (i) The applicant has failed to pay required fees pursuant to these rules. 
   (j) The applicant has failed to comply with these rules and the application requirements 
pursuant to these rules. 
   (k) The applicant has been delinquent with the payment of taxes required under federal, state, 
or local law for 1 or more years. 
   (l) The applicant fails to provide notifications or reports to the agency pursuant to these rules. 
   (m) The applicant or anyone meeting the definition of applicant has a pattern of convictions 
involving dishonesty, theft, or fraud that indicate the proposed marihuana business is unlikely to 
be operated with honesty and integrity.  
   (n) For an applicant seeking licensure under the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana 
act, the applicant failed to receive a passing prelicensure inspection within 60 days of a complete 
application being submitted to the agency. 
   (o) For an applicant seeking licensure under the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana 
act, the applicant or anyone meeting the definition of applicant has a conviction involving 
distribution of a controlled substance to a minor pursuant to section 8 of the MRTMA, MCL 
333.27958. 
   (p) For an applicant seeking licensure under the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana 
act, the applicant holds a state operating license under the MMFLA and has failed to file or is 
delinquent in the payment of the sales tax required under the general sales tax act, 1933 PA 167, 
MCL 205.51 to 205.78, or the excise tax required under section 601 of the MMFLA, MCL 
333.27601. 



16 
 

   (q) For an applicant seeking licensure under the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana 
act, the applicant holds a state license and has failed to file or is delinquent in the payment of the 
sales tax required under the general sales tax act, 1933 PA 167, MCL 205.51 to 205.78, or the 
excise tax required under section 13 of the MRTMA, MCL 333.27963. 
 
R 420.13 Renewal of marihuana license. 
 Rule 13. (1) A marihuana license is issued for a 1-year period and is renewable annually.  A 
licensee shall apply to renew a marihuana license on a form established by the agency.  The 
licensee shall pay the required fee upon submission of the application for renewal.  The 
marihuana license may be renewed no more than 90 days before the expiration of the marihuana 
license, if the licensee has submitted the renewal form required by the agency and, if applicable, 
the licensee has paid any additional background investigation charge assessed by the agency 
under these rules.  The agency shall include on the renewal form, a statement requesting renewal 
of the marihuana license and all of the following information: 
   (a) To the extent that information has changed or not been previously reported, updated 
personal, business, and financial information, as the agency may require, related to the eligibility 
of the licensee to continue to hold the marihuana license for which renewal is requested under 
the acts and these rules.  For a licensee seeking renewal under the medical marihuana facilities 
licensing act required information may also be related to the suitability and general fitness of the 
licensee and include, without limitation, information regarding the identification, integrity, moral 
character, reputation, relevant business experience, ability, probity, and financial experience, 
ability, and responsibility of the licensee and each person required to be qualified for renewal of 
the license under the MMFLA.  To the extent that the information has changed or has not been 
previously reported, updated information on the marihuana business. 
   (b) A statement under oath by the licensee that the information provided in the licensee’s  
annual renewal form is current, complete, true, and accurate, and that the licensee has fulfilled its 
obligation under the acts and these rules to notify the agency of any change in information 
provided in its original marihuana license application and subsequent annual renewal form or 
forms previously filed, if applicable. 
   (c) Attestation by the municipality on a form created by the agency regarding a licensee who 
submits an application for marihuana license renewal which shall include, but not be limited to, 
both of the following: 
    (i) A description of any violation, if applicable, of an ordinance or a zoning regulation adopted 
pursuant to section 205 of the medical marihuana facilities licensing act, MCL 333.27205, or 
section 6 of the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act, MCL 333.27956, committed 
by the licensee, but only if the violation relates to activities licensed under the acts or these rules. 
    (ii) Whether there has been a change to an ordinance or a zoning regulation adopted pursuant 
to section 205 of the medical marihuana facilities licensing act, MCL 333.27205, or section 6 of 
the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act, MCL 333.27956, since the marihuana 
license was issued to the licensee and a description of the change. 
   (d) An attestation by the licensee that the licensee’s annual renewal form provides all 
information and documentation required by the agency to establish that the licensee is eligible, 
qualified, and suitable to have its marihuana license renewed and is ready and able to continue 
conducting its marihuana business in compliance with the acts and these rules throughout the 
new 1-year time period for which the license is to be renewed. 



17 
 

   (e) Other relevant information and documentation that the agency may require to determine the 
licensee’s eligibility to have its marihuana license renewed under the licensing standards of the 
acts and these rules. 
  (2) Failure to comply with any of the provisions of the acts and these rules may result in the 
nonrenewal of a marihuana license.   The agency shall not renew a marihuana license unless the 
agency determines, as part of the license renewal, that each person required by the acts and these 
rules to meet licensing standards is eligible, qualified, and suitable under the relevant licensing 
standards. 
  (3) The licensee shall meet the requirements of the acts and any other renewal requirements set 
forth in these rules. 
  (4) The agency may refuse to renew a marihuana license and issue a notice of nonrenewal if the 
licensee fails to apply for renewal in accordance with section 402 of the medical marihuana 
facilities licensing act, MCL 333.27402, as applicable, and this rule.  In addition, the agency may 
refuse to renew a marihuana license and issue a notice of nonrenewal if the agency determines, 
after reviewing the licensee’s annual renewal form, that the marihuana license should not be 
renewed because the licensee’s annual renewal form does not provide the information and 
documentation required by the agency to determine that the licensee is eligible, qualified, and 
suitable to continue to be licensed and ready and able to continue conducting its marihuana 
business in compliance with the acts and these rules.  
  (5) If a license renewal application for a license under the medical marihuana facilities licensing 
act is not submitted by the license expiration date, the license may be renewed within 60 days 
after its expiration date upon submission of the required application, payment of the required 
fees, and satisfaction of any renewal requirements.  The licensee may continue to operate during 
the 60 days after the license expiration date if the licensee submits the renewal application to the 
agency and complies with the other requirements for renewal. 
  (6) The agency shall send a renewal notice to the last known address of a licensee on file with 
the agency. The failure of a licensee to notify the agency of a change of address does not extend 
the expiration date of a license and may result in disciplinary action. 
  (7) A marihuana licensee who is served with a notice of nonrenewal may request a hearing 
pursuant to these rules. 
  (8) If the licensee does not request a hearing in writing within 21 days after service of the notice 
of nonrenewal, the notice of nonrenewal becomes the final order of the agency. 
  (9) A person who has not applied for marihuana license renewal for any and all licenses that are 
due for renewal shall cease and desist operation and is subject to any sanctions or fines, or both, 
in accordance with the acts and these rules. 
 
R 420.14 Notification and reporting. 
 Rule 14. (1) Applicants have a continuing duty to provide the agency with up-to-date contact 
information and shall notify the agency in writing of any changes to the mailing addresses, phone 
numbers, electronic mail addresses, and other contact information they provide the agency. 
  (2) Applicants shall report to the agency any changes to the marihuana business operations that 
are required in the acts and these rules, as applicable. 
  (3) Applicants shall report to the agency any proposed material changes to the marihuana 
business before making a material change that may require prior authorization by the agency.  
Material changes include, but are not limited to, the following: 
   (a) Change in owners, officers, members, or managers. 



18 
 

   (b) Change of processing machinery or equipment. 
   (c) A description of a violation of an ordinance or a zoning regulation adopted pursuant to 
section 205 of the medical marihuana facilities licensing act, MCL 333.27205, or section 6 of the 
Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act, MCL 333.27956, committed by the licensee, 
but only if the violation relates to activities licensed under the acts, the Michigan medical 
marihuana act, and these rules. 
   (d) The addition or removal of persons named in the application or disclosed. 
   (e) Change in entity name. 
   (f) Any attempted transfer, sale, or conveyance of an interest in a marihuana license. 
   (g) Any change or modification to the marihuana business before or after licensure that was not 
preinspected, inspected, or part of the marihuana business location plan or final inspection 
including, but not limited to, all of the following: 
    (i) Operational or method changes requiring inspection under these rules. 
    (ii) Additions or reductions in equipment or processes at a marihuana business. 
    (iii) Increase or decrease in the size or capacity of the marihuana business. 
    (iv) Alterations of ingress or egress. 
    (v) Changes that impact security, fire safety, and building safety. 
  (4) An applicant shall notify the agency within 1 business day of becoming aware of or within 1 
business day of when the applicant should have been aware of any of the following: 
   (a) Adverse reactions to a marihuana product sold or transferred by any licensee. 
   (b) Criminal convictions, charges, or civil judgments against an applicant in this state or any 
other state, federal, or foreign jurisdiction. 
   (c) Regulatory disciplinary action taken against an applicant by this state or any other state, 
federal, or foreign jurisdiction, including any pending action. 
  (5) The applicant shall notify the agency within 10 days of the initiation or conclusion of any 
new judgments, lawsuits, legal proceedings, charges, or government investigations, whether 
initiated, pending, or concluded, that involve the applicant. 
  (6) Failure to provide notifications or reports to the agency pursuant to this rule may result in 
sanctions or fines, or both.   
 
R 420.15 Notifications of diversion, theft, loss, or criminal activity. 
 Rule 15. (1) Applicants shall notify the agency and local law enforcement authorities within 24 
hours of becoming aware of or within 24 hours of when the applicant should have been aware of 
the theft or loss of any marihuana product or criminal activity at the marihuana business. 
  (2) Failure to notify as required under subrule (1) of this rule may result in sanctions or fines, or 
both. 
 
R 420.16 Inspection; investigation 
 Rule 16. (1) The agency shall do all of the following with respect to inspections and 
investigations of applicants, licensees, proposed marihuana businesses, and marihuana business 
operations: 
   (a) Oversee and conduct inspections through its investigators, agents, auditors, or the state 
police of proposed marihuana businesses and marihuana businesses to ensure compliance with 
the acts and these rules. 
   (b) Inspect and examine marihuana businesses and proposed marihuana businesses. 
   (c) Inspect, examine, and audit records of the licensee. 



19 
 

  (2) The agency may investigate individuals employed by proposed marihuana businesses and 
marihuana businesses. 
  (3) As authorized by the acts, a licensee may not refuse the agency access to the marihuana 
business during the hours of operation.  The agency may access the marihuana business without 
a warrant and without notice to the licensee during the marihuana business's hours of operation. 
  (4) The agency may place an administrative hold on a marihuana product and order that no 
sales or transfers occur during an investigation for an alleged violation or violation of the acts or 
these rules. 
  (5) The agency may inspect, examine, and audit relevant records of the licensee. If a licensee 
fails to cooperate with an investigation, the agency may impound, seize, assume physical control 
of, or summarily remove records from a proposed marihuana business or marihuana business as 
authorized under the acts and these rules. 
  (6) The agency may eject or exclude, or authorize the ejection or exclusion of, an individual 
from a proposed marihuana business or marihuana business if that individual violates the acts, a 
final order, or these rules. 
  (7) The agency may take any reasonable or appropriate action to enforce the acts and these 
rules. 
  (8) This rule does not limit the application of any other remedies or sanctions that are available 
through local, state, and federal laws, the acts, and these rules. 
  (9) As used in this rule, “record” means books, ledgers, documents, writings, photocopies, 
correspondence, electronic storage media, electronically stored records, money receptacles, 
equipment in which records are stored, including data or information in the statewide monitoring 
system, or any other document that is used for recording information. 
 
R 420.17 Stacked license. 
 Rule 17. (1) A licensee holding a license as a grower under the medical marihuana facilities 
licensing act, or a marihuana grower under the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana 
act, or both, may apply to stack class C licenses at a marihuana business specified in the 
marihuana license application.  The licensee shall pay a separate initial licensure fee or 
regulatory assessment, as applicable, for each marihuana license issued and stacked and may be 
subject to additional fees under these rules. 
  (2) A licensee that has been issued stacked licenses is subject to all the requirements of the acts 
and these rules. 
 
R 420.18 Changes to licensed marihuana business. 
 Rule 18. (1) Any change or modification to the marihuana business after licensure is governed 
by the standards and procedures set forth in these rules and any regulations adopted pursuant to 
the acts.  Any material change or modification to the marihuana business must be approved by 
the agency before the change or modification is made. 
  (2) Any change of a location of a marihuana business after licensure requires notification to the 
agency prior to the change of location, must be approved by the agency, requires a new 
marihuana license application under these rules, and may include, but is not limited to, all of the 
following: 
   (a) Additional application fees. 
   (b) Additional inspections by the agency or BFS. 
   (c) Initial licensure fees or regulatory assessment, as applicable, or both.   



20 
 

  (3) A licensee shall produce written documentation from the municipality approving the 
proposed new marihuana business location, and confirmation of compliance with any municipal 
ordinances the municipality adopted under the acts.  For purposes of these rules, confirmation of 
compliance must be on an attestation form prepared by the agency that contains all of the 
information required in these rules. 
 
R 420.19 Communities disproportionately impacted by marihuana prohibition. 
 Rule 19. (1) Pursuant to section 8 of the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act, 
MCL 333.27958, the agency shall establish a plan that promotes and encourages participation in 
the marihuana industry by people from communities that have been disproportionately impacted 
by marihuana prohibition and enforcement and to positively impact those communities. 
  (2) The agency shall publish information about the plan which must include, but not be limited 
to, all of the following: 
   (a) The criteria used to select communities that have been disproportionately impacted by 
marihuana prohibition and enforcement. 
   (b) Based on the selection criteria, a list of the communities that have been disproportionately 
impacted by marihuana prohibition and enforcement. 
   (c) The requirements persons in those communities must meet to utilize services and resources 
offered through the plan. 
   (d) The services and resources that are available to those communities and qualifying persons 
residing in and planning to operate a marihuana establishment in those communities selected in 
subdivision (b) of this subrule. 
   (e) Specific goals and objectives for the plan. 
  (3) The agency shall collect data to measure its progress towards achieving the specific goals 
and objectives outlined in subrule (2)(e) of this rule. 
  (4) The agency shall publish a list of services and resources offered through the plan, which 
must include, but not be limited to, all of the following: 
   (a) Education and outreach to the communities and potential applicants from the community. 
   (b) Waiving or reducing fees for qualified applicants from the communities. 
   (c) Increased assistance with the application process for applicants from these communities. 
   (d) Coordinating communities’, applicants’, and licensees’ utilization of resources that will 
allow participation in the marihuana industry. 
 
R 420.20 Financial Statements 
 Rule 20. Each licensee under the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act shall 
transmit to the agency financial statements of the licensee’s total operations. The financial 
statements shall be reviewed by a certified public accountant in a manner and form prescribed by 
the agency. The certified public accountant must be licensed in this state under article 7 of the 
occupational code, 1980 PA 299, MCL 339.720 to 339.736. The compensation for the certified 
public accountant shall be paid directly by the licensee to the certified public accountant. The 
agency shall issue an advisory bulletin to instruct licensees on the time and manner in which to 
submit the financial statements. 
 



21 
 

PART 2. SPECIAL LICENSES UNDER THE MICHIGAN REGULATION AND 
TAXATION OF MARIHUANA ACT 

 
R 420.21 Special licenses; eligibility. 
 Rule 21. (1) A person may apply to the agency for a special license as described under section 8 
of the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act, MCL 333.27958, and issued pursuant 
to section 9 of the act, MCL 333.27959, and these rules.  A person may apply to the agency for a 
special license in the following categories: 
   (a) Designated consumption establishment license. A designated consumption establishment 
license is valid for 1 year. 
   (b) Excess marihuana grower license.  An excess marihuana grower license is valid for 1 year. 
   (c) Marihuana event organizer license. A marihuana event organizer license is valid for 1 year. 
   (d) Temporary marihuana event license. A temporary marihuana event license is valid for a 
minimum of 1 day and ends on the date specified on the state license. 
  (2) An applicant shall meet the requirements of the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act and these rules to be eligible for a special license. 
  (3) A person that allows consumption of marihuana products on the premises of a non-
residential location and charges a fee for entry, sells goods or services while individuals are 
consuming on the premises, or requires membership for entry shall acquire a designated 
consumption establishment or temporary marihuana event license. 
 
R 420.22 Designated consumption establishment license.  
 Rule 22. (1) An applicant for a designated consumption establishment license is subject to and 
shall meet the requirements of the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act and these 
rules. 
  (2) A person may apply for a designated consumption establishment license on the form created 
by the agency accompanied by the nonrefundable application fee as prescribed in these rules. An 
application for a designated consumption establishment license must be made under oath on a 
form provided by the agency.  A complete application for a designated consumption 
establishment license must contain the information required in these rules and information 
regarding the designated consumption establishment including, but not limited to, all of the 
following: 
   (a) A designated consumption establishment plan for the proposed consumption establishment.  
Upon the request of the agency, an applicant or licensee may be required to submit a revised 
designated consumption establishment plan.  The plan must include a diagram of the designated 
consumption establishment including, but not limited to, all of the following: 
    (i) The proposed establishment’s size and dimensions.  
    (ii) Specifications of the designated consumption establishment.  
    (iii) Physical address.   
    (iv) Location of common entryways, doorways, or passageways.  
    (v) Means of public entry or exit.    
    (vi) An indication of the distinct areas or structures for separate marihuana establishments at 
the same location as provided in these rules.   
   (b) A detailed floor plan and layout that includes all of the following:   
    (i) Dimensions of the consumption establishment including interior and exterior rooms.   
    (ii) Number of rooms.   



22 
 

    (iii) Dividing structures.  
    (iv) Fire walls.  
    (v) Entrances and exits.   
    (vi) Locations of hazardous material storage, if applicable.  
    (vii) Means of egress.  
   (c) Construction details for structures and fire-rated construction for required walls.       
   (d) Building structure information, including but not limited to, new, pre-existing, freestanding, 
or fixed.  
   (e) Building type information, including, but not limited to, commercial, warehouse, industrial, 
retail, converted property, house, building, mercantile building, pole barn, greenhouse, 
laboratory, or center.  
   (f) Zoning classification and zoning information.  
   (g) If the proposed designated consumption establishment is in a location that contains multiple 
tenants, any applicable occupancy restrictions.  
   (h) A business plan that includes a description of the proposed hours of operation. 
   (i) Proof of possession of the premises where the proposed designated consumption 
establishment will be located and, if the premises are leased, written permission from the owner 
of the premises approving the applicant’s use of the designated consumption establishment for 
marihuana consumption. 
   (j) A responsible operations plan that includes a detailed explanation of how employees will 
monitor and prevent over-intoxication, underage access to the designated consumption 
establishment, the illegal sale or distribution of marihuana or marihuana products within the 
consumption establishment, and any other potential criminal activity on the premises.   
   (k) A documented employee training that addresses all components of the responsible 
operations plan. 
   (l) A marihuana product destruction and waste management plan that meets the requirements 
of these rules, as applicable, for destroying and disposing of marihuana waste left at the 
marihuana establishment.  
   (m) Any other information required by the agency if not inconsistent with the Michigan 
regulation and taxation of marihuana act and these rules. 
  (3) The agency may provide a copy of the marihuana establishment plan to the BFS, local fire 
department, building officials, the Michigan state police, and local law enforcement for use in 
pre-incident review and planning.   
  (4) An applicant shall pay the fees required under these rules.  
  (5) An applicant is subject to the prelicensure investigation and proposed establishment 
inspection required under these rules. 
  (6) An applicant is subject to the proof of financial responsibility and insurance requirements 
under these rules. 
  (7) A designated consumption establishment shall have the following characteristics: 
   (a) A smoke-free area for employees to monitor the marihuana consumption area. 
   (b) A ventilation system that directs air from the marihuana consumption area to the outside of 
the building through a filtration system sufficient to remove visible smoke, consistent with all 
applicable building codes and ordinances, and adequate to eliminate odor at the property line, if 
consumption by inhalation is permitted. 
   (c) A location physically separated from areas where smoking is prohibited and where smoke 
does not infiltrate into nonsmoking areas or buildings.   



23 
 

  (8) The agency may determine an applicant is ineligible or deny an application for the reasons 
specified in these rules, as applicable. 
 
R 420.23 Excess marihuana grower license. 
 Rule 23. (1) An applicant for an excess marihuana grower license is subject to and shall meet 
the requirements of the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act and these rules. 
  (2) An excess marihuana grower license authorizes sale of marihuana, other than seeds, 
seedlings, tissue cultures, immature plants, and cuttings, to a marihuana processor or marihuana 
retailer. 
  (3) An excess marihuana grower license shall only be issued to a person who holds 5 stacked 
class C marihuana grower licenses issued by the agency under the Michigan regulation and 
taxation of marihuana act and at least 2 grower class C licenses issued by the agency under the 
MMFLA. 
  (4) A person may apply for an excess marihuana grower license on the form created by the 
agency accompanied by the nonrefundable application fee as prescribed in these rules.  An 
application for an excess marihuana grower license must be made under oath on a form provided 
by the agency and must contain information as prescribed by the agency. 
  (5) An applicant for an excess marihuana grower license shall pay applicable fees required 
under these rules.  
  (6) The agency may determine an applicant is ineligible or deny an application for the reasons 
specified in these rules, as applicable. 
  (7) The agency shall set the total marihuana plant count for an excess marihuana grower license 
in increments of 2,000 marihuana plants not in excess of the total marihuana plants permitted 
under grower class C licenses held under the MMFLA. 
  (8) Payment of the initial licensure fee must be received prior to issuance of the state license.  
In determining the initial licensure fee for an excess marihuana grower license, the initial 
licensure fee of a class C marihuana grower license is assessed on the excess marihuana grower 
license at every 2,000 marihuana plant increment authorized by the state license. 
  (9) An excess marihuana grower licensee is subject to all requirements for a marihuana grower 
as provided for in the Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act and these rules, as 
applicable.   
  (10)  An applicant shall pay the initial licensure fee for an excess grower license within 10 days 
of approval or within 90 days of a complete application being submitted, whichever date is first. 
  (11) A marihuana grower’s application for an excess grower license is exempt from the 
application fee of $6,000 under these rules. 
 
R 420.24 Marihuana event organizer license. 
 Rule 24. (1) A marihuana event organizer is not authorized to engage in the operations of a 
marihuana establishment licensee without first obtaining the appropriate licenses. 
  (2) A person may apply for a marihuana event organizer license on the form created by the 
agency accompanied by the application fee as prescribed in these rules. An application for a 
marihuana event organizer license shall be made under oath on a form provided by the agency 
and shall contain information as prescribed by the agency. 
  (3) An applicant for a marihuana event organizer license is subject to and shall meet the 
requirements of these rules, as applicable. 



24 
 

  (4) An applicant for a marihuana event organizer license shall pay the nonrefundable 
application fee and any other fees required under these rules.  
  (5) The agency may determine an applicant is ineligible or deny an application for the reasons 
specified in these rules, as applicable. 
 
R 420.25 Temporary marihuana event license; application; operations. 
 Rule 25. (1) A temporary marihuana event license shall only be issued to a person who holds a 
marihuana event organizer license issued by the agency. 
  (2) Violations of the requirements applicable to temporary marihuana events may result in 
disciplinary action against the marihuana event organizer license or any other licenses held by a 
licensee participating in the temporary marihuana event and responsible for a violation of the 
MRTMA or these rules. 
  (3) A temporary marihuana event license must only be issued for a single day or up to 7 
consecutive days. A temporary marihuana event license must not be issued for more than 7 days. 
  (4) An application for a temporary marihuana event license must be submitted to the agency not 
less than 90 calendar days before the first day of the temporary marihuana event. 
  (5) A temporary marihuana event may only be held at a venue expressly approved by a 
municipality for the purpose of holding a temporary marihuana event. 
  (6) An application for a temporary marihuana event license must be made under oath on a form 
provided by the agency and must contain information as prescribed by the agency, including, but 
not limited to, all of the following: 
   (a) The name of the applicant. Applicants who are individuals shall provide both the first and 
last name of the individual. Applicants that are business entities shall provide the legal business 
name of the applicant. 
   (b) The marihuana event organizer license number and each marihuana establishment license 
held by the applicant. 
   (c) The address of the location where the temporary marihuana event will be held. 
   (d) The name of the temporary marihuana event. 
   (e) A diagram of the physical layout of the temporary marihuana event. The diagram must 
clearly indicate all of the following: 
    (i) Where the temporary marihuana event will be taking place on the location grounds. 
    (ii) All entrances and exits that will be used by participants during the event. 
    (iii) All marihuana consumption areas. 
    (iv) All marihuana retail areas where marihuana products will be sold.  
    (v) Where marihuana waste will be stored. 
    (vi) All areas where marihuana products will be stored. 
    (vii) The specific location of each marihuana retailer or marihuana microbusiness licensee 
who will be participating in the event. Each marihuana retailer or marihuana microbusiness 
licensee participating in the event must be identified with an assigned temporary marihuana 
event location number.  
   (f) The dates and hours of operation for which the temporary marihuana event license is being 
sought. A temporary marihuana event license is required for any date in which the applicant 
engages in onsite marihuana product sales or allows onsite marihuana product consumption. 
   (g) Contact information for the applicant’s designated primary contact person regarding the 
temporary marihuana event license, including the name, title, address, phone number, and email 
address of the individual. 



25 
 

   (h) Contact information for a designated contact person or persons who shall be onsite at the 
event, and reachable by telephone at all times that the event is occurring. 
   (i) Written attestation on a form provided by the agency from the municipality authorizing the 
applicant to engage in onsite marihuana sales to, and onsite consumption by, persons 21 years of 
age or older at the temporary marihuana event at the proposed location. 
   (j) A list of all licensees and employees that will be providing onsite sales of marihuana 
products at the temporary marihuana event. If the list of licensees and employees participating in 
the temporary marihuana event changes after the application is submitted or after the temporary 
marihuana event license is issued, the applicant shall submit an updated list and an updated 
diagram to the agency not less than 72 hours before the event. Licensees not on the list submitted 
to the agency shall not participate in the temporary marihuana event. 
  (7)  An applicant for a temporary marihuana event shall pay all required fees before the agency 
issues a temporary marihuana event license. 
  (8) The licensed marihuana event organizer shall hire or contract for licensed security personnel 
to provide security services at the licensed temporary marihuana event. All security personnel 
hired or contracted for by the licensee shall be at least 21 years of age, and present on the 
licensed event premises at all times marihuana products are available for sale or marihuana 
consumption is allowed on the licensed event premises. The security personnel shall not engage 
in the consumption of marihuana products before or during the event. 
  (9) A licensed marihuana event organizer shall maintain a clearly legible sign, not less than 7” x 
11” in size reading, “No Persons Under 21 Allowed” at or near each public entrance to any area 
where the sale or consumption of marihuana products is allowed. The lettering of the sign shall 
be not less than 1 inch in height. 
  (10) The marihuana event organizer licensee shall ensure that access to the event is restricted to 
persons 21 years of age or older and ensure that marihuana sales or consumption is not visible 
from any public place or non-age-restricted area. 
  (11) The marihuana event organizer licensee, who holds the temporary marihuana event license, 
is responsible for ensuring that all rules and requirements for the onsite consumption of 
marihuana products are followed. 
  (12) The marihuana event organizer licensee shall ensure that all marihuana waste generated at 
a temporary marihuana event is collected and disposed of in accordance with the requirements of 
these rules, as applicable.  
  (13) A licensed marihuana event organizer and all other licensees participating in a temporary 
marihuana event are required to comply with all other applicable requirements in the Michigan 
regulation and taxation of marihuana act and these rules and any municipal ordinances. 
  (14) The agency may require the marihuana event organizer and all participants to cease 
operations without delay if in the opinion of the agency or law enforcement it is necessary to 
protect the immediate public health and safety of the people of this state. Upon notification from 
the agency that the event is to cease operations, the marihuana event organizer shall immediately 
stop the event and all participants shall be removed from the premises within the time frame 
provided by the agency. 
  (15) Upon notification from the agency, the marihuana event organizer shall immediately expel 
from the event any person selling marihuana products without a marihuana retailer or marihuana 
microbusiness license issued by the agency. The marihuana event organizer or their 
representative shall remain with the person being expelled from the premises at all times until he 
or she vacates the premises. If the person does not vacate the premises, the agency may inform 



26 
 

the marihuana event organizer that the event must cease operations. Upon notification from the 
agency that the event is to cease operations, the marihuana event organizer shall immediately 
stop the event and all participants shall be removed from the premises within the time frame 
provided by the agency. 
 
R 420.26 Temporary marihuana event fee. 
 Rule 26. (1) Each marihuana event organizer licensed to hold a temporary marihuana event in 
this state shall pay an initial licensure fee that consists of the following: 
   (a) For temporary marihuana events that do not include the sale of marihuana products, a 
$500.00 fee for each day of the scheduled event to cover the agency’s enforcement and 
compliance costs. 
   (b) For temporary marihuana events that include the sale of marihuana products: 
    (i) A $500.00 fee for each licensee authorized to sell marihuana product at the event to cover 
the agency’s enforcement and compliance costs. 
    (ii) A $500.00 fee for each day of the temporary marihuana event to cover the agency’s 
enforcement and compliance costs. 
  (2) If a licensee scheduled to attend an event withdraws from the event prior to the first day of 
the event, the marihuana event organizer may request a refund for that portion of the fees paid to 
the agency to cover the enforcement and compliance costs for that licensee. 
  (3) A marihuana event organizer’s application for a temporary marihuana event license is 
exempt from the application fee of $6,000 under these rules. 
 
R 420.27 Temporary marihuana event sales. 
 Rule 27. (1) A marihuana event organizer licensee shall ensure that access to the area where 
marihuana sales are allowed is restricted to persons 21 years of age or older. 
  (2) Only persons age 21 or older may purchase and consume marihuana products at a temporary 
marihuana event. Prior to selling marihuana products to a customer, the licensee making the sale 
shall confirm, using valid identification as specified in the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act and these rules, the age and identity of the customer. 
  (3) All sales of marihuana products at a temporary marihuana event must occur in a retail area 
as designated in the premises diagram required in these rules. 
  (4) Each sale at a temporary marihuana event must be performed by a licensed marihuana 
retailer or marihuana microbusiness that is authorized to sell marihuana products to customers. 
The marihuana event organizer may also sell marihuana products at the temporary marihuana 
event if the marihuana event organizer separately holds a state license as a marihuana retailer or 
marihuana microbusiness. 
  (5) Licensed marihuana retailers or licensed marihuana microbusinesses shall only conduct 
sales activities within their specifically assigned area, identified in the diagram of the physical 
layout of the temporary marihuana event. 
  (6) Mobile sales activities via wagon, cart, or similar means are prohibited at the temporary 
marihuana event site. 
  (7) Licensed marihuana retailers or marihuana microbusinesses must prominently display their 
temporary marihuana event location number and state license within plain sight of the public. 
  (8) All sales at a temporary marihuana event must occur on the dates stated on the state license 
and must occur at the location stated on the state license. All onsite sales of marihuana products 
must comply with the hours of operation requirements in these rules. 



27 
 

  (9) The marihuana products sold onsite at a temporary marihuana event must be transported to 
the site of the temporary marihuana event by a licensed secure transporter in compliance with the 
Michigan regulation and taxation of marihuana act and these rules.  A licensed transporter is not 
required if less than 15 ounces of marihuana or 60 grams of concentrate is being transported at 
one time. 
  (10) Except small amounts of products used for display, all marihuana products for sale at a 
temporary marihuana event must be stored in a secure, locked container that is not accessible to 
the public. Marihuana products being stored by a licensee at a temporary marihuana event must 
not be left unattended.  
  (11) All marihuana products made available for sale at a temporary marihuana event by a 
licensee must comply with all requirements of the Michigan regulation and taxation of 
marihuana act and these rules for the sale and tracking of marihuana products. This includes, but 
is not limited to, all of the following: 
   (a) Identifying marihuana product from licensees’ inventory at the marihuana establishment 
that will be transported for sale at the event using a marihuana secure transporter or an agent of 
the licensee to the temporary marihuana event. 
   (b) Tracking in the statewide monitoring system any sales of marihuana product at the event in 
accordance with the requirements of these rules. 
   (c) Tracking in the statewide monitoring system any marihuana product that is not sold at the 
event and is being returned to the marihuana establishment’s inventory at its permanent location. 
If more than 15 ounces of marihuana or 60 grams of concentrate is being transported at one time, 
it must be transported using a marihuana secure transporter. 
 
R 420.28 Renewal; notifications; inspections and investigations; penalties; sanctions; fines; sale 
or transfer. 
 Rule 28. (1) A designated consumption establishment and marihuana event organizer license are 
issued for a 1-year period and may be renewed. An applicant for renewal must meet the 
requirements, as applicable, and apply in the manner prescribed in these rules. 
  (2) A designated consumption establishment and marihuana event organizer applicant or 
licensee are subject to the notification and reporting requirements specified in these rules as 
applicable. 
  (3) A designated consumption establishment or marihuana event organizer licensee or licensee 
participating in a temporary marihuana event shall comply with the notification requirements for 
theft, loss, or criminal activity pertaining to marihuana product under these rules, as applicable. 
  (4) An applicant for or a licensed designated consumption establishment or marihuana event 
organizer are subject to the inspections and investigations specified in these rules, as applicable. 
  (5) An applicant for or a licensed designated consumption establishment or marihuana event 
organizer are subject to these rules regarding violations, sanctions, and fines. 
  (6) A licensee selling marihuana products at a temporary marihuana event shall comply with the 
requirements of these rules regarding the sale or transfer of marihuana. 
  (7) A licensee selling marihuana products at a temporary marihuana event shall comply with the 
requirements of these rules regarding purchasing limits in a single transaction. 
 
R 420.29 Severability. 



28 
 

 Rule 29. If any rule or subrule of these rules, in whole or in part, is found to be invalid by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, such decision will not affect the validity of the remaining portion 
of these rules.  
 



 

As Adopted by the Whitewater Township Board on 03/17/2020  

 

Notes = blue     Proposed Changes = red    Original = black             February 2022 

 
Notes on Bi-laws 

(Section 3, G.  Note ----must have 2/3 members of 7 total, (thus 5) present and voting for any change 

to Bi-laws.  You can come to a consensus, but voting will have to wait until everyone is present.) 

 

Section 1: Membership 

G.  One member of the Planning Commission shall be appointed by the supervisor to serve as a member 

of the ZBA…..     ….The PC chair shall provide the supervisor a recommendation for appointment 

following consult with the PC.  (We have been advised by council that our wording is not in line with the 

law.) 

 
SECTION 6: Conflict of Interest 
 Add #4 addressing the “rule of necessity” 

 

Whitewater Township Planning Commission Bylaws 

The following rules of procedure are hereby adopted by the Whitewater Township Planning Commission 
to facilitate the performance of its duties as outlined in the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, Public Act 33 
of 2008, MCL 125.3801, et seq., and the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, Public Act 110 of 2006, MCL 
125.3101, et seq. 

SECTION 1: Membership 
A. Membership Size - The Planning Commission shall consist of seven (7) members.  
B. Membership Terms of Office – Members are appointed by the Township Supervisor for 

staggered three year terms with the approval of the Township Board and expire December 31.  
Members are expected to take the Oath of Office and serve until their term expires and a 
successor has been appointed as provided above.   

C. Membership Departure - Members who are unable or unwilling to serve the entire terms for 
which they were appointed or who do not wish to be considered for reappointment shall provide 
sixty (60) days advance written notice of that fact to the Township Supervisor so that a successor 
may be appointed and approved in a timely manner that does not require the Commission to 
function with less than the seven (7) members provided.  

D. Membership Qualification - All members shall be qualified electors of the Township of 
Whitewater, except that one member may be a non-qualified elector. 

E. Membership Representation - Membership shall be representative of the important segments of 
the community including: 

1. Agriculture 
2. Natural Resources/Environmental 
3. Recreation 
4. Education 
5. Public Health 
6. Government 
7. Transportation 
8. Industry 
9. Commerce 
10. Littoral Owner 
11. Building Trades 
12. Resident at Large 



 

As Adopted by the Whitewater Township Board on 03/17/2020  

 

F. Township Board Representation – One member of the Township Board shall serve as a 
member of the Planning Commission.  His/her term shall coincide with their term of office on the 
Whitewater Township Board of Trustees.  The Township Supervisor is ineligible to serve in this 
capacity. 

G. Zoning Board of Appeals Representation – One member of the Planning Commission shall 
serve as a member of the Zoning Board of Appeals. His/her term shall coincide with their 
appointment to the Planning Commission. 

H. Liaisons -  The Township Attorney and the Planning Department staff (including their agents and 
consultants) shall have the ability to participate in discussions of the Commission during their 
meetings.  

SECTION 2: Officers 

 A. Selection and Tenure - At the first regular meeting each January, the Planning Commission 
shall select a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson and Secretary.   All officers shall serve a term of one 
year, and shall be eligible for re-election for consecutive terms for the same office.  The newly 
elected officers shall assume their responsibilities at the next regular meeting.  If due to 
unforeseen circumstances, the Planning Commission is unable to elect officers at the January 
meeting, those officers whose terms as officers have expired and who remain as active members 
of the Planning Commission shall continue their services as officers until elections are held. 

 B. Chairperson - The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings, appoint committees and perform 
such other duties as may be ordered by the Planning Commission, including recommending the 
Zoning Board Representative to the Township Board when a vacancy occurs.   

 C.  Vice Chairperson - The Vice Chairperson shall act in the capacity of the chairperson in his/her 
absence. In the event the office of Chairperson becomes vacant, the Vice Chairperson shall 
succeed to this office for the unexpired term, and the Planning Commission shall select a 
successor to the office of Vice Chairperson for the unexpired term. 

 D.  Secretary - The Secretary shall execute documents in the name of the Planning Commission and 
shall perform such other duties as the Planning Commission may determine.   The Secretary may 
be assisted by a Recording Secretary and/or the Zoning Administrator in the performance of 
his/her duties. 

SECTION 3: Meetings 

The business the Planning Commission may perform shall be conducted at a public meeting held in 
compliance with the Open Meetings Act. The Planning Commission may establish reasonable rules and 
regulations in order to minimize the possibility of disrupting the meeting. 

 A. Regular Meetings – Meetings of the Planning Commission shall be held on the First Wednesday 
of each month.  All meetings shall take place at Whitewater Township Hall, 5777 Vinton Road, 
Williamsburg, MI  49690 at 7:00 P.M.  When a regular meeting falls on a legal holiday or upon a 
day resulting in a conflict, the Planning Commission shall, if possible, select a suitable alternate 
meeting date in the same month as the originally scheduled meeting. 

  Notice of regular Planning Commission meetings shall be posted at Township Hall each year in 
accordance with the Open Meetings Act and on the township website. 

 B. Special Meetings - Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson or upon written request 
to the secretary by at least two members of the Planning Commission.  Notice of special 
meetings shall be given to the members of the Planning Commission at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting. Such notice shall state the purpose, time and location of the special meeting and shall 
be posted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act.  

 C. Notice - Notice required for specific planning, zoning or other land use actions will be given in 
accordance with the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, Land 



 

As Adopted by the Whitewater Township Board on 03/17/2020  

 

Division Act, or other applicable statute.  All Planning Commission agendas and notices will be 
posted on the Township website, whitewatertownship.org. and in all other Township designated 
locations. 

 D. Public Hearings - All public hearings held by the Planning Commission must be held as part of a 
regular or special meeting of the Planning Commission.  

1. Public Hearings that will result in the consideration of amending the Zoning 
Ordinance text or map shall be set by motion of the Planning Commission. 

2. Public Hearings that are required for site plan and/or special use consideration 
may be set in accordance with the Planning Commissions regular schedule by the 
Zoning Administrator.  

 E. Agenda - The chairperson shall be responsible for preparing a tentative agenda, with the 
assistance of the Zoning Administrator or Recording Secretary, if requested, for Planning 
Commission meetings. The agenda may be modified by quorum of the Commission. 

 F. Quorum - Four (4) members of the Planning Commission shall constitute a quorum for 
transacting business and taking official action for all matters with the exception of Master Plan 
adoption or amendments (see G below). 

 G. Voting - An affirmative vote of 2/3 of the members of the Planning Commission is required to 
recommend approval of the master plan or amendments to the plan or to amend these bylaws. 
Unless otherwise required by statute, other actions or motions placed before the Planning 
Commission may be adopted by a majority vote of the members present and voting, as long as a 
quorum is present. Voting shall be by voice vote; a roll call vote shall be required if requested by 
any Commission member or directed by the chairperson. Except in the case of conflict of interest, 
all Planning Commission members, including the Chairperson and ex officio member, shall vote 
on all matters.   

 H. Public Records - All meetings, minutes, records, documents, correspondence and other 
materials of the Planning Commission shall be open to public inspection in accordance with the 
Freedom of Information Act, except as may otherwise be provided by law. 

 I.    Parliamentary Procedure – Parliamentary procedure in Planning Commission meetings shall be 
governed by Roberts Rules of Order. 

SECTION 4: Duties of the Planning Commission 

The Planning Commission shall perform the following duties: 

 A. Prepare, review and update a master plan as a guide for development within the Township’s 
planning jurisdiction. 

 B. Take such action on petitions, staff proposals and Township Board requests for amendments to 
the Zoning Ordinance as required. 

 C. Take such action on petitions, staff proposals and Township Board requests for amendments to 
the Master Plan as required. 

 D. Prepare an annual written report to the Township Board of the Planning Commission’s operations 
and the status of planning activities, including recommendations regarding actions by the 
Township Board related to planning and development. 

 E. Take such actions as authorized or required by the Michigan Planning Enabling Act. 

 F. Take such actions as authorized or required by the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act. 

 G. Review subdivision proposals and recommend appropriate actions to the Township Board. 



 

As Adopted by the Whitewater Township Board on 03/17/2020  

 

 H. Perform other duties and responsibilities or respond as requested by any Township Board or 
Commission. 

SECTION 5: Absences and Removals  

 A. To be excused, members of the Planning Commission shall notify the Planning Commission 
Chairperson, other Planning Commission member or Township Staff when they intend to be 
absent from a meeting. Failure to make this notification prior to the meeting shall result in an 
unexcused absence. 

 B. Members may be removed by the Township Board for misfeasance, malfeasance or nonfeasance 
in office upon written charges and after a public hearing. 

 C. Following three consecutive absences or six within any 12-month period, the Planning 
Commission shall present to the Township Board a recommendation for dismissal or continued 
service of a member.    

  
SECTION 6: Conflict of Interest 
During the Declaration of Conflict of Interest portion of the agenda, Planning Commission member(s) 
shall disclose the potential conflict of interest to the Planning Commission. Failure of a member to 
disclose a potential conflict of interest as required by these bylaws constitutes malfeasance in office. 

 

Conflict of interest is defined as, and a Planning Commission member shall declare a conflict of interest 
and abstain from participating in Planning Commission deliberations and voting on a request, when:  
 

1.   An immediate family member is involved in any request for which the planning commission is 
asked to make a decision. “Immediate family member” is defined as a spouse, mother, father, 
sister, brother, son, or daughter, including an adopted child. 

  
2.  The Planning Commission member has a business or financial interest in the property involved in 

the request or has a business or financial interest in the applicant’s company, agency or 
association. 

 
3.  The Planning Commission member owns or has a financial interest in neighboring property or 

property within a notification zone.  
 
If there is a question whether a conflict of interest exists or not, the question shall be put before the 
Commission.   Whether a conflict of interest exists or not shall be determined by a majority vote of the 
remaining members of the Commission. 
 
In the event that a conflict is declared, the member shall remove themselves from the meeting table until 

the agenda item is concluded. 

SECTION 7:  Compensation  
Planning Commissioners will receive compensation on a per meeting basis as determined by the 
Township of Whitewater Board of Trustees.  Planning Commissioners may receive reimbursement for 
travel and expenses with recommendation by the Planning Commission and approval by the Township 
Board. 
 
SECTION 8:  Education 
Members shall complete one training/educational program each year.  Training will may be provided 
when available at regular meetings of the Planning Commission by the Planning/Zoning Administrator (or 
his/her designee) and will qualify as acceptable training.  However additional training is encouraged.  



 

As Adopted by the Whitewater Township Board on 03/17/2020  

 

SECTION 9:  Order of Business 
The order of business shall be as follows: 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Roll Call of Commission Members 
3. Set/Adjust Meeting Agenda 
4. Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
5. Public Comment – Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Planning 

Commission.  Public comments shall be carried out in accordance with the following rules and 
procedures:  

a. Comments shall be directed to the Commission, with questions directed to the 
Chair. 

b. Any person wishing to address the Commission shall speak from the lectern and 
state his/her name and address. 

c. Persons may address the Commission on matters that are relevant to Township 
planning and zoning issues. 

d. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, 
excluding the time needed to answer Commission members’ questions.  

e. Public comment shall be limited to 3 minutes. 
6. Public Hearing 

a. Open public hearing/ state time. 
b. Request those attending sign attendance sheet. 
c. State date of public hearing notice publication and newspaper published in. 
d. State purpose of public hearing. 
e. Introduce any presentations to be given. 

i. Zoning Administrator 
ii. Petitioner/Agent 

f. Read any written comments received. 
g. Receive public comment. 
h. Close public hearing/state time. 

Questions shall be addressed through the Chair during the public hearing.  Planning Commission 
discussion and/or action shall take place following the public hearing. 

7. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 
8. Correspondence 
9. Reports/Presentations/Announcements/Comments 

a. Zoning Administrator 
b. Chair 
c. Township Board Representative 
d. ZBA Representative 
e. Committee Reports 
f. Additional Items 

10. Unfinished Business 
11. New Business 
12. Next Meeting Agenda 
13. Public Comment 
14. Commission Discussion/Comments 
15. Continuing Education  
16. Adjournment 

SECTION 10:  Amendments 

These bylaws may be amended at any time following a recommendation of the majority of the 
membership of the Planning Commission and subsequent notification to the Township Board. 
 



 

As Adopted by the Whitewater Township Board on 03/17/2020  

 

Adopted by the Whitewater Township Board at their regular meeting on March 17, 2020. 

 

 

 



Proposed Amendment to Zoning Ordinance, Article 25 -  March 2022 – Draft prepared by Mangus 

(Proposed amendment to clarify SUP standards for application and evaluation.) 

 

ARTICLE XXV 

SITE PLAN REVIEW AND SPECIAL LAND USES 

25.10 SITE PLAN REVIEW / SPECIAL USE PERMIT (SUP) - AUTHORIZATION and 

PROCEDURES 

A. The Zoning Administrator and/or Planning Commission as specified in this section shall 

review and approve, approve with conditions or deny all site plans and SUPs applications 

submitted under this Ordinance. Each action taken shall be duly recorded in the official record 

by the Zoning Administrator or in the minutes of the Planning Commission. Those applications 

which require Planning Commission review will then be submitted to the Planning Commission 

for action along with the recommendation of the Zoning Administrator as to compliance with 

Ordinance requirements. The Zoning Administrator shall also seek the recommendation of the 

Fire Chief, Road Commission, Drain Commission, Health Department, and Michigan Department 

of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE), or their successors, where applicable.    

 

SITE PLAN REVIEW: WHERE REQUIRED    

25,11.A.6   Removed   

 

25.21  SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP) APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS: 

A.  Conditions, Application Requirements, and Review Procedures for a SUP. 

1.   All SUP applications shall follow the review process set forth under Article 25, Site Plan 

Review and provide all information required therein. 

2.   The following additional items shall be provided and/or evaluated as part of the SUP review 

process.   

a.   Planning Commission review of the proposed projects compliance with the 

Whitewater Township Master Plan.  

b.   Evaluation of the potential impact a proposed project may have on the General 

Health, Safety, and Welfare of Whitewater Township and it’s residents.  

c.   Additional engineering studies may be required as deemed appropriate by the 

Planning Commission to evaluate a proposed projects impact on the power grid, traffic, 

water, sewer, and any environmental concerns.  



Proposed Amendment to Zoning Ordinance, Article 25 -  March 2022 – Draft prepared by Mangus 

d.   Evaluation of the Township’s ability to accommodate any anticipated increase in 

emergency services.    

B.   Procedures:   A public hearing shall be required for all special use applications.  When an application 

has been filed in proper form and with the required data, the Zoning Administrator shall immediately 

place said application upon the calendar for the hearing and cause notices stating the time, place and 

object of the hearing to be served.   

One (1) notice that said hearing is to be held shall…… 

 

 

 

Color Code:        Black= original text            Blue= notes         Red= new text             Removal Recommended 
 

Notes tracking changes: 

ARTICLE XXV 

SITE PLAN REVIEW AND SPECIAL LAND USES 

25.10 SITE PLAN REVIEW / SPECIAL USE PERMIT (SUP) - AUTHORIZATION and 

PROCEDURES 

A. The Zoning Administrator and/or Planning Commission as specified in this section shall 

review and approve, approve with conditions or deny all site plans and SUPs applications 

submitted under this Ordinance. Each action taken with reference to site plan review shall be 

duly recorded in the official record by the Zoning Administrator or in the minutes of the 

Planning Commission. Those site plans applications which require Planning Commission review 

will then be submitted to the Planning Commission for action along with the recommendation 

of the Zoning Administrator as to compliance with Ordinance requirements. The Zoning 

Administrator shall also seek the recommendation of the Fire Chief, Road Commission, Drain 

Commission, Health Department, and Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, or their 

successors, where applicable.   (EGLE?) 

 

SITE PLAN REVIEW: WHERE REQUIRED   (A.1-6) 

25,11.A.6   All proposed uses or developments in environmentally sensitive areas as required 

under Article 27.00, Environmentally Sensitive Areas.  (Article 27 no longer exists.)  

 



Proposed Amendment to Zoning Ordinance, Article 25 -  March 2022 – Draft prepared by Mangus 

25.21  SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP) APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS: 

A.  Conditions, Application Requirements, and Review Procedures for a SUP. 

1.   All SUP applications shall follow the review process set forth under Article 25, Site Plan 

Review and provide all information required therein. 

2.   The following additional items shall be provided and/or evaluated as part of the SUP review 

process.   

a.   Planning Commission review of the proposed projects compliance with the 

Whitewater Township Master Plan.  

b.   Evaluation of the potential impact a proposed project may have on the General 

Health, Safety, and Welfare of Whitewater Township and it’s residents.  

c.   Additional engineering studies may be required as deemed appropriate by the 

Planning Commission to evaluate a proposed projects impact on the power grid, traffic, 

water, sewer, and any environmental concerns.  

d.   Evaluation of the Township’s ability to accommodate any anticipated increase in 

emergency services.    

B.   Procedures:   A public hearing shall be required for all special use applications.  When an application 

has been filed in proper form and with the required data, the Zoning Administrator shall immediately 

place said application upon the calendar for the hearing and cause notices stating the time, place and 

object of the hearing to be served.   

One (1) notice that said hearing is to be held shall………..(No additional changes) 

 



SUP Amendment Version 1 2/22/22

WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance, Township Ordinance #6,  
effective December 23, 1972, as amended. 

Whitewater Township ordains: 

Part I: The Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by replacing Article 
25.21: Special Use Permit Application Requirements with the following: 

25.21 SPECIAL USES 
  
25.21.01. Purpose 

This Ordinance divides the Township into districts in which specific uses are permitted which are 
mutually compatible. In addition, there may be certain other uses which may be appropriate to 
include in a district due to the specific circumstances surrounding the use, the impact on     
neighboring uses and public facilities. Such uses, because of their particular location or the     
particular nature of the service offered, may be established in a district through a Special Use 
permit. 

 25.21.02 Authority to Grant Permits 

The Planning Commission has the authority to approve, deny or approve with conditions Special 
Use permits in accordance with this Ordinance. If approved or conditionally approved by the 
Planning Commission, the Zoning Administrator shall issue Special Use permits. 

25.21.03  Application and Fee 

Application for any Special Use permit permissible under the provisions of this Ordinance shall 
be made to the Zoning Administrator by filing a completed Special Use permit application form, 
including all required data, exhibits and information, and depositing the required minimum fee. 
Such application shall be accompanied by the minimum fee as established from time to time by 
the Township Board. No part of such fee shall be refundable to the Applicant. 

If an application of a complex nature is received, the Zoning Administrator may determine that 
the application requires the assistance of expert(s) resulting in additional costs. Upon the Zoning 
Administrator’s determination that expert review is required requiring additional fees, review of 
the application shall stop until the applicant has paid a minimum additional fee of up to two 
thousand five hundred ($2,500.00) dollars. The applicant shall deposit the additional fee with the 
Whitewater Township Treasurer who shall keep an accurate accounting of the funds in a separate 
account. If the applicant does not deposit the required amount, no further action on the 

!1



SUP Amendment Version 1 2/22/22

application shall be taken and it will be deemed denied without prejudice. The Zoning 
Administrator shall use the additional fee to contact and select necessary experts, receive a work 
proposal and estimate from the experts on their fees and costs for the application, and for the 
services of the expert(s). 

At the next meeting of the Planning Commission, or prior to the next meeting of the Planning 
Commission the Zoning Administrator in consultation with the Chair of the Planning           
Commission, shall: a) establish a budget for the services of the expert(s), meeting costs, zoning 
administration expenses; and b) send an invoice to the applicant for the amount of the budget  
established with a request the applicant notify the township within ten (10) days, in writing, that 
he will withdraw the application, or will proceed and pay the balance of the additional fees based 
on the budget. 

The applicant shall deposit the additional fee with the Township Treasurer who shall keep an.     
accurate accounting of the funds in the same account. If the applicant does not deposit the         
required amount, no further action on the application shall be taken and it will be deemed denied 
without prejudice. The Planning Commission shall use the additional fee to pay the services of 
the expert(s), meeting costs, and zoning administration expenses. 

During the application process, the Planning Commission may from time-to-time modify the 
budget for such costs. Any additional actual costs incurred in processing such application shall 
be paid before a permit is issued, and may be required to be payable in increments as review of 
the application progresses. The additional costs shall be for no more than the actual costs        
incurred by the Township processing the application. No part of such actual cost shall be 
returnable to the applicant. If there are any remaining monies in the Township Treasurer’s 
account upon conclusion of the application, those monies shall be returned to the Applicant. 

The deposit required by this section is in addition to any security required elsewhere in this    
Ordinance. 

25.21.04 Pre-Application Conference 

Applicant(s) may request a meeting with the Zoning Administrator and not more than two (2) 
members of the Planning Commission before submitting an application. The purpose of the 
meeting is to discuss special use permit processing procedures, explanation of this Zoning       
Ordinance, what has been required of similar applications in the past, and to assist the Applicant 
and Township with understanding of general concepts and design parameters prior to investment 
in preparation of a Site Plan or Special Use permit application. Township officials at this meeting 
shall not indicate or otherwise commit the Township to any particular action regarding the        
application. 

!2



SUP Amendment Version 1 2/22/22

 25.21.05 Information Required in Application 

An application for Special Use Permit shall include: 

a. The Applicant(s) name(s) and address(s). 
b. A signed affidavit the Applicant(s) are the owner, or has an ownership interest, or is      

acting on the behalf of owners. 
c. The address and legal description of the property. 
d. A detailed Site Plan as specified in Article 25.10 et seq. of this Ordinance. 

 25.21.06 Review for Completeness 

Upon receipt of the Special Use Permit application, the Zoning Administrator will review the 
application for administrative completeness. If the application is not administratively complete, 
the Zoning Administrator will return the application to the Applicant(s) with a letter that specifies 
the additional material(s) required. If the application is deemed administratively complete, the 
Zoning Administrator and Chair of the Planning Commission shall establish a date to hold a  
public hearing on the Special Use Permit application. 

25.21.07 Notice of Public Hearing 

If the application is administratively complete, the Zoning Administrator shall notify the          
following persons of the application being considered. This notice must be sent not less than    
fifteen (15) days before the date of the public hearing. These notices shall be sent to: 

a. The Applicant(s). 
b. The owner of the property, if different. 
c. The owners of all real property within 300 feet of the boundary for the property 

for which the Special Use review has been requested, as shown by the latest     
assessment roll, regardless of whether the owner and property is located in the 
Township. 

d. Occupants of any structures within 300 feet of the boundary for the property for 
which the Special Use review has been requested, regardless of whether the    
owner and property is located in the Township. 

a. The public by notification in a newspaper of general circulation in Whitewater 
Township. 

e. The members of the Planning Commission. 
f. The adjoining Township(s) (if proposed special use is located within 1 mile), 

Grand Traverse County, and the Grand Traverse Band of Ottawa and Chippewa 
Indians. 

a. Utility providers. 
g. Michigan Department of Transportation, if within 300 feet of a state highway. 

!3



SUP Amendment Version 1 2/22/22

h. Michigan Department of Environment Great Lakes and Energy (EGLE) if the 
proposed Special Use is on property with surface water, wetlands, groundwater, or 
otherwise requires a permit from EGLE. 

  
Failure of the Zoning Administrator to notify those persons and entities listed in Subsection 
25.21.07 of this Ordinance shall not be grounds to challenge the validity of the proposed special 
use permit, provided notice has been given in accordance with the Michigan Zoning Enabling 
Act.  

The notice shall include: 

a. The nature of the Special Use Permit being requested. 
b. The property(-ies) for which the request has been made. 
c. A listing of all existing street addresses within the property(-ies) subject of the Special 

Use (i.e., street addresses do not need to be created and listed if no such addresses 
currently exist and another means of identification may be used.) 

d. Where the application documents can be viewed prior to the date of its consideration. 
e. The date, time and location of the public hearing. 
f. The address at which written comments may be directed prior to Township consideration. 
g. For members of the Planning Commission only, a complete copy of the Special Use   

permit application and supporting documents in the record.  

Any person or entity that receives notice pursuant to this section of this Ordinance may choose to 
submit material to the Planning Commission. Such submissions shall be delivered to the      
Township at or before the hearing on the issue. Such submissions shall be considered advice to 
the Planning Commission. The applicant may wish to review an application with Grand Traverse 
County, Grand Traverse Band, public utilities, EGLE, road agencies, and other governing 
authorities having jurisdiction over the proposed special use prior to the hearing, or prior to 
submitting the application to the Commission. 

25.21.08  Hearing and Decision 

The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on the Special Use permit application. 
Anyone who receives notice pursuant to Section 25.21.07 may choose to submit material to the 
Planning Commission. Such submissions shall be delivered to the Township at or before the 
public hearing. Such submissions shall be considered advice to the Planning Commission.  

The Planning Commission shall either approve, approve with conditions, or deny the application. 
The decision shall be in writing and clearly state the reasons for the decision. At a minimum the 
record of the decision shall include: 

a. A summary of public comments made at the hearing; 
b. Formal finding of facts; 

!4



SUP Amendment Version 1 2/22/22

c. The conclusions derived from the facts (reasons for the decision); 
d. The decision; and 
e. A listing of any conditions upon which issuing a permit is issued. 

  
25.21.09  Special Use Permit Standards 

A. In addition to the standards established for specific uses herein, an application for a   
Special Use permit shall be reviewed for compliance with Site Plan review standards in 
Article 25.10 through 25.20 of this Ordinance. The Planning Commission may impose 
reasonable conditions upon a Special Use permit. 

B. No Special Use permit may be approved unless all of the following standards are met. 
Each application shall be reviewed for the purpose of determining that the proposed    
Special Use shall: 

1. Be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be harmonious and     
compatible with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity, and that the 
use will not change the essential character of the area in which it is proposed. 

2. Be adequately served by essential public facilities and services such as highways, 
streets, fire and safety, drainage, refuse disposal, water and sewage treatment, etc. 

3. Not create excessive additional public costs for essential public services or facilities. 
4. Not involve activities, processes, materials, equipment or conditions that will be 

detrimental to any persons, property, or the public from the traffic, noise, smoke,   
vibration, fumes, glare, odors, etc. 

5. Be sufficiently designed to maintain adequate provision for the protection of the 
health, safety, and welfare of those proposing the special use, residents and adjoining 
landowners and the community as a whole.  

6. Be consistent with the intent of this Zoning Ordinance and the Master Plan. 
7. Not create or substantially add to traffic hazards. 
8. Not have significant adverse impacts to environmental, ecological or natural          

resources.  
9. Not have significant adverse impacts on adjoining properties, or to allowed or        

established uses. 

25.21.10  Special Land Use Permit Conditions 

Special Land Use Permits can be granted with conditions, limitations, or additional requirements 
imposed by the Planning Commission. Any conditions, limitations or requirements upon which 
approval is based shall be based upon findings of fact and be: 

1) reasonable and designed to protect natural resources, the health, safety and welfare of the 
public; 

!5



SUP Amendment Version 1 2/22/22

2) relevant to the social and economic well-being of the owners and occupants of the lot in 
question, of the area adjacent thereto and of the community as a whole;  

3) related to the purposes which are affected by the proposed use or activity; 
4) consistent with the intent and purpose of this Ordinance, generally and specifically, for 

the respective zoning district; 
5) designed to ensure compatibility with adjacent uses of land and the natural environment; 

and 
6) the proposed special use or activity will be designed to ensure compatibility with public 

services and facilities. 

 25.21.11 Record of Special Land Use Permit 

A notice of the Special Use Permit shall be recorded with a property description with the Grand 
Traverse County Register of Deeds. The application and all other information relating to the 
Special Use Permit shall be filed with the Township by the Zoning Administrator. 

25.21.12  Security Requirement  

To ensure compliance with relevant sections of the Zoning Ordinance, Site Plan, and any Special 
Use Permit conditions, limitations or requirements imposed by the Planning Commission as  
necessary to protect natural resources or the health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the 
Township and future users or inhabitants of the proposed project or project area, in addition to 
action 25.16 Site Plan Performance Guarantee the Planning Commission, may require a cash 
deposit, certified check, irrevocable bank letter of credit or surety bond in an amount and under 
the conditions permitted by law. Such security shall be deposited with the Township Clerk at the 
time of the issuance of the Special Use permit authorizing the commencement of such project. 
Where the project will take more than ninety (90) days to be completed, the Planning 
Commission may authorize a rebate of any cash deposit in reasonable proportion to the ratio of 
the work completed as the work progresses. Such security shall not exceed the estimated cost of 
the required conditions, limitations, requirements for which the security is designed to ensure 
compliance. 

 25.21.13 Amendment of Special Use Permits 

Major amendments to Special Use Permits shall be handled in the same manner as the initial 
Special Use permit application. However, minor non-substantive changes may be made to an  
existing Special Use Permit by mutual agreement between the Township as represented and 
recorded by the Zoning Administrator and Applicant(s). 

!6



SUP Amendment Version 1 2/22/22

  

25.21.14 Transfer of Special Use Permit 

A Special Use permit, with any and all associated benefits, conditions and required security may 
be transferred to a new landowner. The responsibility for effecting the transfer shall be the     
original landowner. If not transferred, the original landowner shall continue to be held             
responsible for any conditions, security, etc. required by the Special Land Use Permit. The 
original landowner, upon transferring the Special Use permit shall advise the Zoning 
Administrator of said transfer in order to ensure the continued validity of the permit, compliance 
with security and other conditions. 

25.21.15. Construction Code Permits 

A Special Use permit shall be required prior to the issuance of a building permit from the Grand 
Traverse County Building Department pursuant to 2015 Michigan Building Code, 2015 
Rehabilitation Code for Existing Buildings, 2015 Michigan Energy Code, 2015 Michigan 
Residential Code, 2017 Michigan Electrical Code, 2015 Michigan Mechanical Code, and 2018 
Michigan Plumbing Code.  

25.21.16. Expiration of Special Use Permits 

A Special Use permit shall be valid for as long as the approved Special Use continues in         
accordance with the terms and conditions of the approved permit. The Special Use permit will 
expire on the occurrence of one or more of the following conditions: 

a) If replaced or superseded by a subsequent Special Use permit. 
b) If replaced or superseded by a permitted use. 
c) If the applicant requests the rescinding of the Special Use permit. 

 d) If the use is discontinued, relocated, or vacated for a period of one (1) year. Notice of 
the expiration shall be given to the property owner in writing. 

25.21.17 Violation of Special Use Permit  

Any violation of the terms, conditions or limitations of a Special Use permit shall be cause for 
revocation or suspension of the Special Use permit. The Planning Commission may either revoke 
or suspend, pending correction of the violation, any Special Use Permit. The act to revoke or 
suspend the Special Use permit shall occur after giving notice to the permit holder, specifying 
the violation(s) alleged to exist and when a hearing will be held on the matter. The notice shall be 
delivered by registered mail. Any interested party may appear in person or by attorney at the 
hearing. The act to revoke or suspend the Special Use permit shall occur after or at the hearing 

!7



SUP Amendment Version 1 2/22/22

on the matter. Before revoking or suspending the permit the Zoning Administrator shall make a 
finding that a material violation of the Special Use permit exists. The permit holder shall be 
given a reasonable opportunity to correct the violation(s). 

Part II.  Severability 

The various parts, sections and clauses of this Zoning Amendment are hereby declared to be 
severable. Should any part, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Zoning Amendment be 
found invalid or  unconstitutional for any reason by any court of competent jurisdiction, any such 
decision shall not affect the validity of the reminder of this Zoning Amendment. 

Part III. Conflict and Interpretation  

The standards and provisions of this Zoning Amendment shall be interpreted as being the 
minimum requirements necessary to uphold the purposes of this Ordinance. Whenever this 
Zoning Amendment imposes a higher standard than that required by other regulations, 
ordinances, or rules, or by easements, covenants or agreements, the provisions of this Zoning 
Amendment shall govern. When the provisions of any other statute impose higher standards the 
provisions of such statutes shall govern. When it is alleged by a petitioner that there is an error in 
interpretation of this Zoning Amendment by the Zoning Administrator or designee, the 
Whitewater Township Zoning Board of Appeals pursuant to Article 18 of the Zoning Ordinance 
shall review such an appeal, provided that a written appeal is filed within thirty (30) days of the 
decision of the Zoning Administrator or designee. The concurring vote of a majority of the 
Zoning Board of Appeals shall be necessary to reverse any interpretation of this Zoning 
Amendment by the Zoning Administrator or designee. 

Part IV. Savings Clause 

All proceedings pending and rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred at the time this 
Zoning Amendment takes effect are saved and may be consummated according to the law in 
force when they were commenced.  

Part V. Effective Date 

The provisions of this Zoning Amendment are ordered to take effect seven (7) days after 
publication (as the full text or as a summary thereof) in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
Township. 

Part VI. Adoption 

This Zoning Amendment was duly adopted by the Whitewater Township Board at its regular 
meeting called and held on the ____ day of ___________________, 2022. 

!8



SUP Amendment Version 1 2/22/22

Part VII. Publication 

The Township Clerk shall cause this Zoning Amendment or summary of this Zoning Amendment 
to be published in a newspaper of general circulation within Whitewater Township within seven 
(7) days after adoption.  
       
      _________________________________________ 
      Ron Popp, Supervisor, Whitewater Township 
             
      _________________________________________ 
      Cheryl A. Goss, Clerk, Whitewater Township 
Adoption date: 
Publication date: 
Effective date: 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Cheryl A. Goss, the Clerk for Whitewater Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of this Zoning Amendment adopted 
by the Whitewater Township Board at a regular meeting held on __________________, 2022. 
The following members of the Township Board were present at the meeting: 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
. 

The Zoning Amendment was adopted by the Whitewater Township Board with ___ members of 
the Board voting in favor (_________________________________________) and ___ voting 
against (_________________________________________________). 
A copy of the Zoning Amendment or a summary thereof was published in the Traverse City 
Record Eagle on ____________________________. 
        

___________________________________  
       Cheryl A. Goss, Clerk, Whitewater Township

!9



Draft Zoning Ordinance Amendment  12-3-21 

Color Code:       Black = original         Red = Needs review or evaluation       Blue = Suggested New or Notes 

Mike         Kim 

ARTICLE XII 

BUILDING SIZES AND YARD REQUIREMENTS 

12.00 

12.10 BUILDING SIZES 

A. Each Dwelling or other main building excepting itinerant labor housing quarters, hereafter erected in 
any district shall have a permanent foundation and a minimum of seven hundred (700) square feet of 
floor space, not including breezeways, porches and garages.  

B. The floor area of a mobile home shall be that stated as the manufacturer's declared measurements. 

C. Campground cabins shall not exceed six hundred and fifty (650) square feet including covered 
porches.  

D. All structures, lots, and structure setbacks from property lines shall comply with the regulations 
established in Article XII of this Ordinance, unless specifically exempted elsewhere in this Ordinance. 

 

Section 12.11 Schedule of Regulations  
(see next page for table) 
 
12.11  Residential Districts 

Di
st

ric
t  

  

U
se

 

M
in

im
um

 
Lo

t W
id

th
 

M
in

im
um

 
Lo

t A
re

a 
 

Fr
on

t Y
ar

d 
Se

tb
ac

k 

Si
de

 Y
ar

d 
Se

tb
ac

k 

Re
ar

 Y
ar

d 
Se

tb
ac

k 

Ad
di

tio
na

l 
St

an
da

rd
s 

R1  100’ 20,000 30’ 15’ 30’  

R2  100’ 12,000 30’ 15’ 30’  

 Two Family 120’ 22,000 30’ 15’ 30’  

R3  120’ 11,000 
Per Dwelling 

30’ 15’ 30’  

        

 

12.12   Agricultural and Recreation 



Draft Zoning Ordinance Amendment  12-3-21 
Di

st
ric

t  
  

U
se

 

M
in

im
um

 
Lo

t W
id

th
 

M
in

im
um

 
Lo

t A
re

a 
 

Fr
on

t Y
ar

d 
Se

tb
ac

k 

Si
de

 Y
ar

d 
Se

tb
ac

k 

Re
ar

 Y
ar

d 
Se

tb
ac

k 

Ad
di

tio
na

l 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Ag General 200’ 40,000 30’ 15’ 30’  

 Commercial 
Campground 

300’ ? 
 

40 acre min 
?  campsites 
per acre.* 
2 cabins per 
acre.  

    100’ 
 

100’ 
 

100’ 
 

 

Notes  M=increase 
K=500’ 

M=ok 
K= 4 sites, 2 
cabins per 
acre 

M=ok 
K=200’ 

M=ok 
K=200’ 

M=ok 
K=200’ 

 

 
RC General 100’ 5 acres 30’ 15’ 30’  

 Commercial 
Campground 
 

 40 acre min 
?  campsites 
per acre.   
2 cabins per 
acre.   

100’ 
 
 

100’ 
 
 

100’ 
 
 

 

Notes   Campgrounds 
= 1 site per 2 
acres 
1 cabin per 5 
acres 
40 acre min 
M=* 
K= 4 sites, 2 
cabins per 
acre 

M=* 
 

M=* 
 

M=* 
 

 

*     M = Make same as or sim to WWTP   
(WWTP is 147 acres, sites vary from 19 to 55 per acre by size but park has a large volume of unspecified woods 
and common area.) 

 

12.13   Commercial and Industrial Districts 

 



Draft Zoning Ordinance Amendment  12-3-21 
Di

st
ric

t  
  

U
se

 

M
in

im
um

 
Lo

t W
id

th
 

M
in

im
um

 
Lo

t A
re

a 
 

Fr
on

t Y
ar

d 
Se

tb
ac

k 

Si
de

 Y
ar

d 
Se

tb
ac

k 

Re
ar

 Y
ar

d 
Se

tb
ac

k 

Ad
di

tio
na

l 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Commercial - C General 100’ - 50’ *  10’ 30’ 40% Max. lot 
coverage 

 Multi-family  
Housing 

 11,000 
Per Dwelling 

    

 Commercial 
Campground 

300’ 
 

40 acre min 
 
?  campsites 
per acre. 
2 cabins per 
acre. 

100’ 
 

100’ 
 

100’ 
 

 

M=campgrounds 
increase min width 
K=remove 
campgrounds 

   M=75’ M=75’ M=75’  

             *Combination shall total 30% of width but not less than 10’ per side. 
 
Village -V General * * * 10’ 15’  

 Multi-family  
Housing 

* 11,000 
Per Dwelling 

* * *  

 Commercial 
Campground 

300’ ? 
 

40 acre min 
?7,500 per unit 

100’ 
 

100’ 
 

100’ 
 

 

M=increase min 
width 
K=remove 
campgrounds 

   M=ok M=ok M=ok  

             *Refer to conditional standards in Article 8.6. 
 
Industrial - N General 100’  50’ * 30” 40% Max. lot 

coverage 
 Multi-family  

Housing 
 11,000 

Per Dwelling 
50’ 
 

50’ 
 

50’ 
 

 

 Commercial 
Campground 

300’ 
 

?  campsites 
per acre. 
2 cabins per 
acre.  

100’ 
 

100’ 
 

100’ 
 

 

M=increase min 
width, Multi and 
setbacks good 
K=remove 
campgrounds, 
setbacks good 

  M=cabins ok M=ok  M=ok M=ok  

*Combination shall total 30% of width but not less than 15’ per side. 



Draft Zoning Ordinance Amendment  12-3-21 

 

 

12.14   Reserved for Marihuana Related Establishments 

Additional Setback Restrictions for Marihuana Related Establishments 

District    Use Setback from 
Existing 
Residential 
Parcel 

Setback from 
Adjacent 
Property line 

Setback from 
School, Park, 
church, or 
Recreational 
Trail. 

Agriculture Medical Grow and 
Processing, 
Recreational Grow 
and Processing 

300’ Structure to lot 
line. 

200’ structure to lot 
line. 

1000’ Structure to lot 
line. 

     

Industrial Medical Grow and 
Processing, 
Recreational Grow 
and Processing 

300’ Structure to lot 
line. 

Existing Setbacks 1000’ Structure to lot 
line. 

     

 

 

12.15   Special Situations: Except for the specific requirements stated the regulation for the underlying 
zone shall remain unchanged. 

Si
tu

at
io

n 
/U

se
  

M
in

im
um

 
Lo

t W
id

th
 

M
in

im
um

 
Lo

t A
re

a 
 

Fr
on

t Y
ar

d 
Se

tb
ac

k 

Si
de

 Y
ar

d 
Se

tb
ac

k 

Re
ar

 Y
ar

d 
Se

tb
ac

k 

Ad
di

tio
na

l 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Frontage on 
Boardman River and 
tributaries 

200’  100’ from water’s edge Ordinary 
High Water Mark 

 

Frontage on all other 
Lakes and Streams 

  50” from the water’s edge  Ordinary 
High Water Mark 

 

 
M72 in the Ag District   100’    

Supply Rd.   100’    



Draft Zoning Ordinance Amendment  12-3-21 

Old M72 in the C 
District 

  30’ 0   

       

Enclosures/structures 
for livestock, 
domestic animals 
(except house pets) 

 2 ½ acres 100 100 100  

OR 
Horses/livestock  2 ½ acres 100’ 

M=100 
100’ 

M=75 
100’ 

M=75 
 

Chickens/rabbits  2 ½ acres 40’ 
M=75 

40’ 
M=50 

40’ 
M=50 

 

Dog Kennels – Sled, 
Hunting, or Breeding  

 10 acres 200’ 
M=75 

200’ 
M=75 

200’ 
M=75 

 

Notes 
K=skip dogs or Art 37 
set 200’ 
Chickens – 20’ 
setback 

 K=no min 
 chickens 

    

 

12.16    Additional conditions: 

1. No structure shall be built within the minimum yards required except when expressly allowed elsewhere 
in the ordinance. Relocated from 12.11    

2. Minimum Lot Areas shall be calculated by square foot unbroken by any road, street, or thoroughfare. 
Relocated from table.   

3. Maximum Structure Height in all districts shall be 35’ or 2 ½ stories above grade.  Relocated from table.   
4. Minimum Width to Maximum Depth Ratio regulating lot shape of new parcels  

shall be 1:4 in all districts.  Relocated from table.   
5. Variance provisions for Depth to Width Ratio are found in General Ordinance 25, Land Division 

Ordinance.    Relocated from 12.11. 
6. There shall be a 30’? Setback in all directions between multifamily residential structures in any district. 

new 
 

Section 12.12    12.20  Hardship  

No requirements contained in this Article shall prevent the use of a lot or parcel of land of lesser size, provided 
the same was of legal record or had been laid out by a registered surveyor prior to the effective date of this 
Ordinance; and provided, further, that as to any lot or parcel of land not of legal record or so laid out on the 
date of passage of this Ordinance, if any conditions shall create a hardship in complying with the restrictions 
contained in this Article, then the Planning Commission may grant deviation therefrom after first determining 
that the same shall not be inimical to the public health, safety or welfare.   Evaluate – PC or ZBA 



Draft Zoning Ordinance Amendment  12-3-21 

K= should read ZBA 

 

Amendments to Article 14.11 

NOTES: To Section 12.11    
1 and 5 moved to 12.16 
Move 2 and 4 to Article 14, Waterfront 
3. Remove – old term no longer used    3. The water's edge shall be considered to be the ordinary high 
water mark.   
 
14.11 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR THE BOARDMAN RIVER VALLEY 

2.    C.    In no case shall a lot or parcel having frontage on the Boardman River or its tributaries be less 
than two hundred (200) feet wide at the water's edge or the building setback line, or be less than two 
hundred (200) feet deep.    Moved to Article 14, Waterfront – Also appears in Article 12 -  “Special 
Situations” 

4.    D.   A dock may be constructed parallel to the bank, not exceeding ten (10) feet in length and not 
protruding in the stream, and when constructed of natural materials such as rocks or logs.  Moved to 
Article 14, Waterfront from Article 12. 

 

Amendments to Article 37.20    Raising and keeping of animals 

37.20 C or 12     Should be amended to match.   

37.20 C.  Currently reads 40’ for chickens/rabbits. 12 indicates 100’. 

 



Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 79 
Color Code:    Black: existing             Red: new, notes, or needs review         Grey: removed 

 
WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
MARIHUANA BUSINESS ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

 
 

An Ordinance to amend the Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance, as amended, to provide for the 
regulation of Commercial Medical Marihuana Facilities, and Primary Caregiver operations; and designate 
such Facilities, Establishments, and Operations as permitted or special uses; in order to maintain the public 
health, safety and welfare of the residents and visitors to Whitewater Township.  
(Adapted for and added to 25.22E) 

 

THE TOWNSHIP OF WHITEWATER ORDAINS: 
 

Section 1. Amendment of Article III, Definitions: The Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance, Article III, 
Definitions, shall be amended to add the following definitions: 
 
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS shall include subdivisions, condominium developments, and Planned Unit 
Developments (PUD) intended for residential use.   (Need to address apartments or other residential areas)  

MARIHUANA RELATED DEFINITIONS: 
 

MMFLA:  Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act  
 

MRTMA: Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act  
 

MARIHUANA CAREGIVER OPERATION: is the cultivation, storage, or distribution of medical 
marihuana by a Primary Caregiver in accordance with the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act, Initiated 
Law 1 of 2008 ("MMMA"), See Article 37.60.” 
 
Marihuana - CONSUMPTION ESTABLISHMENT: as that term is defined by the Department of 
Licensing and Regulatory Affairs being a commercial space that is licensed by LARA or the MRA and 
authorized to permit adults 21 years of age and older to consume marihuana products at the location 
indicated on the state license or as may be defined in the MRTMA. 

EXCESS MARIHUANA GROWER: as that term is defined by the Department of Licensing and 
Regulatory Affairs, being a grower authorized to grow additional marihuana plants in increments of2,000 
or as may be defined in the MRTMA. 

 
MARIHUANA BUSINESS: means any of the following marihuana-related businesses licensed under 
the MMFLA or MRTMA: 
 
MARIHUANA EVENT ORGANIZER: as that term is defined by the Department of Licensing and 
Regulatory Affairs, being a person authorized to hold a temporary marihuana event or as may be defined 
in the MRTMA. 

 



Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 79 
MARIHUANA GROWER is a commercial entity licensed to cultivate, dry, trim, or cure and package 
marihuana for sale to a processor or provisioning center.  
 
MARIHUANA MICROBUSINESS: as that term is defined in the MRTMA, being a person licensed to 
cultivate not more than 150 marihuana plants; process and package marihuana; and sell or otherwise 
transfer marihuana to individuals who are 21 years of age or older or to a marihuana safety compliance 
facility, but not to other marihuana establishments.  

 
Marihuana - PRIMARY CAREGIVER means a person who has agreed to assist a patient with the 
medical use of marihuana and has a valid state license to do so.  See Article 37.60. 
 
MARIHUANA PROCESSER is a commercial entity licensed to purchase marihuana from a grower 
and extract resin, package, create marijuana-infused products, or similarly prepare marihuana substances 
for sale.   
 
MARIHUANA RETAILER: as that term is defined in the MRTMA, being a person licensed to obtain 
marihuana from marihuana establishments and to sell or otherwise transfer marihuana to marihuana 
establishments and to individuals who are 21 years of age or older.  

 
MARIHUANA SAFETY COMPLIANCE FACILITY: as that term is defined in the MRTMA, being 
a person licensed to test marihuana, including certification for potency and the presence of contaminants. 
 
Marihuana - SECURE TRANSPORTER is a commercial entity licensed to store and/or transport 
marihuana between facilities.   
 
TEMPORARY MARIHUANA EVENT: as that term is defined by the Department of Licensing and 
Regulatory Affairs being a state license held by a marihuana event organizer under the MRTMA, for an 
event where the onsite sale or consumption of marihuana products, or both, are authorized at the location 
indicated on the state license or as may be defined in the MRTMA. 
 
Marihuana - QUALIFYING PATIENT is a person who had been diagnosed by a physician as having 
a debilitating medical condition being treated by marihuana. See Article 37.60 
 
OTHER MARIHUANA RELATED DEFINITIONS: other marihuana related terms undefined by this 
Township Zoning Ordinance will be given their meaning assigned by the Whitewater Township Ordinance 
Authorizing and Permitting Adult-Use Marihuana Establishments or the Whitewater Township Ordinance 
Authorizing and Permitting Commercial Medical Marihuana Facilities. Any other marihuana related terms 
undefined by other Whitewater Township ordinances shall be assigned their meaning contained in the 
Michigan Medical Marihuana Act (MMMA), Initiated Law 1 of 2008; the Medical Marihuana Facilities 
Licensing Act (MMFLA), Public Act 281 of 2016; the Michigan Regulation & Taxation of Marihuana 
Act (MRTMA), Initiated Law 1 of 2018; by the Marijuana Regulatory Agency (MRA); and by applicable 
Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs (LARA) Rules and Regulations.  
 

Section 2. Amendment of Article 6, Section 6.10, Permitted Uses: The Whitewater Township Zoning 
Ordinance, Article 6 Residential R-1, Section 6.10, Permitted Uses, shall be amended to include the following:  

I. Caregiver Operations subject to the standards in Article 37.60.  



Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 79 
 
Section 3. Amendment of Article 8, Section 8.11, Uses Permitted by Special Use Permit: The Whitewater 
Township Zoning Ordinance, Article 8 Commercial District C Section 8.11, Uses Permitted by Special Use Permit 
in the Commercial District, shall be amended to include the following:  

 

R.   Medical Marihuana Grow Facility subject to the standards of Article 25.22.E. 
S.   Medical Marihuana Processor Facility subject to the standards of Article 25.22.E. 
Renumber balance of section, 8.11, without change to text. 
 

Section 4. Amendment of Article 9, Section 9.11, Uses Permitted by Special Use Permit: The Whitewater 
Township Zoning Ordinance, Article 9 Industrial District N, Section 9.11, Uses Permitted by Special Use Permit, 
shall be amended to include the following:  
 

E.   Medical Marihuana Grow Facility subject to the standards of Article 25.22.E. 
F.   Medical Marihuana Processor Facility subject to the standards of Article 25.22.E. 
Renumber balance of section, 9.11, without change to text. 

 
Section 5. Amendment of Article 10, Section 10.11, Uses Permitted by Special Use Permit: The Whitewater 
Township Zoning Ordinance, Article 10 Agricultural A-1, Section 10.11, Uses Permitted by Special Use Permit, 
shall be amended to include the following:  
 

C.   Medical Marihuana Grow Facility subject to the standards of Article 25.22.E. 
D.   Medical Marihuana Processor Facility subject to the standards of Article 25.22.E. 
Renumber balance of section, 10.11, without change to text. 
 

_________________________________________________________ 
 

Section 6. Amendment of Article 25, Section 25.22, Additional Conditions of Special Uses: The Whitewater 
Township Zoning Ordinance, Article 25 Site Plan Review and Special Land Uses, Section 25.22, Additional 
Conditions of Special Uses, shall be amended to include the following: 

 

E. S.U.P. STANDARDS GOVERNING LOCATION AND OPERATION. 

Statement of Intent:   It is the intent of this section to provide for the regulation of Commercial Medical and Adult-
use Marihuana Facilities and designate such Facilities, Establishments, and Operations requiring a special use permit; in 
order to maintain the public health, safety and welfare of the residents and visitors to Whitewater Township.  
 

Grower and Processer Businesses: Any S.U.P. application in the Commercial C, Industrial (N), or Agricultural 
(Ag) district and shall comply with the following standards and shall include the following information in addition 
to the existing requirement for site plan and SUP.    

A. SUP applicants shall provide the following: 
 

1. Whether the Marihuana Business will be a principle or accessory use on the property: 
 
a. An SUP for a Marihuana Business may be granted as a principal or accessory use in the 

Agricultural District (Ag). 



Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 79 
b. An SUP for a Marihuana Business may be granted as a principal use in the Commercial (C-1) or 

Industrial (N) districts.  
 

2. A waste disposal plan shall be included with all applications detailing plans for solid, liquid, chemical, 
plant, and byproduct disposal or processing which does not include on site incineration.   

 
3. A security plan that details compliance with the following requirements: 

 
a. Security surveillance cameras installed to monitor all entrances, along with the interior and exterior 

of the Permitted Premises; and 
 

b. Robbery and burglary alarm systems that are professionally monitored and operated 24 hours a 
day, 7 days a week; and 
 

c. A locking vault permanently affixed to the Permitted Premises that shall store cash or product as 
required by Michigan State law.  
 

d. All Marihuana in whatever form stored at the Permitted Premises shall be kept in a secure manner, 
and it shall not be exchanged, displayed or dispensed outside the Permitted Premises; and 
 

e. All security recordings and documentation shall be preserved for at least seven (7) days by the 
Permit Holder and made available to any law enforcement agency upon request for inspection. 

 
4. Lighting Plans detailing compliance with the following standards and those detailed in Article 29, 

External Lighting Regulations: 
 
a. A Security Lighting Plan which takes into consideration neighboring properties. 

 
b. Any artificial lighting must be shielded to prevent glare and light trespass and must not be visible 

from neighboring properties, adjacent streets or public right of ways. 
 

c. All lighting, and associated equipment, such as but not limited to lamps, lights, ballasts, switches, 
controllers, computers, and any and all other equipment used on the premises must meet and fully 
comply with all applicable rules as required by the Federal Communications Commission. Further, 
there must be no harmful and/or interfering electromagnetic emissions to any one-way or two-way 
radio communications, on or off the premises. Compliance with FCC Rules and Regulations is a 
condition of licensure by the Township. 

 
5. Proposed hours of operation shall be specified in the application and are subject to Planning 

Commission approvals.  
 

B. SUP permit holders for Marihuana Businesses are subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. No Marihuana Business shall be located within one thousand (1000) feet of any licensed educational 

institution or school, college or university, church or house of worship or other religious facility, or 
public or private park, if such uses are in existence at the time the Marihuana Business is issued an 



Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 79 
initial permit, with the minimum distance between uses measured horizontally between the closest 
edge of any such building or use on the property.     
 

2. Any structure housing a Marihuana Businesses in any district shall maintain a total footprint of all 
buildings equal to or less than a 40% maximum coverage of the property.  
                      

3. Signage shall not indicate the nature of the location as a Marihuana Business. A Marihuana Business 
can only have a sign if approved by the Township Planning Commission by SUP or under the 
Additional Signage by Special Use process defined in Article 30. 

 
 

4. A Marihuana Business’s operations shall create no disturbance detectable to the normal senses at or 
beyond its property line, including but not limited to processes that create noise, dust, vibration, glare, 
fumes, odor or electrical interference.  

5.   Incineration shall not be permitted at any marihuana business location. 

6. Marihuana Businesses located in the Agricultural District shall subject to the following additional 
standards: 
 
a. Any Marihuana Business shall be held to the Exterior Lighting Regulations for Commercial and 

Industrial Zones as listed in Article 29. 
b. Any Marihuana Business may be required to include a landscape buffer adhering to the Industrial 

District Standards as defined in Landscape Standards, Article 33. 
c. Any Marihuana Business shall be held to the Industrial standards in Article 34, Off Street 

Parking and Loading. 
d. All Marihuana Business structures and operations shall maintain a two hundred (200) foot 

setback measured horizontally between the closest edge of any building or operation and the 
property line of any existing residential development, residential zoning district, or a district in 
which Commercial Medical Marihuana Facilities or Marihuana Establishments are not permitted. 

e. All Marihuana Business structures and operations shall maintain a three hundred (300) foot 
setback measured horizontally between the closest edge of any building or operation and any 
existing residential dwelling not held in like ownership. 

f. A variance may be sought as provided for in the zoning ordinance and where the Marihuana 
Business would operate from a structure previously used for commercial purposes. 
 

7. In additions to these requirements a Marihuana Business shall comply with all state and local laws, 
regulations, and Ordinances, including without limitation other sections of the Township Zoning 
Ordinance, the MMFLA and the MRTMA to the extent such ordinances do not create obligations in 
conflict with this Ordinance.   
 

8. Any Marihuana Establishments shall comply with the underlying zoning in that district.    
 

 

Section 7. Amendment of Article 37, Supplementary Provisions: The Whitewater Township Zoning 
Ordinance, Article 37 Temporary Buildings and Uses, shall be amended to include the following: 

37.60 Marihuana Caregiver Operations 



Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 79 
A. Caregiver Operations by a Primary Caregiver shall be governed by the following standards:  

1. 1. A Caregiver Operation shall comply with the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act, Michigan Initiated Law 1 of 
2008, MCL 333.26421, et seq. ("MMMA").  
 

2. 2. A Caregiver Operations shall be an Accessory Use of the premises.  
 
3. There shall be no more than one Primary Caregiver Operation per premises. 

 
4. All medical marihuana must be contained within a separate enclosed, locked facility for medical marihuana 

patients for which the medical marihuana caregiver is lawfully connected, in accordance with the MMMA. The 
enclosed, locked facility shall have secure windows and doors where applicable and the medical marihuana 
caregiver shall implement security measures to prevent theft of stored marihuana.  
 

5. Distribution, growth or cultivation of medical marihuana, and all other related activity, must occur 
indoors.  

 
6. The Qualifying Patient or Primary Caregiver must possess and maintain a valid registry identification 

card by the Bureau of Health Professions, Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 
or their successors. 
 

7. Caregiver  Operations shall obtain all necessary building, electrical, plumbing, and mechanical permits 
for any part of the structure in which electrical, wiring, lighting, or watering devices that support the 
cultivation, growing, or harvesting of marihuana occurs. 

 
8. All lighting, and associated equipment, such as but not limited to lamps, lights, ballasts, switches, 

controllers, computers, and any and all other electrical, electromechanical, or electronic devices 
employed on the premises must meet and fully comply with all applicable rules as required by the 
Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) Further, there must be no harmful and/or interfering 
electromagnetic emissions to any one-way or two-way radio communications, on or off the premises. 
Compliance with FCC Rules and Regulations is a condition of licensure by the Township.  
 

9. Caregiver Operations shall control any odor from the premises by regularly maintaining and operating 
an air scrubbing and carbon filtration system or other reasonably available odor control technology so 
that no odor from the acquisition, possession, cultivation, processing, transfer, or sale of marihuana is 
detectable at the property line of the parcel.   
 

10.  A Caregiver Operation shall be operated in a manner that does not create excessive noise, dust, vibrations, 
glare, fumes, electrical interference, or odors that are detectible to a reasonable person of normal sensitivities 
beyond the parcel on which the use occurs.  There shall be no external evidence, signage, or lighting 
related to the Caregiver Cultivation Operation detectable from the exterior of the property.   
 

11. There shall be no external evidence, signage, or lighting related to the Caregiver Operation detectable from 
the exterior of the premises. 

 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 



Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 79 
 
 
 



Whitewater Township 

PLANNING and ZONING 
1273 S. Seaman Road 
P.O. Box 143 
Wellston, Michigan 49689 

2/24/2022 

Telephone (23 l ) 848-4564 
Fax (23 l ) 848-7081 

emai l: norzoning@ kaltelnet.net 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
(at a glance) 

Re: 28-13-005-008-20 [Classic Equine] 

Under the Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance, Article VIII, Section 8.1 l.L, Veterinary clinics, 
veterinary hospitals, and related kennel facilities are listed as special uses. 

Article XXV, Section 25.11.D provides for an opportunity to present a 'preliminary' site plan for review 
before the Planning Commission. 

Historically, the 'preliminary' site plan review has been used for the Planning Commission to engage the 
applicant in a brief conversation regarding the proposed development. Should any 'preliminary' 
concerns be noted by the Planning Commission, the applicant can work towards meaningful 
mitigation prior to the substantial investment in a 'FINAL' site plan. 

Respectfully submitted for Planning Commission review and action, 

Robert Hall 
Zoning Administrator 

Page 1 of 1 
Norman Township 



n 
OJ 
V) 
V) -· n 
m 
..c 
C 
:::s 
(D 

N 
00 

I 
~ 
w 

I 

0 
0 
u, 

I 

0 
0 
00 

I 
N 
0 

s 
Q.) 
""I 
n 
:::r 
N 

:, 
a. 

N 
0 
N 
N 



Case No. WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP ---
Date Rec. ---
Fee 5777 Vinton Road, PO Box 159 

Williamsburg Ml 49690 -----
PH (231) 267-5141 Fax (231) 267-9020 

Property Information 

Parcel Number 13-005-008-20 - - --- ------ - - ----- -----
Address E - M72 ---- ---- -------- - - - - - - - ---
Zoning District C-1 Acres_3_.3_2 _ _ __ Current Use_VA_C_A_N_T ___ _ 

Property Owner Information 

Name ~RKJOHNSON DVM 
Address 8925 2 MILE ROAD, ADA, MICHIGAN 49301 

Phone 616-642-6784 Fax ------------
Applicant Information 

Name JOHN KERRIDGE ARCHITECT 

Address 8140 BEL CHERRIE DR. , TRAVERSE CITY, Ml. 49686 
Phone 231-620-4200 Fax jkpmbk@gmail.com 

Description of Proposed Use (Use reverse side or attach pages as needed) 
A new Equine Veterinary Clinic and supporting spaces. Includes general office use area, Exam areas, 
a11d lieat111e11t exe1cise a,eas. Also i11cludes pa1 tial oppe1 level will I efficie11cies fOI use by staff a11d support 
employees for overnight stays Ibis is a clinic only not a surgery center Surgery will be done at 
a seperate location. Staffing is 3-4 and will vary. This is a low traffic use. The buildings will be light 
na, 11e co11s1iuctio11, slab 01 1 g,ade. 

I hereby attest that the information on this application form is, to the best of my 
knowledge, true and accurate. 

John Kerridge AIA 02/16/22 

Date 

I hereby grant permission for members of the Whitewater Township Planning 
Commission and the Zoning Administrator to enter the above described property for the 
purposes of gathering information related the this application. 

Agent 02/16/22 
Date 



Whitewater Township 

PLANNING and ZONING 
1273 S. Seaman Road 
P.O. Box 143 
Wellston, Michigan 49689 

2/24/2022 

Re: 28- 13-1 36-001 -002 

Telephone (23 1) 848-4564 
Fax (23 1) 848-708 1 

email: norzoning@kaltelnet.net 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
(at a glance) 

Under the Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance, Site Condominium development is NOT zoning 
district specific. The applicant proposes a site condominium on the above-captioned parcel. 

Article XXVIII, Section 28.12 ..12rovides for the assistance of other consultants. The Zouiug 
Administrator recommeuds that the Plmmiug Commission require an escrow deposit I fee of 
1101 less tl,au $2,500.00 (two thousand rmd.five-l11mdred) dollars to move forward wit!, the 
administrative process. 

Article XXVIII, Section 28.1 5.B demands that the underlying zoning district standards related lot size, 
area. Bulk, density, dwelling size, setbacks etc. be complied with; the proposed site plan 
recognizes and exceeds the minimum requirements at this point. 

Article XXVUI, Section 28. 16.C demands that the Planning Commission conduct a public hearing 
regardjng the site condominium development and make a ' recommendation to the Township 
Board. 

Respectfully submitted for Planning Commission review and action, 

Robert Hall 
Zorung Administrator 

Page 1 of 1 
Norman Township 



N 
N 
0 
N 
,, 
C: 
N 
£ 
u 
I.. 
ro 
~ 

0 
• r't 

0 
0 
• 

• • 
E 
:::, ·-c ·-E 
0 
-c 
C 

8 
OJ ..,, ·-v, 



WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP 
5777 Vinton Road , PO Box 159 

Williamsburg Ml 49690 
PH (231 ) 267-5141 Fax (231) 267-9020 

Property Information 

Parcel Number I~ -- \ ""3> ~ - o O \ - O .__ 
Address N A 
Zoning District A\ Acres -Z..o ~ Current Use Y~ 1 

Property Owner Information 

Case No. _ _ _ 
Date Rec. _ _ _ 
Fee ___ _ 

Name 8C\0(q.5 ~,,-V\U.S I ,LC 
Address J 53 cc-.~ ro k'.'.Ylf tc>,.._::. ~t-. i-Je; G ,A-,J !J R--A(:' t 0,51 M \ yq s~ \o 
Phone (o ,Cp 91L( s,2.1 Fax _________ _ 

Applicant Information 

Name ])e:eEt.. 1/A-rJ SoL/L-E /Y\A 
Address S3 t"" s+-1-v..,..,.ptz:>/\ C.. t- , . .Je ~t..A->J~ t.fH' 1P51 ;l/1 f '--/ '15'-i l, 
Phone lP l lo q \=:\_ s (, 2- 4 Fax _________ _ 

Description of Proposed Use (Use reverse side or attach pages as needed) 

s,"Tc {-&>J:001':':::'.\,~I v.l--1 X<l-o~I 

I hereby attest that the information on this application form is, to the best of my 
knowledge, true and accurate. 

d,~92- Date 

I hereby grant permission for members of the Whitewater Township Planning 
Commission and the Zoning Administrator to enter the above described property for the 
purposes of gathering information related the this application. 

~?(? - 2-/1 1(2-0 1-7-
,gnatureo(Prope,,,ner Date 

SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 



: 

f -~~I' ; . 
~ . •f ' I 

~11. , H' 

·r r I 

• 

r 
~ 

i • 
~ 
< 

t n 
0 ' • 
! 

I . ,, ~ ...... 

/ r ,._~~~\~s:-0"'0f":·Pv!uci 

11::l=l=r 1rct:::=:r· ·=--~-:;:;;:;;;;;;;;:! ~:r~=~~ 
,:\11(,,n.,;r-~O..~ Pl 

ro ~ .. ..,,u 
Tu-·owtan.J.1141'1!~ 

l'h;,cr!ll•~•ll'I 
...... -i-,(\ ..... 
.,,.,.,.~era 



1~f,, 
j;il 

• Hii1i§ ~l 
• ·1 f , · 

1
1;11if , 
.fni 
IJ1!1 
:11h 

~~~JI 

lii~li 
i•,1l 11rr 

!HI .., 1'. I
~~ ~ 
,,~§a' 
•i • 

1~~·"· 

·Ti 
~;~ . 

,~;:•o~i! ,.,~a.~!! 
,;;1•; • a 
'g!ss~i 
j 51: e. 51:g 
;;~g~ 
i~--!1 -: ~.:;~ 
§~"~~ 
••~•Y i••• l .~~~a 
-§' .. ' Li;f ~!~,, 
!1i!?~ 

tr:?a-;"', -s i 
0~~~8 ••s• ~,~i 

::.iza ... 

~§;! 

Gory VonSlolen 

r 
n 
r 

i 
f 
~ 

I 
0 .• 
~ 

Proposed Land Division 
OVERALL EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN 

Soclon 36, town 28110,lh. Pcnge 9 Wou 
~lt,~p. Qond h~,nly. ~IC~n 

\ u.· ( ~'------, ';,,. .. 
u .. ----i --=-=-=- - \ _........r_ 
..... _; I ! ,-.....,.it 

(J 
---~ ·,\. 

,, 
-, 

# .................. .. 

~ ~-

L 

-~ 
~ 

,, 

/. ]] .3; 
:.~ 

', ', 

\) 
I 

i 
: 
: 
: ,,m 
, -< .~ 
: 

) - -.. ,, .. ,, 
/,/ 

!1K ' -< , n ,, 
·j 

f -
' 

·r··--,,------- ~ 
,, ,, ,, ~ 

.-~-- - ::, ,'' I 
~u • 

• 

' ' ' ' ......... ' ',, 

~ I! 

,,,,-1 ·1---......... !_ ...... ..,_ .... 
', 

') 
,---~ - ·-' 

Mansfield 
La.od U1e Con1ultant1 

I 
I 

,\"tc.,,.-~ Ur. Sw J·l ,o ...... . 1) 

r.~-c ... "llflUJ, 
n.-211,....."1 ····-l"" .. ..... ~ .r,'"'! 




